
BISCAYNE BAY WATERSHED 
 MANAGEMENT ADVISORY BOARD 

Board Packet



Biscayne Bay Watershed 

Management Advisory Board 

Board Package 

Table of Contents 

Agenda Pg 3 

Welcome New Board Member Pg 4 

Meeting Minutes – April 14, 2023 Pg 5 

Draft Impervious Ordinance Review Pg 11 

Directive No. 221513 - Operations 
Maintenance Design and Construction of 
Municipal Stormwater Systems  

Pg 71 

Chairwoman Discussion Item RE: Proposed 
County Ordinance #231337 – Uses Permitted 
Agricultural Zoning District 

Pg 79 

A Quick Guide to Developing Watershed Plans 
to Restore and Protect Our Waters 

Pg 121 

South Miami-Dade Watershed Study and Plan Pg 161 

Requested Standing Updates 
Miami-Dade Back Bay Coastal Storm Risk 
Management Feasibility Study (“Back Bay”) 

Pg 162 

BBWMAB Policy Updates Pg 205 



 

AGENDA  
BISCAYNE BAY WATERSHED MANAGEMENT   
ADVISORY BOARD (BBWMAB) MEETING 
July 14th, 2023 – 9:00 am – 12:00 pm 
LOCATION – Stephen P. Clark Government Center, Commission Chambers, 2nd Floor 
111 NW First Street, Miami, FL 33128 
 

1. Roll Call 
 

2. Reasonable Opportunity to be Heard 
 

3. Approval of Agenda – Actionable Item  
 

4. Approval of Minutes for April 14, 2023 – Actionable Item  
 

5. BBWMAB Goals & Objectives  
BBWMAB Chair, Commissioner Danielle Cohen Higgins 
 

6. Watershed Restoration Plan Overview 
Irela Bagué, Chief Bay Officer 
Pamela Sweeney, Senior Water Scientist, RER DERM 
 

7. Draft Impervious Ordinance Review  
Marina Blanco Pape, Chief, Water Management Division RER-DERM 
 

8. Chairwoman Discussion Item RE: Proposed County Ordinance #231337 – Uses 
Permitted Agricultural Zoning District  

• Sec. 33-279.3 (6)(a) – (6) Maximum number of distribution vehicles. (a) >>Amount 
allowed as of right for storage on the subject property. The number of distribution 
vehicles allowed on a single lot shall not be limited 

BBWMAB Chair, Commissioner Danielle Cohen Higgins 
 

9. Future Agenda Items 
BBWMAB Chair, Commissioner Danielle Cohen Higgins 
 

10. Adjournment 
BBWMAB Chair, Commissioner Danielle Cohen Higgins 



Biscayne Bay Watershed 

Management Advisory Board 
 
 

Welcome New Board Member 

Commissioner Alex J. Fernandez 
City of Miami Beach – League of Cities 

 

Read more about Commissioner Fernandez here 

 
 
 
 

https://www.miamibeachfl.gov/people/commissioner-alex-fernandez/


Biscayne Bay Watershed 
Management Advisory Board 
 

Stephen P. Clark Government Center 
Commission Chambers, 2nd Floor 
111 NW First Street  
Miami, FL 33128 

MINUTES April 14, 2023         9:00 am   

 

MEETING CALLED BY 

The roll call was taken – Quorum was met. 14 members present.  
 
Absent Members: Julissa Kepner, Spencer Crowley, Roberto Torres and Dr. Joan Browder. 
Kevin Cunniff arrived late. 

MEMBER ATTENDEES 

Chair – D8 Commissioner Danielle Cohen Higgins  
Vice-Chair – Coral Gables Mayor Vince Lago  
D6 Commissioner Kevin Cabrera 
D4 Commissioner Micky Steinberg 
North Bay Village Commissioner Rachel Streitfeld 
Cutler Bay Mayor Tim Meerbott 
Brett Bibeau  
Dr. Todd Crowl 
 

Dr. Erik Stabenau 
Jannek Cederberg  
Gerald McGinley  
John Alger 
Dave Doebler 
Dr. Diego Lirman 
Kevin Cunniff 
 
 

Staff support for Biscayne Bay Watershed Management Advisory Board in attendance: Irela Bagué, 
Pamela Sweeney, Nancy Jackson, Larissa Aploks, and Ana Fiotte.     

 

AGENDA TOPICS 

REASONABLE OPPORTUNITY TO BE HEARD Commissioner Danielle Cohen Higgins - Chair 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
Chair Cohen Higgins provided an event announcement regarding Baynanza, the County’s annual Bay 
Clean up event, will be happening tomorrow, April 15.  
 
Chair Cohen Higgins welcomed three new appointed members to the board and provided each an 
opportunity for self introductions. County Commissioner Kevin Cabrera - D6; Commissioner Micky 
Steinberg- D4; and Kevin Cunniff, representative of the Miccosukee Tribe of Indians of Florida.    
 
Chair Cohen Higgins highlighted the groundbreaking event for the completion of the Biscayne Bay 
Coastal Wetlands Phase 1 project and the importance of the State and Federal governments’ work to 
finish the planning process for the Biscayne Bay Southern Everglades Ecosystem Restoration Project 
(BBSEER) a critical project to bring more fresh water to Biscayne Bay and that will be impacted by the 
recent Urban Development Boundary vote. 
 
Public Comment: 

• Laura Reynolds, Friends of Biscayne Bay - spoke about the need for protecting wetlands. She 
stated her disappointment to see 42 acres of wetlands lost to truck parking at the last BCC 
meeting.  Asks for the Board to see how wetlands can be protected moving forward.  She 
requests the Advisory Board to take up legislation to include more protective language in the 
CDMP.  In public water fronts and public parks.   

 
• Steve Leidner, Sierra Club of S. Florida - mentioned deconstruction, meaning removing 

development from wetlands and restoring wetlands to help clean water and restoring 
Biscayne Bay. He mentioned the need to use pervious surfaces to improve drainage during 
flooding.  

 



• Joshua Linenfelser, Miami Waterkeeper - spoke about the importance of septic to sewer 
conversions.  Expressed concerned about outdated sewer systems the 3,000 sanitary sewer 
overflow (SSOs) events in MDC since 2000.   

   
• Audrey Siu, Miami Waterkeeper - requested to work and support County staff as they develop 

code changes to update stormwater system standards and incorporate the FDEPs updated 
stormwater management standards for permitting to go further, fill gaps, include green 
infrastructure, and Low Impact Development (LID). Expressed concern about coral reefs not 
included in the Back Bay alternatives shared with the public by the USACE.  Reefs are the first 
line of defense and should be incorporated into the plans to attenuate storm surge.   
 

• Lauren Jonaitis, Tropical Audobon – spoke about the importance of wetland protections and 
requested the county consider similar code changes as in Martin County which protect 
wetlands and limits development.   

 
• Silvio Pupo - thanked the board for their service. Invited the public to the Climate roundtable 

on Earth Day to discuss the blue economy.   
  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA Commissioner Danielle Cohen Higgins - Chair 

DISCUSSION 

 
Chair Cohen Higgins asked the members of the public who requested certain policy actions to reach out 
to individual BCC members on the Board to request policy. 

Chair Cohen Higgins introduced Lisa Spadafina as the new DERM Director and invited her to say a few 
words.  Ms. Spadafina, stated she is looking forward to working with the Advisory Board and will 
support Board member initiatives. 

 
Chair asked for approval of agenda. Adopted unanimously. 
 

 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES Commissioner Danielle Cohen Higgins - Chair 

DISCUSSION Approval of Meeting Minutes from 2/23/23 meeting. Adopted unanimously. 

 

LEGISLATIVE UPDATE Jess McCarty, Executive Assistant County Attorney, CAO 

PRESENTATION 

Chair Cohen Higgins welcomed and thanked Jess McCarty for his hard work in Tallahassee during the 
legislative session. 

Jess McCarty provided an overview of the County priorities related to Biscayne Bay via Zoom. 

The House and Senate passed the budget last week –and both have allocated $20M in the Biscayne Bay 
Water Quality Grant Program. It is expected to move forward early in budget conference.  

HB 1379 is the department package for the DEP relating to the wastewater grant program, wastewater 
treatment, septic tanks and other onsite sewage treatment and disposal systems (OSTDSs), sanitary 
sewer services, and the acquisition of state lands. With language included in SB 1632 and HB 1379 to 
expand the wastewater grant program, it is anticipated that bills filed by our delegation members to 
expand to include the county in the wastewater grant program will not proceed further in the session. 
These bills are HB 827 by Representatives Fabian Basabe (R – North Bay Village) and Vicki Lopez (R – 
Coral Gables) and SB 458 by Senator Ana Maria Rodriguez (R – Doral).     



Staff is tracking appropriation requests for septic to sewer (Shenley Park $2M, $875K Biscayne Shores 
Stormwater Pumps, $750K WASD C2P request). 

 

CONNECT 2 PROTECT – Septic to Sewer Presentation   
(Requested by Chair Cohen Higgins) Amanda Kinnick, Chief of Staff, WASD 

PRESENTATION 

Amanda Kinnick, Chief of Staff WASD provided an update on the status of Connect 2 Protect, funding, 
and public outreach on behalf of WASD Director, Roy Coley. 

Ms. Kinnick provided an overview of how conventional septic systems work.  Septic tanks rely on dry 
soil conditions to function properly. There are 120,000 tanks county wide. There are 9,000 that are 
vulnerable to comprise. We expect that to grow to 14,000 by 2040.   

Benefits of connecting include protection of your homes, and reduction in the risk to public health, and 
the protection of our natural resources.   

The cost for connection depends. If there is a lateral near the home, then estimated cost is $15K to 
$20K, if we need to install the lateral the cost increases to $50K to $55K.   
Areas where the County is conducting projects: Little River, which is an Adaptation Action Area, (Phase I 
we are hoping to complete by 2025); various commercial corridors; and the Ojus Community which 
created a self-funding mechanism to pay for connections. 

The county is working first on the 9,000 septic tanks which are the most vulnerable and allocated $9M 
to implement in the next couple of years.  Tackling the areas with laterals first followed by most 
vulnerable. The heavy lifting will be Phase 2 (9,00 vulnerable tanks), and Phase 3 (remaining 90,000 
properties connected over the next 30 years).   

Another initiative which is managed by DERM is the Check 2 Protect Program which is a public 
education program designed to educate homeowners on the importance of septic tank maintenance 
and checking for any leaks or damage. 

Board Comment: 

Dr. Lirman (UM) – asked if the system has enough capacity to take on the new connections.  

WASD is currently working on a master plan and mentioned the $550M investment last year to improve 
the system.  

Chair Cohen Higgins – asked how the residents in the Little River area were being informed about the 
program and how to connect. 

WASD works conducting outreach and works with individual homeowners to form agreements.  

Chair Cohen Higgins – asked if it would be helpful to develop legislation to streamline homeowner 
agreements over the long term and if there is any progress with the idea of a GOB to help with the 
connection costs. 

WASD shared that the GOB is for the commercial area but could not provide information on a future 
GOB.  

Dr. Crowl (FIU) – asked if WASD was working with DEP and SFWMD regarding public education around 
water quality.  

RER DERM is engaged in that educational effort.  

Comm. Steinberg – agreed that education is important to help residents understand why connecting is 
critical and mentioned that D4 is working on policy to help residents in the Bayshore area with the 
private adaptation costs. 

 
 

  



Miami-Dade Back Bay Coastal Storm Risk Management Study 
(Requested by MDC Office of Resilience, standing item) James Murley - Chief Resilience Officer 

PRESENTATION 

CRO, Jim Murley provided an update and shared progress on new conceptual alternatives and shared 
information on recent charrettes and public meetings and presented a slide outlining the various 
projects and programs sponsored by the US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), South Florida Water 
Management District (SFWMD), Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) and the County 
itself.  Miami-Dade County may have the most projects and federal investments for coastal storm risk 
and sea level rise management of any in the country. 

CRO reminded board members of the project timeline and the fact that we are in a pause to develop 
new concepts for alternatives to present to the Mayor and communities. The time has been spent to 
gather public input and from partners.  

There are two concepts being evaluated: the non-structural and the Atlantic option or structural 
alternative.  Non-structural is focused on flood proofing, to reduce damage of incoming water such as 
strengthening and elevating buildings, critical infrastructure and homes.  The structural solution is the 
Atlantic Coastline alternative that includes gray infrastructure and nature-based solutions along the 
outside of the barrier islands to provide multiple lines of defense.   

Board Comment:    

Kevin Cunniff (Miccosukee) – mentioned Hurricane Ian and all structures not built to MDC code 
standards were destroyed. Asked about code changes or retrofits to better harden existing structures. 

CRO shared that the county recently upgraded the code and flood criteria, and adaptation work is being 
done in public housing.  

Chair Cohen Higgins – mentioned the current rain event and asked what is being done to mitigate 
flooding to prepare for future extreme events.  

DERM Director shared that they are working with SFWMD to manage flood protection measures, 
operations of canal levels, installation of Smart Covers to help predict issues in the system and is hosting 
a municipal workshop to coordinate ahead of the rainy season.  

Chair Cohen Higgins – asked Rachel Silverstein, Miami Waterkeeper to provide information regarding 
their water quality reports.  

Dr. Silverstein provided an overview of their water quality reports. They take information from the 
Florida Department of Health Healthy Beaches, Surfrider, and 22 monitoring stations in Miami and 
Broward. The public is alerted via phone applications and online. During the recent rains, all sites 
exceeded water quality levels during the recent rain event because this was the season's first flush. She 
emphasized the need for more green areas for the water to go as the stormwater systems reach 
capacity due to sea level rise.   

Dave Doebler – asked if the current code is sufficient to provide wetland protections as the County 
develops nature-based solutions for the Back Bay study.  

CRO - the County is evaluating current nature-based solutions, but the process can always be improved.   

Mr. Cederberg (FES) – pleased with how the Back Bay process is moving and asked the County to ensure 
that Back Bay and all other planning efforts are coordinated.  

 

FDEP GRANT PROJECT UPDATE 
(Standing agenda item) Pamela Sweeney, Sr. Water Scientist, RER-DERM 

PRESENTATION 

Vice-Chair Vince Lago – assumes gavel and requests that Pamela Sweeney present the update on FDEP 
Grant Projects.  

Pamela Sweeney, Sr. Water Scientist, DERM provided an overview of the state grants focusing on 
reducing nutrient pollution by testing tech solutions in stormwater and canals. Working on restoration 
projects in the Snapper Creek and Environmentally Endangered Lands (EEL) areas to address water 
quality, aquifer recharge, saltwater intrusion, and habitat loss. 

She shared the challenges dealing with stormwater and discussed how working at point of discharge 
and what can we be doing differently; preventing stormwater from entering primary and secondary 



canals even with limited public land and how can water be stored and make use of land to recharge the 
aquifer, as well as the use of technology. 

Stormwater pilot projects are being implemented in the Larchmont Park area spearheading 
technologies which have never been used before.  The project is in the Little River Adaptation Action 
Area.   

The restoration of Snapper Creek in the historic creek bed which feeds into Biscayne Bay. In recent 
years Snapper Creek has contributed to a macro algal bloom in Biscayne Bay.  It has been choking out 
the sea grass in that southern area. The projects in the upland area on EEL land including planting trees, 
and native plants restoring the native habitat which helps improve water quality and prevents flooding 
in the area.  The project is the most recent grant awarded by FDEP.   

The Smart Cover project is another project funded by the state. The covers are already showing results 
and the County discovered that in the Wagner Creek area near the health district, had old 
infrastructure discharging dirty water into the waterway and were able to eliminate that connection. 
Smart Covers can detect and prevent Sanitary Sewer Overflows (SSOs) from happening.     

DERM is currently drafting an agreement with FIU and UM to facilitate access to their state-of-the-art 
laboratories and data.  Allowing the county to create 3-D models to understand how pollution moves 
through the watershed and identify where the stormwater look the worst. We know where the 
hotspots are: Little River, Miami River, and Biscayne Canal so the focus is in those areas to gather more 
data to address pollution sources. 

The data collected will feed into the Reasonable Assurance Plan (RAP) currently in development.  

 

REASONABLE ASSURANCE PLAN UPDATE 
(Standing agenda item) Irela Bagué, Chief Bay Officer   

PRESENTATION 

Vice-Chair Lago, invited the Chief Bay Officer (CBO), Irela Bagué, to provide the update on the  RAP.   

The CBO welcomed new board members and thanked everyone for their service.  She shared that one 
of the top recommendations of the Biscayne Bay Task Force (BBTF) is to find hot spots of pollution in 
the Bay and then set nutrient reduction targets working with partners to reduce the nutrient loads in 
those areas.  That is where the projects previously mentioned and others will be implemented by 
municipal partners, together with DEP and EPA under the Clean Water Act.   

CBO shared that together with DERM we hosted FDEP RAP staff from Tallahassee on a two-day tour of 
pollution hot spots, grant-funded projects coinciding with the rain event. The CBO reminded the board 
that this work should have started 20 years ago and therefore solutions must move quickly working 
collaboratively with the state Biscayne Bay Commission.    

CBO shared that FDEP has approved the outline of the RAP Plan of Study (POS). The consultants are 
currently working on the POS draft, gathering data and information to submit for approval by DEP and 
EPA. The next steps include outreach to stakeholders (municipalities).  

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS Mayor Vince Lago- Vice Chair 

DISCUSSION 

Vice-Chair Lago opened the floor for Future Agenda items and discussion. 

Dave Doebler – asked about the status of the stormwater legislation to update Chapter 24 the 
BBWMAB had approved last year.  Would like to get an update on the legislation. 

DERM Director stated that a draft report is awaiting approval to address the directive. In addition, 
policy is being finalized on impervious surface areas, and the stormwater operating permit is still being 
worked on. DERM will present the impervious surface draft ordinance at the next meeting. 

Vice Chair Lago – suggested bifurcating the items for the next meeting. 

Comm. Streitfeld (NBV) – mentioned that the City is currently working on stormwater code changes 
and asked for the draft of the impervious ordinance so they can review and be consistent with the 
County.  

Vice Chair Lago – asked for the draft so his City staff could review it as well.   



DERM Director will share the draft and asked for NBV's draft policy.  

Lourdes Gomez, RER Director shared the County is working with the CBO to host a Municipal Water 
Quality Workshop again this year.  The plan to present the draft impervious ordinance at the workshop. 

Dave Doebler – asked to work with staff to develop a policy for "no net loss" of wetlands and bring it 
back to the Board for review.   

Comm. Streitfeld – in support. 

Vice Chair Lago – mentioned Coral Gables purchase of private lands to create more green spaces and 
would like to share the funding mechanism, Transfer Development Rights (TDR) with the RER Director.  

RER Director shared that she has met with Ms. Reynolds and explained to her that Martin County has a 
different situation compared to Miami-Dade County regarding urban development. All interests need 
to be balanced but are willing to look at designating certain areas for wetlands.  

Comm. Streitfeld – asked about the 42 acres of wetland lost to truck parking.  

RER Director explained the issue was related to addressing illegal parking in the south.   

Dave Doebler – made a motion to formalize the process whereby if wetlands are given in one area that 
they are restored or recovered in another area.  Protecting wetlands is so important.   

John Alger – shared that in his experience there is already a process for mitigation for wetlands. In the 
agricultural areas they do have a mitigation requirement and sometimes it’s not acre per acre put it 
may take 4 acres to mitigate a single acre of wetlands and are running into problems with this. 

Vice-Chair Lago called for a motion to be made directing staff to review ordinance on wetlands.   

Comm. Streitfeld seconded the motion. 

CJ Wahl, County Attorney, clarified the role and powers of the BBWMAB. The Board cannot instruct 
staff, only the BCC can do so. Board members can work on policy if the staff agrees.  

Vice Chair Lago – suggested that Mr. Doebler work with the CBO to draft policy and bring it back for 
discussion at the next board meeting.  

CBO agreed to work with Mr. Doebler and RER DERM to schedule a sunshine meeting to develop 
language that can be brought back to the BBWMAB for review. 

Dr. Todd Crowl – mentioned that a private citizen made a substantial gift to FIU to purchase and 
operate a water quality buoy.  While the university has already recognized his contribution, Dr. Crowl 
asked that the BBWMAB also recognize these actions of a private citizen who cares about Biscayne Bay.     

CJ Wahl, County Attorney, described the county process for recognition of this individual. The advisory 
Board could ask the BCC to make such a recognition but the Advisory Board cannot do so. 

Commissioner Kevin Cabrera, stated that any of the County Commissioners would be willing to help 
with this recognition and ask him to reach out to any of them. 

Dave Doebler – shared concerns that many policy decisions and matters that affect the watershed are 
not coming to the Board. He asked if the BBWMAB ordinance could be amended to add items prior to 
BCC action.  

CAO explained that any changes to the powers of the BBWMAB would require an amendment to the 
code by the BCC.   

 

ADJOURNMENT Mayor Vince Lago - Vice Chair 

DISCUSSION 
Vice-Chair Lago adjourned the meeting and on behalf of Chair Cohen Higgins.  He thanked the public 
for comments, the staff for all their work, and board members for taking the time to attend. 

 



Approved Mayor Agenda Item No. 

Veto __________ 

Override __________ DRAFT 2023-06-23 

ORDINANCE NO.         

ORDINANCE RELATING TO ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROTECTION AND ZONING; AMENDING DIVISION 1 OF 
ARTICLE I, DIVISION 1 OF ARTICLE III, AND DIVISION 1 OF 
ARTICLE IV OF CHAPTER 24, ARTICLE I OF CHAPTER 33, 
AND SECTIONS 24-25, 33-52, AND 8CC-10 OF THE CODE OF 
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA; REVISING 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES 
RELATING TO DRAINAGE AND IMPERVIOUS SURFACES; 
REVISING DEFINITIONS AND CROSS-REFERENCES; 
AMENDING SECTION 24-38; REVISING BASIN WHERE 
FUNDS MAY BE EXPENDED; MAKING TECHNICAL 
CHANGES; PROVIDING FOR ENFORCEMENT BY CIVIL 
PENALTY; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, INCLUSION IN 
THE CODE, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, this Board desires to accomplish the purposes outlined in the accompanying 

memorandum, a copy of which is incorporated herein by reference, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA: 

Section 1. The memorandum referenced in the above recital is incorporated in this 

ordinance and is approved. 

Section 2. Division 1 of Article I of Chapter 24 of the Code of Miami-Dade County, 

Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows:1 

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL 

DIVISION 1. - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

*    *  * 

1 Words stricken through and/or [[double bracketed]] shall be deleted.  Words underscored 
and/or >>double arrowed<< constitute the amendment proposed.  Remaining provisions are now 
in effect and remain unchanged. 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 2  
 
 
 

 

 
Sec. 24-5. - Definitions.  
 

In construing the provisions of this chapter, where the 
context will permit and no definition is provided herein, the 
definitions provided in chapter 403, Florida Statutes, as may be 
amended from time to time, and in rules and regulations 
promulgated thereunder, as may be amended from time to time, shall 
apply. The following words and phrases when used in this chapter 
shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section: 

 
*    *  * 

 
(30) Basin B shall mean those lands within the following 

geographical boundary>>, all of which are designated as a 
cut and fill basin<<: 

 
Section 13, 14, and 24, Township 52 South, Range 39 East, 
less those portions thereof lying southwesterly of the 
southwesterly right-of-way of Okeechobee Road, and 

 
Sections 16, 17, 18 and 20, Township 52 South, Range 40 
East, and 

 
Section 19, Township 52 South, Range 40 East, less that 
portion thereof lying southwesterly of the northeasterly 
right-of-way of the Miami Canal and northwesterly of the 
northwesterly right-of-way of the Florida Turnpike, and 

 
That portion of Section 21, Township 52 South, Range 40 
East, lying westerly of the westerly right-of-way of Interstate 
I-75, and 

 
Section 30, Township 52 South, Range 40 East, less that 
portion thereof lying northwesterly of the northwesterly 
right-of-way of the Florida Turnpike, and less those portions 
included within the right-of-way of the Miami River, and 

 
Section 31, Township 52 South, Range 40 East, and 

 
Sections 6, 7, 8, 17, 18 and 19, Township 53 South, Range 
40 East, and 

 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 3  
 
 
 

 

Section 30, Township 53 South, Range 40 East, less the 
southeast one quarter thereof. 

 
All lying in Miami-Dade County, Florida. 
 

*    *  * 
 
(32) >>Bird Drive Basin shall mean those lands within the 

following geographical boundary, all of which are 
designated as a cut and fill basin: 

 
All those sections and fractions of Sections of the west one 
half of Township 54 South, Range 39 East and the west one 
quarter of Sections 3 and 10 which lie south of the Tamiami 
Trail, except Sections 21, 28 and 33 and except that portion 
of Section 31 which lies south of North Kendall Drive (State 
Road 94). 

 
(33)<< Bird Drive Everglades Wetland Basin shall mean the 

wetlands described below: 
 

That portion of Section 3, Township 54 South, Range 39 
East lying south of U.S. Highway 41 (Tamiami Trail) and 
lying west of S.W. 143 Avenue north of S.W. 9th Terrace 
and lying west of S.W. 144 Avenue south of S.W. 9th 
Terrace; those portions of Sections 4, 5, and 6, Township 54 
South, Range 39 East lying south of U.S. Highway 41 
(Tamiami Trail); that portion of Section 10, Township 54 
South, Range 39 East lying west of S.W. 144 Avenue; that 
portion of Section 31, Township 54 South, Range 39 East, 
lying north of S.W. 88th Street (North Kendall Drive); and 
Sections 7, 8, 9, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 29, 30, and 32, Township 
54 South, Range 39 East.  
 

*    *  * 
 
>>(44) Building permit shall mean a permit pursuant to the Florida 

Building Code.<< 
 

*    *  * 
 
>>(70)<<[[(68)]]  County Flood Criteria Map shall be as defined in 

chapter 11C. 
 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 4  
 
 
 

 

>>(71) County public works department or public works 
department  means the public works department as defined 
in section 2-99. 

 
(72) County public works manual shall mean the manual of 

minimum standards for public works construction 
promulgated by the County public works department 
pursuant to section 2-100.<< 
 

*    *  * 
 
>>(79)<< [[(75)]] Department shall mean the Division of 

Environmental Resources Management of the Miami-Dade 
County Department of Regulatory and Economic 
Resources or successor department responsible for 
administration of this chapter. 

 
>>(80)<< [[(76)]]  Detention [[of stormwater]] shall mean >>a 

facility or system that delays or reduces the discharge of a 
given volume of stormwater runoff into surface waters 
through<< the collection and temporary storage of 
>>said<< stormwater [[in a manner that will provide 
treatment through physical, chemical or biological 
processes,]] with subsequent [[gradual]] release [[of the 
stormwater]] >>into the ground or to surface waters<< [[in 
a manner not to exceed the design limitations of the 
temporary storage area]].  >>There are two type of 
detention,  wet and dry:  
(i) Wet detention is storage of stormwater at or below 

the design mean high water table. 
(ii) Dry detention is storage of stormwater one foot 

above the design mean high water table.  
(iii) Examples of detention systems are excavated or 

natural depression storage areas, pervious pavement 
with subgrade, or above ground storage areas.<<  

 
>>(81)<< [[(77)]]  Detention pond shall mean >>detention that 

consists of<< an open basin >>that<< [[which intercepts 
the groundwater table and]] is used for >>storage to reduce 
stormwater peak flow rates or pollutants<< [[the temporary 
storage of stormwater runoff]]. 

 
[[(78) Developed land shall mean land upon which structures or 

facilities have been constructed. 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 5  
 
 
 

 

 
(79)]] >>(82)<<  Developed property shall mean any parcel of land 

>>that<< [[which]] contains >>or is proposed to contain 
development<< [[an impervious area]]. 

 
>>(83)<< [[(80)]]  Development shall mean>>:<< any 

[[proposed]] activity or material change in the use or 
character of land, including, but not limited to, the 
placement >>or construction<< of any structure, utility, 
fill, >>impervious area,<< or site improvement on 
land[[,]]>>;<< [[and]] >>or<< any act >>that<< [[which]]  
requires a building permit.  >>Development includes, 
without limitation, mining, dredging, filling, grading, 
paving, excavating, drilling operations, or permanent 
storage of materials or equipment.<< 

 
>>(84)<< [[(81)]]  Dewater shall mean to>>: 

(a)<< discharge off-site or on-site water from an 
excavation, underground structure, >>trench,<< or 
depressed land>>; or 

(b) discharge surface water during storm events from an 
on-site lake to an on-site or off-site canal, ditch, or 
other surface waters, or from one location to another 
in a similar manner; provided, however, that 
discharging to an on-site lake that is already 
permitted pursuant to this chapter to do so or that is 
already connected in accordance with this chapter 
to a conveyance canal or to surface waters shall not 
be classified as dewatering<<. 

 
*    *  * 

 
>>(86)<< [[(83)]]  Director shall mean the primary official that 

has been delegated responsibility to administer the 
Department, with duties created pursuant to this chapter. 
Except where expressly provided or where context dictates 
otherwise, the term "Director" includes the Director's 
designee. 
 

*    *  * 
 
>>(93)<< [[(90)]]  Drainage area shall mean a geographically 

defined land surface having topographical features such that 
stormwater runoff will be directed towards a >>drain or 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 6  
 
 
 

 

common receiving point or area<< [[drainage structure or 
natural waterway]].  
 

*    *  * 
 
[[(95) Dry exfiltration shall mean an underground stormwater 

disposal system where the invert of a perforated 
conveyance pipe is placed at or above the average October 
groundwater level as set forth in the Miami-Dade County 
Public Works Manual, Part II, Section D4, dated September 
1, 1974, as may be amended from time to time.  

 
(96) Dry infiltration or dry retention shall mean the process 

which occurs when stormwater is conveyed to a grassed 
swale or open basin for disposal into the ground where the 
bottom of the grassed swale or open basin is at least one 
(1.0) foot above the average October groundwater level as 
set forth in the Miami-Dade County Public Works Manual, 
Part II, Section D4, dated September 1, 1974, as may be 
amended from time to time.]]  
 

*    *  * 
 
>>(109)<< [[(108)]] Equivalent residential unit >>(ERU)<< 

[[(sometimes hereinafter referred to as "ERU")]] shall 
mean the statistically estimated average horizontal 
impervious area of residential developed property per 
dwelling unit. This estimated average is calculated by 
dividing the total estimated impervious area of four [[(4)]] 
residential categories, to wit, single family, mobile home, 
multifamily and condominium, by the estimated total 
number of residential dwelling units. For the purposes of 
this article>>,<< each dwelling unit, [[to wit,]] >>whether 
a<< single family residence, mobile home, >>unit in a<< 
multifamily >>building<<, or condominium >>unit<<, is 
assigned one [[(1)]] ERU. 
 

*    *  * 
 
>>(111)<< [[(110)]]  Exfiltration [[of stormwater]] shall mean 

the process by which>>: 
(a)<< stormwater flows out of a trench or a buried 

perforated pipe >>or structure<< into the 
surrounding ground>>; or 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 7  
 
 
 

 

(b) in the context of a WCTS, wastewater flowing from 
the WCTS (including sewer service connections) 
into the ground through such means as defective 
pipes, pipe joints, connections, or manholes or other 
defects or perforations in the system<<. 

 
*    *  * 

 
>>(113)<< [[(112)]] Facility shall mean anything that is built or 

purchased to make an action or operation easier or to serve 
a special purpose. 

 
*    *  * 

 
>>(165)<< [[(164)]] Impervious area >>or impervious surface<< 

shall mean>>: 
(a)<< a [[division of the horizontal ground]] surface >>area 

that does not allow penetration by water, 
including<< [[which is incapable of being penetrated 
by rainwater. This shall include]], but not [[be]] 
limited to, all structures, roof extensions, slabs, 
patios, porches, driveways, sidewalks, parking areas, 
swimming pools, athletic courts, and decks>>; or 

(b) a surface area that has a permeability rate of less than 
0.8 inches per hour (2 cm per hour) for penetration 
of water, including, without limitation: pavers and 
pavement that are not certified by the manufacturer 
to have a minimum permeability rate of 0.8 inches 
per hour (2 cm per hour); highly compacted ground 
or fill; and clays and other fine-grained soils.<< 

 
*    *  * 

 
>>(170)<< [[(169)]] Infiltration means>>: 

(a)<< the [[distribution]] >>permeation<< of water [[on 
the surface of land]] to [[permit the water to]] soak 
through the vegetation and soil [[into the 
groundwater.]]>>; or 

(b) in the context of stormwater, this definition also 
includes, but is not limited to, the vertical 
downward flow of stormwater through the ground 
into the Biscayne Aquifer or the flow of 
groundwater into the surface waters in canals and 
ditches; or 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 8  
 
 
 

 

(c)<< [[(170)  Infiltration, when used]] in the context of a 
WCTS, >>this definition also includes, but is not 
limited to, the entry of<< [[shall mean]] water, other 
than wastewater, [[that enters]] >>into<< the 
WCTS (including sewer service connections [[and 
foundation drains]]) from the ground through such 
means as defective pipes, pipe joints, connections, 
or manholes >>or other defects or perforations in 
the WCTS<<. 

 
[[(170) Infiltration of stormwater shall mean the process by which 

stormwater flows vertically downward through the ground 
into the Biscayne Aquifer.]] 

 
*    *  * 

 
(210) >>Non-structural impervious surface improvement shall 

mean the installation or placement of pavement, slab, pavers, 
or other materials or items that reduce the pervious area, as 
determined by the Director; or the compaction of ground or 
fill in a manner that results in an impervious surface 
conducive to stormwater runoff, as determined by the 
Director.<< [[Nonstructural controls of stormwater shall 
mean any activity designed to reduce pollutant loading of 
stormwater including, but not limited to, pollution 
prevention management policies and public education 
programs.]] 
 

 *    *  * 
 
(212) North Trail Basin shall mean >>those lands<< [[a basin]] 

located in western Miami-Dade County >>within the 
following geographical boundary, all of which are 
designated as a cut and fill basin<< [[comprising the 
following lands]]: 

 
Sections 33, 34, 35 and 36, Township 53 South, Range 39 
East and, Government Lots 1, 2, 3 and 4, Townships 53-54 
South and, those portions of Sections 1, 2, 3 and 4, 
Township 54 South, Range 39 East, which lie north of the 
north right-of-way line of the Tamiami Canal. 

 
*    *  * 

 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 9  
 
 
 

 

 (218) On-site shall mean within the boundaries of a facility 
location, property>>,<< or site>>,<< including those sites 
spatially separated by public or private rights-of-way. 

 
(219) On-site retention shall mean >>retention<< [[the 

containment and disposal]] of stormwater >>on-site<< 
[[runoff by means other than positive drainage within the 
limits of the project site]]. 

 
*    *  * 

 
(224) >>Outfall shall mean the discharge point of water or other 

liquids into any surface water, retention system, or other 
land, and outfall shall include, but not be limited to, the 
outlet of a pipe, where it discharges into a lake, canal,  
wetland, other surface water, or retention system. 

 
(225)<<  Overflow [[outfall]] shall mean>>: 

(a)<< a drainage structure >>or pipe<< designed to 
discharge to an on-site or off-site location any excess 
stormwater runoff after an initial runoff volume has 
been retained on-site[[.]]>>; or 

(b) in the context of a WCTS,<< [[(225) Overflow shall 
mean]] the discharge of sewage from any publicly or 
privately-owned or operated sanitary sewer 
collection system or wastewater treatment facility to 
the surface of the ground or to a surface water. 

 
*    *  * 

 
>>(235)  Pervious area shall mean a surface area that allows the 

penetration of water. Examples of pervious areas include but 
are not limited to: green areas and swales with soils 
classified as Group A in the Soil Survey promulgated by the 
United States Department of Agriculture Natural Resources 
Conservation Service (NRCS) and with a minimum 
permeability rate of 0.8 inches per hour (2 cm per hour); and 
pavers and pavement that are certified by the manufacturer 
to have a minimum permeability rate of 0.8 inches per hour 
(2 cm per hour). This definition shall not include impervious 
areas that minimally or incidentally allow the penetration of 
water, whether by design or defect. 

 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 10  
 
 
 

 

(236)<<[[(234)]]  Point of discharge (POD) for a heated-water 
discharge shall mean either that point at which the effluent 
physically leaves its carrying conduit (open or closed) and 
discharges into the waters of the State, or a specific point 
designated by the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection for that particular thermal discharge. 

 
*    *  * 

 
>>(239)<< [[(237)]]  Positive drainage shall mean the direct 

disposal of stormwater runoff by overland sheet flow>>,<< 
or through a channel ditch[[,]] or closed pipe system>>,<< 
into an on-site or off-site surface water body such as, but not 
limited to, a lake, lagoon, river, canal, bay>>,<< or the 
ocean. 

 
*    *  * 

 
>>(268)  Retention shall mean a facility or system designed to 

prevent the discharge of a given volume of stormwater 
runoff.  There are two types of retention, open and closed:   
(a) In open retention, water levels are drawn down by 

evaporation, groundwater recharge through seepage 
or infiltration, or both evaporation and recharge.  

(b) There are two types of open retention, wet and dry:  
(i) Open wet retention is storage of stormwater 

at or below the design mean high water table. 
(ii) Open dry retention is storage of stormwater 

above the design mean high water table.  
(iii) Examples of open retention systems are 

excavated or natural depression storage 
areas, pervious pavement with subgrade, or 
above ground storage areas.  

(c) Closed retention consists of a closed storage tank or 
other enclosure that is constructed to retain water 
during rain events and that uses vactor trucks or other 
pumping systems to evacuate the stored water. 

 
(269)<< [[(266)]]  Retention pond shall mean >>retention that 

consists of<< an open basin >>that<< [[which intercepts the 
groundwater table and]] is used for the storage and ultimate 
disposal of stormwater runoff by evaporation and seepage.  
 

*    *  * 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 11  
 
 
 

 

 
>>(280)<< [[(277)]]  Sanitary Sewer Overflow (SSO) shall mean 

any discharge of wastewater to >>ground, groundwater or 
surface water, including<< waters of the United States or the 
State>>,<< from any WCTS >>or wastewater treatment 
facility<< in the County through a point source or sources 
not pemritted in any NPDES permit, as well as any overflow, 
spill, or release of wastewater to public or private property 
from a WCTS >>or wastewater treatment facility<< that 
may not have reached >>ground water or surface water, 
including<< waters of the United States or the State, 
>>and<< including all building backups. 

 
*    *  * 

 
>>(282)<< [[(279)]]  Seepage shall mean >>the flow of water or 

any other liquid through the soil or ground.<< [[the 
introduction of water into a subsurface excavation from 
which the water enters the groundwater.  Said excavation 
shall not exceed a depth of two (2) feet below the average 
yearly highest groundwater elevation described in the 
Miami-Dade County Public Works Manual as same may be 
amended from time to time.]] 

 
[[(280)]]>>(283)  Slab<< [[Seepage trench or slab]] covered 

trench shall mean a trench cut into a rock strata supporting 
a reinforced concrete slab and providing the necessary wall 
and bottom areas required for exfiltration of stormwater. 
 

*    *  * 
 
>>(309)<<[[(306)]]  Storm sewer shall mean [[any conduit]] 

>>stormwater infrastructure that<< [[which]] is designed to 
carry stormwater runoff. 

 
>>(310)<<[[(307)]]  Stormwater infrastructure shall mean [[the 

structural, nonstructural or natural features of]] >>a facility 
or system or natural feature on<< a parcel of land or 
watershed >>that<< [[which collect, convey, store, absorb, 
inhibit, treat, use, reuse, or otherwise affect]]>> collects, 
conveys, stores, absorbs, inhibits, treats, uses, reuses, or 
otherwise affects<< the quantity or quality of stormwater>>, 
including facilities or systems that convey stormwater to 
natural features<<. 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 12  
 
 
 

 

 
>>(311)<<[[(308)]]  Stormwater management area shall mean that 

portion of a tract of land >>or parcel that<< [[which]] shall 
be left at natural grade (unfilled), filled to an elevation no 
less than four [[(4)]] inches above the seasonal high water 
table, or excavated below natural grade>>,<< for the 
purposes of[[:]] managing water >>that<< [[which]] results 
from rainfall, storing water in the Biscayne Aquifer>>, or<< 
[[and]] recharging the Biscayne Aquifer. 

 
>>(312)<<[[(309)]] Stormwater management program shall 

>>be<< [[mean the same term]] as defined >>in section 
403.031<< [[by Section 403.031(14)]], Florida Statutes, as 
[[same]] may be amended from time to time. 

 
>>(313)<<[[(310)]]  Stormwater management system shall >>be<< 

[[mean the same term]] as defined >>in section 403.031<< 
[[by Section 403.031(15)]], Florida Statutes, as [[same]] 
may be amended from time to time. 

 
>>(314)<<[[(311)]] Stormwater runoff shall mean the excess 

rainfall precipitation >>that<< [[which]] runs over the 
ground surface when the rate of rainfall precipitation 
exceeds the rate of >>stormwater<< infiltration [[of 
stormwater into the ground]]. 

 
>>(315)<<[[(312)]]  Stormwater shall mean the water >>that<< 

[[which]] results from rainfall. 
 
>>(316)<<[[(313)]]  Stormwater utility shall >>be<< [[mean the 

same term]] as defined [[by Section 403.031(16)]] >>in 
section 403.031<<, Florida Statutes, as [[same]] may be 
amended from time to time. 

 
>>(317)<<[[(314)]]  Structural controls of stormwater shall mean 

>>a facility or system consisting of<< physical devices >>or 
infrastructure<< used to control stormwater>>,<< including, 
but not limited to, levees, dikes, pump stations, >>piping, 
structures,<< spillways, locks, embankments, roadways, 
lakes, retention ponds >>or other retention systems<<, and 
detention ponds >>or other detention systems<<. 

 
*    *  * 

 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 13  
 
 
 

 

>>(321)  System shall include anything that is a facility.<< 
 

*    *  * 
 
>>(350)<<[[(346)]]  Water Control Map or Water Control Plan 

shall mean the official map or maps of Miami-Dade County 
that show existing and proposed water-control facilities and 
their general locations and that are adopted by the Board of 
County Commissioners and recorded in a Plat Book or other 
official record book of the public records of Miami-Dade 
County. 

 
*    *  * 

 
>>(355)<<[[(351)]]  WCTS shall mean Wastewater Collection and 

Transmission Systems, including all pipes, force mains, 
gravity sewer lines, pump stations, manholes and 
appurtenances thereto, designed to collect and convey 
sewage (domestic, commercial and industrial) to a 
wastewater treatment plant. 

 
*    *  * 

 
[[(356)  Wet retention shall mean the disposal of stormwater runoff 

to a storage basin having a bottom elevation lower than one 
(1) foot below the average October groundwater level as set 
forth in the Miami-Dade County Public Works Manual, Part 
II, Section D4, dated September 1, 1974, as may be 
amended from time to time.]]  
 

*    *  * 
 
Sec. 24-6. - >>Department<< Director [[of the Miami-Dade 
County Department of Environmental Resources 
Management]]—Office created; appointment; term; exempt 
from classified service and merit system; compensation; 
assistants; operating procedures.  
 
>>(1)<<  The office and position of Director of the >>Department, 

as defined in section 24-5<< [[Miami-Dade County 
Department of Environmental Resources Management]], is 
hereby created and established.   

>>(2)<<  The Director [[of the Miami-Dade County Department of 
Environmental Resources Management,]] shall be appointed 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 14  
 
 
 

 

by and serve at the will of the County >>Mayor<< 
[[Manager]].  

>>(3)<<  Such Director shall be chosen by the >>Mayor<< 
[[Manager]] on the basis of [[his]] qualifications and 
experience in the field of air and water pollution controls[[,]] 
and [[the Director]] shall>>: 
(a)<< be a professional engineer >>licensed<< 

[[registered]] to practice in the State of Florida 
[[under the provisions of Chapter 471, Florida 
Statutes,]]>>;<< or [[he shall]]  

>>(b)<<  become >>so licensed<< [[registered]] within 
>>18<< [[eighteen (18)]] months after the date of 
appointment[[,]]>>;<< or [[he shall]] 

>>(c)<<  have at least a bachelor's degree from an accredited 
university in a field >>that<< [[which]] will, in the 
>>Mayor’s<< [[Manager's]] judgment, technically 
qualify >>the Director<< [[him]] to discharge the 
duties imposed by this chapter.  

>>(4)<<  The Office of Director [[of the Miami-Dade County 
Department of Environmental Resources Management,]] 
shall constitute a position exempted from the classified 
service of Miami-Dade County and the State merit system.  

>>(5)<<  The salary for such position shall be fixed by the Board of 
County Commissioners.  

>>(6)<<  The Director shall serve under the administrative 
jurisdiction of the County >>Mayor<< [[Manager]] and 
subject to the direct supervision of the County >>Mayor<< 
[[Manager]].  
>>(a)<<  The County >>Mayor may<< [[Manager shall]] 

appoint such assistants to the Director as may be 
necessary in order that the duties of the Director may 
be performed properly. 

>>(b)<<  The organization and administrative operating 
procedures of such County office and its relationship 
and coordination with other County departments 
[[shall]] >>may<< be established and placed in 
effect, from time to time, by administrative order of 
the County >>Mayor<< [[Manager]], but the 
>>Mayor<< [[Manager]] shall not have any power to 
modify the duties imposed upon the Director by this 
chapter or the procedures prescribed herein for the 
performance of such duties.  

 
Sec. 24-7. - Same—Duties and powers.  



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 15  
 
 
 

 

 
The duties, functions, powers, and responsibilities of the 

Director [[of the Miami-Dade County Department of Environmental 
Resources Management,]] shall include the following:  

 
*    *  * 

 
Sec. 24-15.  Plan approval required >>before issuance of 
building permit or where no building permit is required<<. 
 
(1) Intent.  It is the intent and purpose of this section to require 

that all new facilities, equipment>>,<< [[and]] 
processes>>, and other improvements enumerated in this 
section (collectively referred to as “projects”) that are<< 
constructed or operated after the dates delineated in 
>>section<< [[Section]] 24-4 or as otherwise provided in 
this chapter shall comply with the requirements herein 
contained, and that any enlargement, expansion, or addition 
to existing facilities also shall comply with the 
requirements herein contained>>, regardless of whether a 
building permit for such project is required<<.   
>>(a) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, no 

County or municipal officer, agent, employee, or 
board shall approve, grant, or issue any building 
permit, including, without limitation, early start, 
phased, or preliminary approvals, for any project 
subject to this chapter unless the Director has 
approved the building permit application for 
compliance with this chapter and as provided herein. 

(b)<<  Any building permit issued by the County or a 
municipality in violation of the provisions of this 
chapter is hereby determined to be void. 

>>(c) Plans shall be submitted in accordance with sections 
24-15.1 through 24-15.4. 

(d) Applicant’s burden.  The applicant shall bear the 
burden of demonstrating compliance with the 
applicable requirements and shall submit all required 
information in a format acceptable to the Director in 
accordance with this section.<< 

 
(2) >>Wastewater<< [[Waste water]] facilities.   

>>(a)<< It shall be unlawful for any person to >>do any of 
the following regarding wastewater facilities without 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 16  
 
 
 

 

first obtaining the prior written approval of the 
Director: 
(i)<< commence the installation, extension, or 

operation of any sewerage system>>,<< 
including collection, conveyance, 
transmission>>,<< or treatment or waste 
treatment facility>>,<< or >>of<< any 
industrial waste disposal facility [[without 
first obtaining the prior written approval of 
the Director or the Director's designee. It 
shall be unlawful for any person to]]>>; or 

(ii)<< make any enlargement, alteration>>,<< or 
addition to any sewerage system>>,<< 
including collection, conveyance, 
transmission>>,<< or treatment>>, to any<< 
[[or]] waste treatment facility>>,<< or 
>>to<< any industrial waste disposal 
facility[[,]]>>;<< or 

>>(iii)<< commence the construction>>, 
enlargement, alteration, or addition<<  of any 
>>other project that involves the generation 
of discharge of effluents or<< [[such systems 
or facilities,]] that will reasonably be 
expected to be a source of water pollution 
[[without first obtaining the prior written 
approval of the Director or the Director's 
designee]].  

>>(b)<<  No building permit involving the generation or 
discharge of effluents>>, including domestic 
sewage,<< shall be issued [[by the County or any 
municipality]] unless the application for a building 
permit has been approved by the Director [[or the 
Director's designee]].   

>>(c) The Director shall not approve an application for a 
building permit that requires an extension of a 
sanitary sewer system until the permits necessary for 
construction of the sanitary sewer system have been 
issued.   

(d) This<< [[The provisions of this]] section shall not 
>>be construed to require the extension of a sanitary 
sewer system where it would serve only a single 
building<< [[apply to facilities discharging only 
domestic wastes to a utility or non-utility]] through a 
single lateral approved by the Director [[or the 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 17  
 
 
 

 

Director's designee]], provided that a FOG control 
device is not required pursuant to >>section<< 
[[Section]] 24-42.6.  

>>(e)<< Notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions of 
this section shall apply to facilities discharging only 
domestic wastes to a utility or non-utility through a 
single lateral approved by the Director [[or the 
Director's designee]] if the facilities have or require 
a FOG control device in accordance with 
>>section<< [[Section]] 24-42.6.   

>>(f) Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary,<< 
[[Provided that]] after January 25, 1974, the Director 
shall not approve an application for an interim 
package sewage treatment plant unless directed to do 
so by the Environmental Quality Control Board after 
a public hearing pursuant to notice.  For the purpose 
of this subsection, an interim package sewage 
treatment plant shall include all domestic 
>>wastewater<< [[waste water]] treatment facilities 
that are not included in the regional treatment system 
as described in the approved 1973 Water Quality 
Management Plan.   

 
(3) Air facilities.  

>>(a)<<  It shall be unlawful for any person to make any 
major or substantial alteration, enlargement>>,<< or 
addition to any existing facility, equipment>>,<< or 
operation, or to commence the construction or 
operation of any new facility[[,]] that may be a 
source of air pollution as herein defined, without first 
obtaining the prior written approval of the plans, 
equipment>>,<< or processes thereof by the Director 
[[or the Director's designee]].  

>>(b)<<  No building permit shall be issued [[by the County 
or any municipality]] unless the application therefor 
or the plans for construction of the proposed facility 
have been approved by the Director [[or the 
Director's designee]].  

>>(c)<< The provisions of this chapter >>related to air 
facilities<< shall not apply to >>heating equipment 
or comfort space heating for<< individual family 
dwellings or multiple-family dwellings of not more 
than four [[(4)]] units [[in respect to heating 
equipment or comfort space heating]].   



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 18  
 
 
 

 

 
(4) Potable water facilities.  

>>(a)<<  It shall be unlawful for any person to enter into or 
let a contract for>>,<< or to commence the 
installation, extension, alteration>>,<< or operation 
of>>,<< any public water supply facility without first 
obtaining the prior written approval of the Director. 

>>(b)<<  No building permit involving a demand on a public 
water supply shall be issued [[by the County or any 
municipality]] unless the application for a building 
permit or plans for construction thereof have been 
approved by the Director [[or the Director's 
designee]].   

 
(5) [[Aboveground storage facilities.]] >>Storage facilities, 

aboveground or underground.<<  
>>(a)<<  It shall be unlawful for any person to install, repair, 

modify, expand, replace>>,<< or permit, cause, 
allow, let>>,<< or suffer the installation, repair, 
modification, expansion>>,<< or replacement of any 
aboveground >>or underground<< storage facility, 
without first obtaining the prior written approval of 
the Director [[or the Director's designee.]]  

>>(b)<<  No building permit shall be issued [[by the County 
or any municipality]] unless the application therefor 
or the plans for construction of the proposed 
aboveground >>or underground<< storage facility 
show the >>Director’s<< approval [[of the Director 
or the Director's designee]].  

>>(c)<< The Director[[, or the Director's designee,]] shall 
issue such written approval only upon receipt of 
[[formal]] engineering plans, which are signed and 
sealed by a professional engineer >>licensed<< 
[[registered]] in the State of Florida and which plans 
detail that the [[aboveground]] storage facilities 
specified in said plans shall be constructed in 
compliance with the requirements of this chapter, 
>>chapter 62-761 of the Florida Administrative 
Code for underground storage facilities, or chapter<< 
[[Chapter]] 62-762 of the Florida Administrative 
Code>>for above ground storage facilities,<< and 
the referenced standards contained therein.  

>>(d)<< After receipt of written approval [[from the 
Director, or the Director's designee]], the owner or 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 19  
 
 
 

 

operator of the [[aboveground]] storage facility shall 
notify the Department a minimum of two working 
days prior to the commencement of installation, 
repair, modification, expansion>>,<< or replacement 
of any [[aboveground]] storage facility.  

>>(e)<< The installation, repair, modification, 
expansion>>,<< or replacement shall be subject to 
inspection by the Department to determine 
compliance with the approved plans and applicable 
laws and ordinances.   

 
(6) [[Underground storage facilities.  It shall be unlawful for 

any person to install, repair, modify, expand, replace or 
permit, cause, allow, let or suffer the installation, repair, 
modification, expansion or replacement of any underground 
storage facility, without first obtaining the prior written 
approval of the Director or the Director's designee.  No 
building permit shall be issued by the County or any 
municipality unless the application or the plans for 
construction of the proposed underground storage facility 
have been approved in writing by the Director or the 
Director's designee.  The Director, or the Director's designee, 
shall issue such written approval only upon receipt of formal 
engineering plans, which are signed and sealed by a 
professional engineer registered in the State of Florida and 
which plans detail that the underground storage facilities 
specified in said plans shall be constructed in compliance 
with the requirements of this Chapter, Chapter 62-761 of the 
Florida Administrative Code and the referenced standards 
contained therein.  After receipt of written approval from the 
Director, or the Director's designee, the owner or operator of 
the underground storage facility shall notify the Department 
a minimum of two (2) working days prior to the 
commencement of installation, repair, modification, 
expansion or replacement of any underground storage 
facility.  The installation, repair, modification, expansion or 
replacement shall be subject to inspection by the Department 
to determine compliance with the approved plans and 
applicable laws and ordinances. 

 
(7)]] Onsite Sewage Treatment and Disposal Systems (OSTDSs).  
 

*    *  * 
 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 20  
 
 
 

 

>>(7) Non-structural impervious surface improvements; 
procedures applicability to municipalities.  
(a) Notwithstanding any provision of this Code or any 

municipal code or regulation, on and after January 1, 
2024, no non-structural impervious surface 
improvements shall be permitted or installed on any 
parcel or property in the incorporated or 
unincorporated areas without first obtaining the 
Director’s prior approval pursuant to section 24-42, 
except as provided in this subsection.  

(b) For non-structural impervious surface improvements 
on single-family and duplex properties within a 
municipality, the Director’s review and approval 
pursuant to section 24-42 is not required only where 
all of the following are complied with: 
(i) The non-structural impervious surface 

improvement is not accompanied by any 
other development. 

(ii) The respective municipality has adopted its 
own ordinance regulating non-structural 
impervious surface improvements on single-
family and duplex properties. 

(iii) The Director has issued a written 
determination that the municipal ordinance is 
at least as stringent as section 24-42.8. 

(iv) The municipality continues to enforce its 
previously adopted ordinance.   

(v) The Director’s review and approval shall 
continue to be required in accordance with 
this chapter until the Director has issued such 
written determination.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, the Director’s review and 
approval is not required while the municipal 
ordinance is under review where the 
following conditions are satisfied: 
1. The municipality had adopted an 

ordinance regulating non-structural 
impervious surface improvements for 
single-family and duplex properties 
prior to [insert effective date of this 
ordinance]; and 

2. The municipality sends to the 
Director and the Clerk of the Board of 
County Commissioners by December 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 21  
 
 
 

 

31, 2023, a written notice of its intent 
to seek the Director’s review and 
approval of such ordinance pursuant 
to this subsection; and 

3. The municipality submits its 
ordinance for review within 60 days 
of the written notice. 

4. Upon issuance of a written 
disapproval, the Director’s review 
and approval shall be required for all 
non-structural impervious surface 
improvements on single-family and 
duplex properties within the 
municipality.         

(vi) Proposed amendments to a municipal 
ordinance after the Director’s written 
determination shall require review pursuant 
to this subsection prior to the municipality 
enacting or applying such changes.   

(vii) Notwithstanding any written approval of a 
municipal ordinance pursuant to this 
subsection, the Director’s review and 
approval in accordance with this chapter will 
nevertheless be required, in addition to any 
applicable municipal approval, if the 
Director, in the Director’s sole discretion, 
issues a written determination that such 
review and approval is required based on one 
or more of the following reasons: 
1. A portion of this subsection is not 

complied with; or 
2. The Director determines that the 

municipal regulation does not satisfy 
the requirements of this subsection; or 

3. The Director determines that the 
municipality has approved a non-
structural impervious surface 
improvement on a single-family or 
duplex property that: 
a. does not comply with the 

adopted municipal ordinance; 
or 

b. that is causing or has caused 
flooding or stormwater 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 22  
 
 
 

 

control issues on any adjacent 
or adjoining property or on the 
public right-of-way. 

(viii) For purposes of this subsection, a 
“townhouse” as defined in the 2020 Florida 
Building Code, Building, 7th Edition, shall 
be considered a single-family property.    

 
(8) Stormwater infrastructure.  Notwithstanding any provision 

to the contrary, on and after January 1, 2024, no 
development, improvement, construction, or alteration of a 
parcel or property that contains stormwater infrastructure 
shall be permitted until the Director’s prior written approval 
has been obtained pursuant to this chapter, except as 
provided in subsection (7) above.   
 

(9) Other projects that reduce pervious area.  Notwithstanding 
any provision to the contrary, no County or municipal 
officer, agent, employee, or board shall approve, grant, or 
issue any building permit for any project that is not otherwise 
enumerated in this section and that decreases pervious area 
unless the Director's prior written approval of the application 
has been obtained pursuant to this chapter.  Projects subject 
to this requirement include, without limitation, swimming 
pools, whether for residential or non-residential use, and 
paving and drainage permits.<< 

 
Sec. 24-15.1.  Procedure for approval of plans. 
 
(1)   APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL. >>Applications 

required by section 24-15 or other provisions of this chapter, 
as applicable,<< [[Application]] for approval of plans >>to 
construct, extend, or alter a facility, system, equipment, 
process, or other improvement (collectively referred to 
herein as a “project”)<< [[required hereunder]] shall be 
made on forms prescribed for such purpose >>by<< and 
filed with the Director.  
>>(a)<< Such application shall be signed by the person 

seeking >>approval<< [[to install, extend or alter the 
facility involved]] or a duly authorized 
representative vested with lawful power to bind the 
applicant.  

>>(b)<< Upon receipt of such application and supporting 
data, the Director shall review all data and render a 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 23  
 
 
 

 

decision on the acceptability of the [[facility]] 
>>project in accordance with the applicable 
standards set forth in this chapter<<. 

  
(2)   REQUIRED INFORMATION. Each such application shall 

be accompanied by the following data and information 
>>submitted in a form acceptable to the Director<<:  
(a)  Report of engineer.  A comprehensive >>signed and 

sealed<< engineer's report describing the project, the 
basis of design>>,<< including design data, and all 
other pertinent data necessary to give an accurate 
understanding of the work to be undertaken and the 
reason therefor.  Such report shall contain a 
certificate of a >>professional<< [[registered]] 
engineer >>licensed in the State of Florida<< 
certifying that in [[the]] >>such engineer’s<< 
professional opinion>>, the operation of the<< [[of 
such registered engineer the facility or]] project will 
fully comply with the requirements of this chapter 
and the rules and regulations promulgated hereunder, 
and will not cause or tend to cause any pollution as 
herein defined. 

 (b)  >>Information related to stormwater infrastructure.   
(i) For any application that includes stormwater 

infrastructure, an engineering report that 
includes at least the following shall be 
submitted: 
1. a detailed description of the  

stormwater infrastructure and any 
alterations proposed; 

2. basis of design with design data and 
calculations;  

3. hydrology and hydraulic data and 
information, including storm duration 
and frequency;  

4. geotechnical and other signed and 
sealed field test results quantifying 
infiltration, percolation, seepage, 
drawdown, upwelling, mounding, 
flow rates, and other properties of the 
ground, soil, subsurface,  aquifer, and 
wells for the project and adjacent 
parcels and land, as applicable for the 
study; 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 24  
 
 
 

 

5. topographical, aerial and other signed 
and sealed surveys for the project and 
adjacent parcels and land, as 
applicable for the study;  

6. assumptions; and  
7. all other pertinent information and 

data necessary to demonstrate that the 
proposed work is designed to comply 
with this chapter and engineering and 
scientific standards and principles.  

(ii) For purposes of this paragraph (b), 
engineering and scientific principles include, 
but are not limited to, the latest editions of: 
1. the County public works manual;  
2. the U.S. Department of Agriculture, 

Natural Resources Conservation 
Service, National Engineering 
Handbook;  

3. the South Florida Water Management 
District Environmental Resource 
Permit Applicant’s Handbook; and  

4. relevant publications of the National 
Oceanic and Atmospheric 
Administration and United States 
Geological Survey.  

(c) Construction drawings.  Construction drawings 
showing existing conditions and the proposed 
work<< [[Blueprints.  Blueprints or white prints of 
the drawings of the work to be done]] in sufficient 
detail >>to describe the project’s construction and 
to demonstrate compliance with this chapter.  Each 
sheet of the drawings shall be signed, sealed, and 
dated by the engineer of record.<< [[necessary to 
make it clear to the contractor constructing the 
facility or project exactly what work is to be 
accomplished. 

(c)]]>>(d)<< Specifications.  Complete >>technical<< 
specifications in sufficient detail necessary to 
supplement the drawings and specify the work and 
the methods by which it is to be accomplished. 

>>(e) Operating Procedures<< [[(d) Processes]].  A 
description of all [[processes]] >>operating 
procedures<< proposed to be utilized in connection 
with the operation of the [[facility or]] project 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 25  
 
 
 

 

sufficient to >>demonstrate the project will operate 
in compliance with<< [[indicate whether or not 
such processes will reasonably comply with the 
requirements of]] this chapter. 

[[(e)]]>>(f)<< Additional data. Such additional data and 
information as may be reasonably required by the 
Director [[or the Director's designee]], including, 
but not limited to, Baseline Monitoring Reports, 
Compliance Reports, or any report required for 
compliance pursuant to the Federal Pretreatment 
Regulations. 

 
Sec. 24-15.2. - [[Registered]]>>Licensed<< engineer required. 
 
>>(1)<<  The drawings, specifications>>,<< and other data 

submitted with >>an<< [[the]] application >>required by 
this chapter<< [[filed hereunder]] shall be prepared by 
>>one or more<< [[a competent]] professional [[engineer 
or]] engineers [[registered]] >>licensed in the State of 
Florida.<< [[under the provisions of Chapter 471, Florida 
Statutes.  The plans and other data]] 

 
>>(2) All materials<< required to be submitted >>by a Florida 

licensed engineer shall be signed and sealed pursuant to 
chapter 61G15-23 of the Florida Administrative Code or 
other applicable state regulation<< [[with the application 
shall have affixed thereto the names and certificate and 
registration number of the engineer preparing the same]].  

 
>>(3) Any<< [[The Director shall not accept or receive any]] 

application that does not comply with [[the requirements of]] 
this section >>shall be deemed incomplete and subject to 
denial as such<<. 

 
*                      *                      * 

 
Sec. 24-15.4. - Technical Reports>>;<<[[/]] Professional 
Engineer[[/]] >>or<< Professional Geologist required.  
 

All applicable portions of the technical plans, reports, 
proposals or studies required >>pursuant to subsection<< [[as set 
forth in Section]] 24-44(2) shall be signed and sealed by a 
[[licensed]] professional engineer >>licensed<< [[registered]] in the 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 26  
 
 
 

 

State of Florida or [[licensed]] professional geologist >>licensed<< 
[[registered]] in the State of Florida. 
 
Sec. 24-16. - Construction of >>certain projects<< [[waste water 
facility or air pollution abatement facility, or potable water 
facility]]. 

 
>>(1)<<  After approval of an application >>pursuant to section 24-

15 for a wastewater facility, air pollution abatement facility, 
or potable water facility<<, the person causing the 
installation or construction of the project [[or facility]] shall 
>>maintain records of the completed work.  In addition, this 
section shall also apply to applications approved pursuant to 
section 24-15 for stormwater management systems that are 
owned or operated by a municipality or other public entity 
that operates solely within Miami-Dade County, or owned, 
funded, or operated by or on behalf of a special taxing 
district, community development district or private property 
owners’ association that operates entirely within Miami-
Dade County and that owns or operates stormwater 
infrastructure that drains onto a public right-of-way. 

 
(2) Upon written request, the applicant or the person or entity 

responsible for a project subject to this section shall<< 
furnish the Director [[or the Director's designee]] with 
monthly reports>>, including a project closure report and as-
built plans, prepared, signed and sealed by a professional 
engineer licensed in the State of Florida,<< [[of a registered 
engineer]] certifying that the work to date has been 
accomplished in strict compliance with the approved plans, 
drawings>>,<< and specifications and that there has been no 
major or substantial deviation therefrom.  

 
>>(3)<<  If during construction, changes are proposed >>that<< 

[[which]] would materially alter the >>operation, capacity, 
configuration, functionality,  or<< quality characteristics of 
>>any of the following, then plans, drawings, reports, and 
specifications for such changes shall be prepared, signed, 
and sealed by a professional engineer licensed in the State of 
the Florida and submitted to the Director for approval before 
making any such changes: 
(a)<< the effluent of a >>sewerage system, industrial waste 

disposal, or other wastewater<< [[waste water]] 
facility>>; 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 27  
 
 
 

 

(b)<< [[, or which would materially alter]] the emission of 
air pollutants of an air pollution abatement 
facility>>; 

(c)<< [[or which would materially alter the quality 
characteristics of]] the effluent of a potable water 
facility>>; or  

(d) stormwater infrastructure or its ability to protect 
water quality or prevent stormwater runoff or 
flooding; or 

(e) a wastewater collection and transmission system 
(WCTS) or the quality characteristics of its 
effluent<< [[then plans and specifications for such 
changes prepared by a registered engineer shall be 
submitted to the Director or the Director's designee 
for approval before making such changes]].  

 
>>(4) Only those changes that have received the Director’s prior 

written approval shall be implemented. 
 
(5)<< The Director shall have the right at any reasonable time to 

enter upon the project for the purpose of making inspections 
of the work[[,]] and may require reports and additional 
information at any stage of construction. 

 
>>(6)<<[[(2)]]  It shall be unlawful for any person causing the 

installation or construction of the project [[or facility]] to 
deviate from the conditions of the >>Director’s<< approval 
[[of the Director or the Director's designee]] without the 
>>Director’s<< prior written approval [[of the Director or 
the Director's designee]].  

 
>>(7) Any deviation from the approved plans, drawings, 

operations, or specifications may constitute grounds for 
revocation of the Director’s approval and any permits reliant 
on such approval.<< 
 

*    *  * 
Sec. 24-21. - Operating records.  
 
>>(1)<< The owner >>and<< [[or]] operator of any [[facility]] 

>>project subject to subsections 24-15(2)-(5) or (8), other 
than stormwater management systems that are subject to, or 
expressly exempted in, section 24-21.1,<< [[installed or 
operating under the provisions of this chapter]] shall 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 28  
 
 
 

 

>>each be responsible for maintaining and keeping<< 
[[cause to be maintained and kept]] such records [[of the 
operation data, and control tests,]] as may be required by 
the Director to indicate the operating efficiency of such 
facility, and to show whether or not such facility is causing 
pollution >>or contamination of air, water, soil, or 
property<< as [[herein]] defined[[, and to]]>>in this 
chapter or flooding or runoff in violation of this chapter.   
(a) This provision shall not be construed to require the 

owner and operator to each maintain a set of 
duplicate records, but if one party does not produce 
records as required, both parties shall be responsible 
for any such violation.   

(b) Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter to the 
contrary, non-structural impervious surface 
improvements shall not be subject to this section 
unless operating records are required as a condition 
of a class permit.  

  
(2) Such records shall include: a description of the operation; 

control tests; material usage; safety data sheets; equipment 
operation logs and records; maintenance records; repair 
receipts; disposal and manifest receipts; and any additional 
records that are required to be maintained by an approval or 
permit granted pursuant to this chapter. 

 
(3) The owner and operator shall<< furnish all such information 

and data concerning the operation of the >>project<< 
[[facility]] as the Director may require from time to time.  

 
>>(4) Records shall be maintained for a minimum of three years, 

unless a longer retention period is required pursuant to 
conditions of an operating permit or local, state, or federal 
regulations. 

 
(5)<< In addition to the above, any industrial user, as defined in 

>>section 24-42.4<< [[Section 24-42.4(1)(c) of this 
Code]], shall comply with the reporting and record keeping 
requirements set forth in 40 CFR 403.12, Federal 
Pretreatment Regulations>>, as may be amended<<.  

 
>>Sec. 24-21.1.  - Stormwater management systems; records 
and recertification required.  
 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 29  
 
 
 

 

(1) Records required.  By January 1, 2025, the following shall 
be responsible for submitting to, and in the form prescribed 
by, the Director electronic files of the asset inventory and 
maintenance reports of its respective stormwater 
infrastructure in accordance with the following: 
(a) Each municipality or other public entity that 

operates solely within Miami-Dade County and that 
owns or operates stormwater infrastructure serving 
a public right-of-way shall submit such  records for 
such entity’s entire stormwater management 
system; and 

(b) Each special taxing district, community 
development district, and private property owners’ 
association that operates entirely within Miami-
Dade County and that owns or operates stormwater 
infrastructure that drains onto a public right-of-way 
shall submit such required records for all privately 
owned stormwater infrastructure that is owned, 
funded, or operated by or on behalf of the respective 
district or association 

(c) This section shall not apply to public entities, such 
as the Florida Department of Transportation, that 
also own and operate stormwater infrastructure 
outside of Miami-Dade County. 

(2) Recertification required.  Each public entity, special taxing 
district, community development district, and private 
property owners’ association that is subject to subsection 
(1) shall also be responsible for obtaining from the Director 
recertification of all its respective stormwater 
infrastructure, in accordance with the following: 
(a) Each recertification application shall be submitted 

on a form prescribed by the Director. 
(b) Initial recertification shall be obtained by December 

31, 2026.  
(c) Subsequent recertification shall be obtained every 

ten years thereafter, unless the Director, in the 
Director’s sole discretion, determines that more 
frequent recertification is required for one or more 
of the following reasons:   
(i) significant alterations have been made to the 

respective stormwater infrastructure that is 
subject to this section; 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 30  
 
 
 

 

(ii) flooding has occurred in an area served by 
any portion of the respective stormwater 
infrastructure; 

(iii) any portion of the respective stormwater 
infrastructure is the subject of an 
enforcement action or notice of violation 
issued pursuant to this chapter; or  

(iv) corrective actions identified through the 
review of the engineering report required by 
this subsection have not been implemented 
within the specified timeframes.  

(d) The recertification application shall include a report 
that is signed and sealed by a professional engineer 
licensed in the State of Florida and assesses, 
following the engineer’s physical inspection, 
whether: 
(i) such stormwater infrastructure continues to 

operate in accordance with, and to otherwise 
comply with, the requirements of this 
chapter and the conditions and terms of any 
prior approval of said stormwater 
infrastructure pursuant to this chapter; and 

(ii) such stormwater infrastructure has caused or 
is anticipated to cause any pollution, 
contamination of air, water, soil, or property, 
flooding, or runoff in violation of this 
chapter or the rules or regulations 
promulgated hereunder. 

(e) For existing stormwater infrastructure for which no 
prior approval exists and where the applicant has 
demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Director that 
no approval was required at the time of installation, 
recertification shall nevertheless be required.  Such 
recertification shall consider whether such 
stormwater infrastructure has caused or is 
anticipated to cause any pollution, contamination of 
air, water, soil, or property, flooding, or runoff in 
violation of this chapter or the rules or regulations 
promulgated hereunder. 

(f) For stormwater infrastructure that does not fully 
comply with the requirements of this chapter or any 
prior approval of said stormwater infrastructure 
pursuant to this chapter, or for stormwater 
infrastructure that has caused or is anticipated to 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 31  
 
 
 

 

cause pollution, flooding, or runoff, the engineer’s 
report required by this subsection shall identify all 
such deficiencies and shall recommend corrective 
actions and a timeline by which such corrective 
actions will be accomplished. 

(g) Following the review of the recertification 
application, the Director shall issue: 
(i) a written recertification; or  
(ii) where the engineer’s report identifies 

deficiencies, a written determination 
providing the time to correct the deficiencies 
and to make such other modifications to the 
stormwater infrastructure as the Director 
deems necessary for the issuance of 
recertification.<< 

 
*    *  * 

 
Section 3. Section 24-25 of the Code of Miami-Dade County, Florida, is hereby 

amended to read as follows:  

Sec. 24-25. - Violations of rules and regulations of the State of 
Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Florida 
Department of Health, and the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency.  
  
(1) All of the following rules and regulations are hereby adopted 

and are incorporated herein by reference hereto as same may 
be amended from time to time:  
 

*    *  * 
 
>>(l)  Chapter 62-302 of the Florida Administrative 

Code.<< 
 

*   *  * 

Section 4. Section 24-38 of the Code of Miami-Dade County, Florida, is hereby 

amended to read as follows:  

Sec. 24-38. Miami-Dade Stormwater Compensation Trust 
Fund. 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 32  
 
 
 

 

 
(1) The Stormwater Compensation Trust Fund is hereby created 

for use in land acquisition and constructing, managing, 
operating or maintaining stormwater management areas 
within the Bird Drive [[Everglades Wetland]] Basin, and 
Basin B and the North Trail Basin. The Finance Director is 
hereby authorized and directed to establish the Stormwater 
Compensation Trust Fund and to receive and disburse 
monies in accordance with the provisions of this section.  
 

*    *  * 
 

(4) The Director shall only make disbursement from the 
Stormwater Compensation Trust Fund for the following 
purposes:  
(a) Acquisition, including by eminent domain, 

construction, management, operation or maintenance 
of stormwater management areas within the Bird 
Drive [[Everglades Wetland]] Basin, the North Trail 
Basin and Basin B as defined in Section 24-5 of the 
Code of Miami-Dade County, Florida.  

 
*    *  * 

 
 Section 5. Division 1 of Article III of Chapter 24 of the Code of Miami-Dade County, 

Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

ARTICLE III. - WATER AND SOIL QUALITY 
 
DIVISION 1. - WATER QUALITY, WASTEWATER AND 
SANITARY SEWER PRETREATMENT>>, AND 
STORMWATER-RELATED<< STANDARDS 
 
Sec. 24-42. - Prohibitions against water pollution.   

 
*    *  * 

 
(3) DISCHARGES AFFECTING WATER QUALITY AND 

PROHIBITION OF POSITIVE DRAINAGE.  
>>(a) Dewatering and discharges prohibited.<<  It shall be 

unlawful for any person to dewater or to discharge 
sewage, industrial wastes, cooling water and solid 
wastes, or any other wastes into the waters of this 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 33  
 
 
 

 

County, including but not limited to surface water, 
tidal salt water estuaries, or ground water in such 
quantities, and of such characteristics as:  
>>(i)<< [[(a)]]  May cause the receiving waters, after 

mixing with the waste streams, to be of 
poorer quality than the water quality 
standards set forth in >>subsection (4) 
below<< [[Section 24-42(4)]];  

>>(ii)<< [[(b)]]  To cause water pollution as defined 
in >>section<< [[Section]] 24-5; or  

>>(iii)<< [[(c)]]  To cause a nuisance or sanitary 
nuisance as herein defined>>; or 

(iv) To cause or allow sediment to discharge into 
waterways or off-site private or public 
properties or into stormwater infrastructure in 
a manner that causes sedimentation, impedes 
water flows, or degrades water quality<<.  

>>(b) Director’s approval required for positive 
drainage.<<  It shall be unlawful for any County or 
municipal officer, agent, employee>>,<< or board to 
approve, grant, or issue any permit, or permit, allow, 
let>>,<< or suffer the approval or issuance of any 
permit[[, which]] >>that<< authorizes positive 
drainage>>, including discharges or outfalls of 
stormwater,<< without the >>Director’s<< prior 
written approval [[of the Director or the Director's 
designee]]. The Director [[or the Director's 
designee]] shall issue a written approval only if the 
Director >>determines that all of the following are 
met:<< [[or the Director's designee determine, after 
reviewing data submitted by the applicant, that one 
(1) or more of the following conditions exist at the 
subject site:  

(d) Inadequate size, shape or topographic characteristics 
of the site to provide full on-site disposal of 
stormwater.  

(e) Extremely poor soil seepage capacity which prevents 
full on-site disposal of stormwater.  

(f)]]  
>>(i) If a<< [[An existing]] groundwater 

contamination plume >>exists<< under or in 
the vicinity of the subject site >>the plume<< 
[[which]] will >>not<< be adversely 
impacted by partial or full on-site stormwater 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 34  
 
 
 

 

disposal>>; and 
(ii) The water quality of the receiving water 

bodies will not be degraded as defined in this 
chapter; and 

(iii) Drainage is free of materials, whether solid or 
liquid, that could degrade the water quality of 
the receiving waters as defined in this 
chapter; and 

(iv) Drainage is free of materials from 
construction sites; and 

(v) Drainage does not form visible plumes; and 
(vi) Drainage does not run off onto other 

properties<<.  
 

(4)  WATER QUALITY STANDARDS FOR MIAMI-DADE COUNTY:  
 

Chemical, Physical 
or  
Biological 
Characteristic  

Fresh Water  
(water containing less  
than 500 ppm chlorides)  

Tidal Salt Water  
(water containing more  
than 500 ppm chlorides)  

Groundwater  

Dissolved oxygen 
(mg/l)  

5 ppm during at least 10 hours per 24-hour period, never less 
than 4 ppm, unless acceptable data indicate that the natural 
background dissolved oxygen is lower than the values 
established herein.  

—  

Biochemical 
oxygen demand 
(mg/l)  

Shall not exceed a value which would cause dissolved oxygen 
to be depressed below values listed under dissolved oxygen 
and in no case shall be great enough to produce nuisance 
conditions.  

—  

pH  6.0—8.5 1  6.0—8.5 1  6.0—8.5 1  

Floating solids, 
settleable solids, 
sludge deposits  

None attributable to 
>>stormwater,<< sewage, 
industrial wastes or other 
wastes.  

None attributable to 
>>stormwater,<< sewage, 
industrial wastes, or other 
wastes.  

—  

Oil and grease 
(mg/l)  

15 2  15 2  15 2  

Odor-producing 
substances  

None attributable to sewage, industrial wastes, or other wastes. 
Threshold odor number not to exceed 24 at 60°C as a daily 
average.  

—  

Temperature     

 Sources permitted 
prior to July 1, 
1972  

Shall cause no environmental damage.   



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 35  
 
 
 

 

Chemical, Physical 
or  
Biological 
Characteristic  

Fresh Water  
(water containing less  
than 500 ppm chlorides)  

Tidal Salt Water  
(water containing more  
than 500 ppm chlorides)  

Groundwater  

 Sources permitted 
after July 1, 1972  

3° >>F<< above ambient.  

(June—September) 2° >>F<< 
above ambient. (October—

May) 4° >>F<< above 
ambient.  

—  

Turbidity  

29 NTU above background>> outside of Outstanding Florida 
Waters as defined in 62-302.700 F.A.C. 
  
0 NTU above background within Outstanding Florida Waters 
as defined in 62-302.700 F.A.C.<<   

 

Ammonia (mg/l)  .5 ppm as N  .5 ppm as N  .5 ppm as N  
Chlorides (mg/l)  500 3  3  500 3  
Chromium (mg/l) 
total  

.05  .05  .05  

Copper (mg/l)  0.4  0.4  0.4  

Cyanides (mg/l)  None detectable  None detectable  
None 

detectable  
Detergents (mg/l)  0.5  Insufficient to cause foaming  0.5  
Fluoride (mg/l)  1.4 as F  10 as F  1.4 as F  
Lead (mg/l)  0.95  0.35  0.05  
Phenol (mg/l)  0.001  0.005  0.001  
Zinc (mg/l)  1.0  1.0  1.0  
Sulfides (mg/l)  0.2  1.0  0.2  
Coliform organisms 
(MPN/100 ml)  

1,000 4  1,000 5  50  

>>Escherichia coli 
bacteria 
(MPN/100ml) 

410 - - 

Enterococci 
bacteria 
(MPN/100ml) 

- 130 -<< 

Mercury  None detectable  None detectable  
None 

detectable  
Iron (mg/l)  0.3  0.3  0.3  
Arsenic (mg/l)  0.05  0.05  0.05  
Specific 
conductance  

500 micromhos per cm (fresh water). Not more than 100% above background, 
in waters other than fresh.  

Dissolved solids  Not to exceed 500 mg/l for monthly average or 1000 mg/l at any time.  
Radioactive 
substances  

Gross beta activity (in known absence of strontium 90 and alpha emitters), 
not to exceed 1000 micro-microcuries at any time.  



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 36  
 
 
 

 

Chemical, Physical 
or  
Biological 
Characteristic  

Fresh Water  
(water containing less  
than 500 ppm chlorides)  

Tidal Salt Water  
(water containing more  
than 500 ppm chlorides)  

Groundwater  

Other compounds 
>>, chemical, 
physical, or 
biological 
pollutants<< 

Other toxic or undesirable >>pollutants and<< compounds >>other<< than 
those listed above may occur in individual waste streams. Limits for these 
[[components]] >>pollutants or compounds<< may be specified by the 
Director based on the latest scientific knowledge concerning toxicity and 
adverse effect of the intended water use.  

Synergistic action  

Whenever scientific evidence indicates that a combination of pollutants 
>>exerts<< [[exert]] a greater effect than the individual pollutants, the 
Director may, on the basis of these findings, lower the herein established 
limits to the level necessary to prevent damage to the waters of the County.  

  
1 Shall not cause the pH of the receiving waters to vary more than 1.0 unit. 
When the natural background pH lies outside the limits established, the 
introduction of a waste shall not displace the pH of the receiving waters 
more than 0.5 pH units from these standards.  

2 Shall not be visible, defined as iridescence, or cause taste or odors.  

3 Waste shall not increase natural background more than 10 percent.  

4 Maximum MPN/100 ml in a surface water used as a drinking water 
supply shall be 100.  

5 Maximum MPN/100 ml in a tidal water from which shellfish are 
harvested for human consumption shall be 70.  

 
*    *  * 

 
>>Sec. 24-42.8 – Stormwater-related standards for Miami-Dade 
County.   
 
(1) Purpose and intent. The purpose and intent of this section is 

to safeguard public health, safety, and welfare and protect 
water quality by setting minimum requirements and 
standards for development and other activities and actions 
that may alter or affect the storage, runoff volume or flow, 
course, treatment, discharge, disposal, ponding or flooding, 
or quality of stormwater. 

 
(2) Definitions.  The following definitions shall apply to this 

section. 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 37  
 
 
 

 

(a) Best management practice (BMP) for stormwater 
treatment shall mean a practice or combination of 
practices determined by the Director, based on 
research, field-testing, and expert review, to be the 
most effective and practicable, including economic 
and technological considerations, of improving 
water quality by reducing excess nutrients and other 
pollutant loads in water. 

(b) Event mean concentration (EMC) shall mean the 
average pollutant concentration for a given land use, 
expressed in units of mass per volume (e.g., mg/L). 

(c) Impervious Area Setback (IAS) shall mean the 
minimum distance measured perpendicular from the 
property line inward to the closest impervious 
surface, excluding public rights-of-way. 

(d) Percent pervious area (PPA) shall mean the ratio 
calculated as the total pervious area divided by the 
total property area measured within the property 
lines, excluding public rights-of-way, expressed as a 
percentage. 

 
(3) General requirements and procedures.  The following shall 

govern all applications subject to this section. 
(a) Applicability.  This section applies to all 

development orders, including, without limitation, 
initial, intermediate, and final development orders as 
defined in chapter 33G and their municipal 
equivalents. 

(b) Stormwater evaluations. 
(i) In addition to the specific requirements set 

forth in this section regarding stormwater 
quantity and quality, all applications for 
development orders shall be evaluated to 
ensure prevention of stormwater seepage, 
runoff, discharge, or other greater impact 
compared to pre-development conditions, 
onto adjacent and adjoining parcels resulting 
from the proposed development.   

(ii) Evaluations shall be performed using 
generally accepted engineering and scientific 
standards and principles approved by the 
Director, as such standards and principles are 
defined in subsection 24-15.1.  

(c) Detention and retention. 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 38  
 
 
 

 

(i) Detention and retention systems shall not 
collect or store a quantity of stormwater that 
exceeds the design limitation of the storage 
area. 

(ii) Where retention is used: 
1. Dry retention shall be accomplished 

with a storage basin or swale having a 
bottom elevation at least one foot 
above the average October 
groundwater level as set forth in this 
section. 

2. Wet retention shall be accomplished 
with a storage basin having a bottom 
elevation at least lower than one foot 
below the average May groundwater 
level as set forth in this section or in 
the County public works manual, 
whichever is stricter.  

3. Excavations shall be no larger than 
necessary to accomplish retention, 
except as approved or required by the 
Director. 

4. Where the lake excavation standards 
set forth in chapter 33 are stricter than 
the requirements of this section, 
chapter 33 shall control. 

(iii) Where exfiltration is used, the trench or 
perforated conveyance pipe shall be placed at 
or above the average October groundwater 
level as set forth in this section or in the 
County public works manual, whichever is 
stricter. 

(iv) Where infiltration is used, the grassed swale 
or open basin to which stormwater is 
conveyed shall be at least one foot above the 
average October groundwater level as set 
forth in this section or in the County public 
works manual, whichever is stricter. 

(v) Where gravity injection is used, the well shall 
be more than two feet below the average 
yearly highest groundwater elevation as set 
forth in this section. 

(vi) Where pressure injection is used, the 
maximum head on the well shall not exceed 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 39  
 
 
 

 

8 feet NGVD or as otherwise permitted by the 
Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection. 

(d) Wastewater collection and transmission systems.  To 
protect stormwater quality, a wastewater collection 
or transmission system shall not be designed, 
constructed, placed, or used on land where 
stormwater can pond or flood, unless such system is 
designed to be watertight and is approved by the 
Director.  

(e) Pollutant loading.  Pre- and post-development 
pollutant loading calculations, which may be 
performed through modeling, shall be submitted for 
the Director’s review and approval and shall include 
existing and proposed best management practices for 
stormwater treatment.  Calculations shall be signed 
and sealed by a professional engineer licensed in the 
state of Florida.  

(f) Pre-existing wastewater collection or transmission 
systems, non-structural impervious surface 
improvements, or stormwater infrastructure, 
including outfalls.  Notwithstanding any provision to 
the contrary, wastewater collection or transmission 
systems, non-structural impervious surface 
improvements, and stormwater infrastructure, 
including outfalls, that were lawfully installed prior 
to [insert effective date of ordinance] and that are not 
thereafter proposed to be enlarged, altered, added to, 
or otherwise modified, shall not be required to 
comply with this subsection except in the following 
circumstances: 
(i) For a wastewater collection or transmission 

system, the Director determines that the 
system is located in an area subject to 
ponding or flooding, is not watertight, and 
does not otherwise adequately prevent 
inflows. 

(ii) For a non-structural impervious surface 
improvement, the Director determines that 
the improvement has caused substantial 
stormwater runoff or discharge onto an 
adjacent parcel not approved for stormwater 
retention pursuant to this chapter. 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 40  
 
 
 

 

(iii) For stormwater infrastructure, including an 
outfall, the Director determines that such a 
facility is causing violations of water quality 
standards set forth in this chapter.  

(iv) The Director shall provide written notice of 
the deficiencies to the owner of the subject 
property and, where applicable, the 
wastewater collection or transmission system 
or stormwater infrastructure, and shall order 
the submission, for the Director’s review and 
approval, of: 
1. plans demonstrating how the 

deficiencies are to be corrected; and 
2. after implementation of the approved 

plans, plans demonstrating that the 
deficiencies have been corrected.  

(v) Plans required pursuant to this subsection 
shall comply with the requirements of 
division 1 of article I for submission of plans.  

(g) Compliance with other regulations.  No provision of 
this section shall be construed to permit a less 
stringent design standard than that required by other 
applicable regulations. 
 

(4) Minimum stormwater standards for all development 
applications or approvals. On and after January 1, 2024, the 
following shall govern installation, replacement, or 
expansion of a non-structural impervious surface 
improvement and all other development applications or 
approvals on any parcel or property. 
(a) General requirements: 

(i) Non-structural impervious surface 
improvements shall not cause stormwater 
runoff onto adjacent parcels that are not 
designed and are not approved by the 
Director to receive such runoff. 

(ii) All improvements shall be reviewed prior to 
approval to ensure that post-development 
stormwater impacts and runoff are limited to 
pre- levels at the site boundary. A signed and 
sealed engineering report will be required 
from the applicant for review and approval by 
the Director. 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 41  
 
 
 

 

(iii) Stormwater impacts and runoff levels may be 
calculated based on peak flow, volume, or a 
combination of the two 

(iv) The applicant shall demonstrate that the 
volume of runoff from the proposed 
improvement will be controlled by retaining 
runoff on site, infiltrating the runoff, ensuring 
that the volume of runoff during all storms 
greater than half of the two-year event 
remains constant, or a combination of such 
mechanisms. 

(v) For purposes of this subsection: 
1. A “townhouse” as defined in the 2020 

Florida Building Code, Building, 7th 
Edition, shall be considered a single-
family property. 

2. A “system” means a facility, or one or 
more separate facilities, structures, 
devices, equipment, or appurtenances 
that manage stormwater.  

(vi)  Lowest site elevation shall be harmonized 
with the grades of adjacent and abutting 
parcels, except that the Director may approve 
onsite dry storage areas and stormwater inlets 
that are located no more than 12 inches below 
the minimum elevations of the County Flood 
Criteria map. 

 
(b) Single-family and duplex residences under certain 

conditions.  This paragraph shall govern individual 
single-family or duplex lots that are that are not part 
of a subdivision application and are not subject to a 
stricter water quantity requirement by other 
applicable County or State regulation.  For such lots, 
prior written approval by the Director shall be 
required pursuant to this section, except under certain 
circumstances for non-structural impervious surface 
improvements on lots in municipalities and only to 
the extent provided in section 24-15.  Applications 
pursuant to this paragraph shall comply with 
subparagraph (a) above and all of the following:   
(i) Stormwater quantity.  Lots shall retain the 

runoff from a 10-year/15-minute storm event 
with zero off-site discharge.  The following is 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 42  
 
 
 

 

considered equivalent to a 10-year/15-minute 
storm event with zero off-site discharge 
retention. 
1. For lots with an area of 5,500 square 

feet or less: 
a. a minimum of 5 feet of 

pervious area setback on a 
minimum of 3 sides of the 
property, with a 6-inch-deep 
swale along the property 
perimeter with slopes of 1:1, 
and a minimum of 20 percent 
of pervious lot area; or 

b. a minimum of 2.5 feet of 
pervious area setback on a 
minimum of 2 sides of the 
property and 10 feet of 
pervious area setback on a 
minimum of 1 side, with a 6-
inch-deep swale along the 
property perimeter with 
slopes of 1:1, and a minimum 
of 20 percent of pervious lot 
area. 

2. For lots larger than 5,500 square feet: 
a. a minimum of 5 feet of 

pervious area setback on a 
minimum of 3 sides of the 
property, with a 6-inch-deep 
swale along the property 
perimeter with slopes of 1:1, 
and a minimum of 25 percent 
of pervious lot area; or 

b. a minimum of 2.5 feet of 
pervious area setback on a 
minimum of 2 sides of the 
property and 10 feet of 
pervious area setback on a 
minimum of 1 side, with a 6-
inch-deep swale along the 
property perimeter with 
slopes of 1:1, and a minimum 
of 25 percent of pervious lot 
area. 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 43  
 
 
 

 

3. The elevations along the perimeter of 
the property should match the 
existing elevations of the adjacent 
properties. 

4. If the proposed grading raises the 
property more than 1.5 feet compared 
to the elevations of the adjacent 
properties, a retaining wall or 
equivalent feature shall be required. 

5. Site grading shall direct stormwater 
away from buildings and shall 
prevent stormwater from running off 
to or discharging onto an adjacent 
parcel not approved for stormwater 
retention 

6. Where an existing or proposed site 
boundary elevation could allow 
runoff or discharge onto an adjacent 
property that has not been approved 
for stormwater retention pursuant to 
this chapter, retaining walls or other 
features to prevent offsite runoff shall 
be provided, subject to the Director’s 
approval. 

(ii) Stormwater quality.  Green areas, swales, 
pervious pavers, pervious pavement, dry 
shallow exfiltration trenches, retention 
systems, or similar infrastructure or other 
development as may be acceptable to the 
Director shall be utilized to satisfy the  
minimum stormwater retention onsite. 

(iii) To meet the requirements set forth in 
subparagraphs (i) and (ii) above,  the 
following shall not be located within the 
impervious area setback and shall not be 
included in calculations of minimum 
pervious area required by this section: 
structures; nonstructural impervious surface 
improvements; installations or improvements 
that do not qualify as a previous area; or other 
impediments to stormwater infiltration, 
including, without limitation, over-
compaction of soils. 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 44  
 
 
 

 

(iv) The area from the property line to the 
impervious area setback shall be pervious, to 
prevent stormwater runoff and discharges 
onto adjacent parcels and land. 

(v) The improvement will not cause or let 
stormwater to run off or discharge onto 
adjacent parcels, properties, land, or surface 
water bodies, except for public rights-of-way, 
as determined by the Director.  

(vi) Administrative adjustments authorized.  
Notwithstanding any provision to the 
contrary, where existing site conditions 
preclude full compliance with this section, 
the Director is authorized to approve an 
alternative design that complies with 
applicable state and federal requirements and 
achieves the highest level of water quality. 

(vii) For existing single-family or duplex 
residences, an application shall not be 
required to comply with the stormwater 
quality and quantity standards set forth above 
where the application does not include, as 
determined by the Director: a non-structural 
impervious surface improvement; or any 
other improvement that increases impervious 
area on the lot or that is anticipated to cause 
pollution, contamination, flooding, or runoff. 

(viii) Single-family or duplex residences that are 
part of a subdivision application or are 
subject to stricter stormwater quantity  
requirements by other applicable County or 
State regulation shall be governed by 
paragraph 4(c). 

 
(c) All other developments and improvements.  

Applications for all other developments and non-
structural impervious surface improvements shall 
demonstrate compliance with the following 
stormwater quantity and quality standards in addition 
to the general requirements of paragraph (4)(a). 
(i) Stormwater Quantity.  

  



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 45  
 
 
 

 

1. The Director may approve off-site 
discharge to an adjacent parcel 
approved for stormwater retention. 

2. Onsite retention systems shall be 
designed for a minimum of a 10-year, 
12-hour storm event with zero off-site 
discharge unless a higher retention 
standard is required to meet other 
applicable County and South Florida 
Water Management District 
regulations.   

3. Retention systems shall be designed 
to recover as follows: 
a. Onsite dry retention systems 

shall recover to the seasonal 
highwater table within 24 
hours of the storm event.  

b. Wet retention systems shall 
recover the permanent storage 
volume within 24 hours of the 
storm event. 

4.  When a stormwater management system with an 
overflow outfall is proposed, on-site retention of the 
25-year, 3-day storm event with zero off-site 
discharge shall be provided unless a higher 
retention standard is required to meet other 
applicable County and South Florida Water 
Management District regulations.  

  
5. Properties located in a cut and fill 

basin (Basin B, the Bird Drive Basin, 
and the North Trail Basin) shall 
comply with the following: 
a. The required drainage 

facilities shall be an onsite 
retention system for the 100-
year, 3-day storm event, with 
zero off-site discharge. 

b. A property shall be deemed to 
comply with the foregoing 
onsite retention requirement 
where the applicable 
percentage of the property’s 
total lot area is set aside for 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 46  
 
 
 

 

stormwater management 
purposes.  
i. If the stormwater 

management area is a 
wet retention area:  
A. North Trial 

Basin - 28.60 
percent. 

B. Bird Drive 
Basin - 30.00 
percent. 

C. Basin B - 
28.60 percent. 

ii. If the stormwater 
management area is a 
dry retention area:  
A. North Trial 

Basin – 33.25 
percent. 

B. Bird Drive 
Basin - 38.00 
percent. 

C. Basin B - 
39.00 percent. 

c. Alternatively, the Director 
may approve drainage to an 
off-site stormwater 
management area within the 
same basin, provided that 
such stormwater management 
area can contain the runoff 
generated by the 100-year, 3-
day storm event with zero off-
site discharge and complies 
with all other applicable 
provisions of this chapter.  

6. For properties that are located outside 
of the Urban Development Boundary, 
the required drainage shall be onsite 
retention of the 100-year, 3-day storm 
event. 

7. Drainage wells may be used to 
comply with retention requirements 
where such wells:  



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 47  
 
 
 

 

a. comply with applicable state 
regulations; and 

b. comply with stormwater 
quality requirements and  
sedimentation restrictions 
contained in this chapter; and  

c. provide a well box designed 
for a minimum of 90 seconds 
of detention, based on peak 
flow rate calculated by the 
engineer of record and 
provided with the signed and 
sealed engineering analysis 
and report. 

 
(ii) Stormwater Quality. 

1. The greater of the onsite retention 
systems’ volume or two and one-half 
inches of the total impervious area, 
excluding public rights of way, shall 
be used.  

2. If served or to be served by one or 
more outfalls, stormwater quality 
shall meet the strictest of the 
following standards:  
a. post-development pollutant 

loads shall not exceed pre-
development loads; or 

b. post-development pollutant 
reduction shall not be less 
than 85 percent based on 
average annual loading; or  

c. post-development pollutant 
loads shall not cause water 
quality violations in receiving 
water bodies; or 

d. level of treatment sufficient to 
accomplish the percent 
reduction specified in the load 
allocation of an adopted Total 
Maximum Daily Load 
(TMDL) or adopted 
Reasonable Assurance Plan 
(RAP) for the pollutant(s) not 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 48  
 
 
 

 

meeting water quality 
standards, provided that if the 
TMDL or RAP for a particular 
pollutant is less strict than a., 
b., or c. above, then the 
strictest standard shall control 
for any particular pollutant. 

3. For outfalls to any of the water bodies 
listed below, onsite retention and 
detention systems shall provide a 
minimum water quality treatment 
volume equivalent to 150 percent of 
that otherwise required by this section 
and post-development pollutant 
reduction of 95 percent and shall 
require a class II permit pursuant to 
this chapter: 
a. Biscayne Bay.  
b. Any surface water designated 

as an Outstanding Florida 
Waters pursuant to chapter 
62-302.700(9), Florida 
Administrative Code.  

c. Any canal, except for dead 
end canal segments that the 
Director determines to not be 
connected to Biscayne Bay or 
any surface water designated 
as an Outstanding Florida 
Water. 

d. Any tributary that is 
connected, as determined by 
the Director, to either 
Biscayne Bay or a surface 
water designated as an 
Outstanding Florida Water.  

4. Administrative adjustments 
authorized.  Notwithstanding any 
provision to the contrary, where the 
Director determines that existing site 
conditions preclude full compliance 
with this section, the Director may 
approve an alternative design that 
complies with applicable state and 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 49  
 
 
 

 

federal requirements and achieves the 
highest level of water quality, 
provided that the applicant 
demonstrates that removal efficiency 
and design criteria are based on field-
verified data approved by the Director 
or data and reports published by the 
Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection. 

(iii) For existing developments, an application 
shall not be required to comply with the 
stormwater quality and quantity standards set 
forth above where the application does not 
include, as determined by the Director: a non-
structural impervious surface improvement; 
or any other improvement that increases 
impervious area on the lot or that is 
anticipated to cause pollution, contamination, 
flooding, or runoff. 
 

(d) Public right-of-way projects not part of a subdivision 
application.  Public right-of-way projects that are not 
part of a subdivision application shall comply with 
the following stormwater quantity and quality 
standards in addition to the general requirements of 
paragraph (4)(a): 
(i) Stormwater Quantity 

1. Where approved by the Director, 
stormwater inlets and catch basins 
may be located up to twelve inches 
below County Flood Criteria. 

2. The right-of-way shall be graded to 
prevent stormwater from running off 
or discharging onto adjacent parcels 
not approved for stormwater retention 
pursuant to this chapter. 

3. Green areas, swales, retention or 
detention areas, and exfiltration 
trenches may be used when consistent 
with this chapter, sections 2-100 and 
2-103.1, and the County public works 
manual. 

(ii) Stormwater Quality. Unless otherwise 
approved by both the Director and the 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 50  
 
 
 

 

Director of Public Works, public rights-of-
way shall comply with the stricter of: the 
stormwater quality requirements set forth in 
paragraph (4)(c) above; or the County public 
works manual. 

(iii) Administrative adjustments authorized.  
Notwithstanding any provision to the 
contrary, where existing site conditions 
preclude full compliance with this section for 
public rights-of-way, the Director, following 
consultation with the Director of Public 
Works, is authorized to approve an 
alternative design that complies with 
applicable state and federal requirements and 
achieves the highest level of water quality. 

 
(e) Other Requirements. 

(i) If provided, interior garage drains shall be 
connected to a separate onsite drainage 
system with a two-foot sand filter below the 
pipe invert and above the mean high-water 
table.  

(ii) If provided, dumpster pads shall be located 
adjacent and graded to a green area for proper 
stormwater management and to prevent 
waste liquids from entering the drains. 

 
(f) Erosion and Sedimentation Controls.  Erosion and 

sedimentation controls shall be provided in 
accordance with the following: 
(i) Construction activities involving earth work 

or excavations of more than 50 square feet 
along public rights-of-way or adjacent to 
water bodies shall provide erosion and 
sedimentation controls to limit impacts to 
existing drainage facilities, water bodies, and 
natural preserve areas. The controls shall be 
included in the engineering plans to be 
submitted as part of a permit application and 
shall be subject to review and approval by the 
Director. 

(ii) Construction projects involving more than 
one acre of total impervious area, including 
existing impervious area, shall include 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 51  
 
 
 

 

temporary structural stormwater features to 
retain stormwater runoff onsite from a 25-
year, 3-day storm event. 

(iii) During construction, open ground soils shall 
be stabilized or covered for protection from 
rainfall to prevent erosion and sedimentation 
into public rights-of-way, adjacent 
properties, water bodies, and natural 
preserved areas.  

 
(g) Design seasonal water table.   

(i) The design seasonal water table (October and 
May) shall be based on the latest current and 
future groundwater elevations maps and data 
that are officially adopted by Miami-Dade 
County ordinance, the United States 
Geological Service, or the South Florida 
Water Management District, and the most 
restrictive shall apply.   

(ii) Future groundwater elevation maps that 
incorporate sea level rise forecasts based on 
the Intermediate High curve projections 
promulgated by the National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) shall 
be used, when available, to best match the 
future time horizon with the anticipated life 
cycle being used for design of infrastructure. 

 
(h) Tail-water design seasonal elevation.   

(i) The tail-water design seasonal elevation for 
outfalls shall be based on the latest current 
surface water elevations that are officially 
adopted by Miami-Dade County ordinance, 
the United States Geological Service, 
NOAA, and the South Florida Water 
Management District, and the most 
restrictive shall apply.  

(ii) Future surface water elevations that 
incorporate sea level rise based on the 
Intermediate High curve projections 
promulgated by NOAA shall be used, when 
available, to best match the future time 
horizon with the anticipated life cycle being 
used for design of infrastructure. 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 52  
 
 
 

 

(iii) Seasonal surface water elevation calculations 
shall be signed and sealed by an engineer 
licensed in the State of Florida. 

 
(i) Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter to the 

contrary, development that contains at least 10 acres 
or at least 2 acres of impervious surface area shall 
provide on-site retention of the 25-year, 3-day storm 
event with zero off-site discharge.<< 

 
 

 Section 6. Division 1 of Article IV of Chapter 24 of the Code of Miami-Dade County, 

Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

ARTICLE IV. - NATURAL AND BIOLOGICAL 
ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES PERMITTING AND 
PROTECTION; REGULATION OF DRAINAGE SYSTEMS 
AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
 
DIVISION 1. - WORK IN CANAL RIGHTS-OF-WAY, TIDAL 
WATERS, SUBMERGED BAY-BOTTOM LANDS, AND 
WETLANDS; DEWATERING; CONSTRUCTION OF 
DRAINAGE SYSTEMS 
 
Sec. 24-48. - Permit required; expedited administrative 
authorizations; exceptions; work standards; compliance with 
work standards, suspension of permit.   

 
(1) It shall be unlawful for any person to do any of the following 

without first having obtained a permit from the Department: 
 

*    *  * 
 

(f) To authorize, cause, permit, allow, let, or suffer the 
dewatering of groundwater into any groundwater, 
surface water, or >>stormwater infrastructure<< 
[[drainage structure]] anywhere in Miami-Dade 
County; 

(g) To perform or authorize, allow, suffer, or permit the 
construction>>, installation, or alteration of 
stormwater infrastructure, to the extent required in 
this article as a Class II, Class III, or Class VI 
permit,<< [[of a drainage system for any project]] 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 53  
 
 
 

 

anywhere in Miami-Dade County. 
 

(2)  All said work shall conform to minimum standards set forth 
in this code, and the [["Permit Information Manual 
IV”]]>>"Environmental Resource Permit Applicant’s 
Handbook, Volumes I and II”<< of the South Florida Water 
Management District, dated [[September 11, 
2008]]>>December 22, 2020 and May 22, 2016, 
respectively<<, as same may be amended from time to time.  
 

 
(3) This section shall not apply to (i) work in treatment facilities 

or their ancillary facilities such as, but not limited to, cooling 
canals or polishing ponds; or (ii) the following 
projects>>,<< provided that unencapsulated polystyrene 
shall not be used or installed:  

 
*    *  * 

 
(i) Roadway maintenance activities >>that<< [[which]] 

are performed or authorized by the >>County public 
works department<< [[Miami-Dade County Public 
Works Department]] to correct safety deficiencies or 
are undertaken to maintain the continuity of existing 
use for an established road or road right-of-way. This 
provision shall not apply to any work involving 
expansion in the width or length of roads or work 
involving the filling of roads to higher elevations 
when said roads occur at elevations >>that<< 
[[which]] are less than the elevations set forth by 
>>the County Flood Criteria Map<< [[Miami-Dade 
County flood criteria]].   

 
(j) Maintenance of private roads approved by the 

Department or maintenance of roads and fill pads 
approved by the Department located upon a public or 
private utility right-of-way. This provision shall not 
apply to any work involving expansion in the width 
or length of roads or work involving the filling of 
roads to higher elevations when said roads occur at 
elevations >>that<< [[which]] are less than the 
elevations set forth by >>the County Flood Criteria 
Map<< [[Miami-Dade County flood criteria]].   

 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 54  
 
 
 

 

*    *  * 
 

(r)  The installation of [[a]] >>stormwater 
infrastructure<< [[drainage system]]  for any 
>>facility or development that<< [[project which]] 
does not use, generate, handle, dispose of, 
discharge>>,<< or store hazardous materials and 
>>does<< not otherwise >>require<< [[requiring]] a 
class II permit[[. This]]>>, except that: 
(i) this<< exemption[[, however,]] shall not 

apply to an airport facility, a commercial 
vehicle storage facility, a resource recovery 
and management facility, a sewage treatment 
facility, or any property that has known soil 
or groundwater contamination>>; and 

(ii) plans for such facilities shall require written 
approval pursuant to sections 24-15 and 24-
42.<< 

 
*  *  * 

 
Sec. 24-48.1 – Permit classifications; interpretation as to permit 
requirement, fee; determination of wetlands. 
 
(1) There are six [[(6)]] permit classifications: class I, class II, 

class III, class IV, class V and class VI. 
   

*    *  * 
 

(f)    Class VI: Class VI permits are required for the 
>>construction,<< installation>>, or alteration of 
any stormwater infrastructure for any project, facility 
or development<< [[of a drainage system for any 
project]] that has known soil or groundwater 
contamination, or that uses, generates, handles, 
disposes of, discharges, or stores hazardous 
materials. 

 
*    *  * 

 
Sec. 24-48.3. Factors for evaluation of permit applications; 
incomplete permit applications. 

 
*    *  * 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 55  
 
 
 

 

 
(7) In addition to the applicable evaluation factors contained 

within >>section<< [[Section]] 24-48.3(1)(a) through (i) 
above, the following requirements shall apply to all work 
requiring a Class II Permit:  

 
*    *  * 

 
(c) >>For a stormwater management system that has an 

outfall into the primary or secondary canal system or 
surface waters depicted on the Water Control Plan, 
or discharges to off-site surface waters approved 
pursuant to this chapter to receive such discharges, 
on-site retention of the 25-year, 3-day storm event 
with zero off-site discharge shall be provided.  
(i) The approval of such system is a subject to 

the capacity of the canal system or surface 
waters, as applicable, to receive additional 
inflows.  

(ii) Such a system requires a Class II permit.<< 
[[On-site retention combined with an 
overflow outfall may be used as an 
alternative to on-site retention in those cases 
where complete on-site retention is not 
feasible as determined by the Director or the 
Director’s designee, when there is inadequate 
exfiltration capability of the soil or in cases 
where a higher degree of flood protection is 
desired by the applicant.  

 
All inlet structures located within grassed areas or 
landscaped strips may receive a 0.2 inch retention 
credit.]]  

 
*    *  * 

 
Sec. 24-48.5. - Permit issuance; waiver of bonding requirements. 
 
(1) Issuance of a Department permit does not relieve the 

applicant from obtaining all required federal, State>>,<< 
and local permits. 

 
(2) Following approval of a standard form permit application by 

the Board of County Commissioners or after submitting a 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 56  
 
 
 

 

short form application, a construction permit may be issued 
to the permit applicant and a contractor holding an 
applicable certificate of competency, provided: 
(a) Construction plans, calculations>>,<< and 

specifications [[are submitted which]] >>that<< 
have been prepared by an engineer>>,<< or>>, 
where applicable, an<< architect or land 
surveyor>>,<< [[where applicable]] licensed in the 
State of Florida>>,<< and >>that<< [[which]] 
comply with the requirements of this Chapter and 
other particular conditions, including, but not limited 
to, requirements for riprap[[,]] and monitoring 
programs>>, have been reviewed and approved by 
the Director<<. 

 
*    *  * 

 
(c) A performance bond and a mitigation bond, if 

applicable, is posted in an amount determined by the 
Director [[or the Director's designee]].  
>>(i)<<  The maximum amount of said performance 

bond shall  >>not exceed 100<< [[be one 
hundred (100)]] percent of the estimated cost 
of the work or >>$500,000.00,<< [[one 
hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00)]] 
whichever is >>greater<< [[less]].  

>>(ii) If<< [[In the event]] the Director [[or the 
Director's designee]] determines that a 
performance bond is necessary, the 
performance bond shall seek to ensure 
compliance with terms of the permit and to 
protect the interest of the public and of 
landowners in the vicinity of the work.  

>>(iii)<<  The Director [[or Director's designee]] 
may waive the performance bond >>upon a 
determination<< [[if the Director or 
Director's designee determines]] that the 
proposed project is not expected to affect the 
interests of the public or landowners in the 
vicinity of the work and noncompliance with 
the terms of the permit will only affect the 
permit applicant.  

>>(iv)<<  The Director [[or Director's designee]] 
may also waive performance bonds for work 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 57  
 
 
 

 

performed by utility companies, for work 
performed by governmental agencies 
pursuant to Section 24-48.8>>,<< [[of this 
chapter]] and for work approved under a 
short form permit application pursuant to 
Section 24-48.2(I)(A)(22) and (23). 

>>(v) The Director may require a<< [[A]] separate 
mitigation bond [[may be required by the 
Director or the Director's designee to be 
posted in order]] to insure that environmental 
enhancement features associated with the 
project and required by the permit are 
completed in a satisfactory manner.  
>>a.<<  These include, but are not limited to, 

the placement of riprap, the 
replanting of mangroves or seagrass, 
the installation of sewage pumpout 
stations, the construction of public 
piers or shoreline walkways>>,<< 
and the construction of artificial reefs.  

>>b.<<  The maximum amount of said 
mitigation bond shall be >>100<< 
[[one hundred (100)]] percent of the 
cost of the environmental 
enhancement features of the project.  

>>(vi)<<  The required performance and mitigation 
bonds may be required to remain in force for 
up to six [[(6)]] months after the approved 
completion date of the work covered by the 
bond. 

 
*    *  * 

 
 

Section 7. Section 33-52 of the Code of Miami-Dade County, Florida is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 33-52. Maximum heights in all districts; exceptions.  
 
>>(a)<< Except where a greater height may be approved as a result 

of a public hearing, the maximum height of a building shall 
be 35 feet, two stories, except as specified in each district 
and as specified elsewhere in the Code.  



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 58  
 
 
 

 

 
 
>>(b)<< No accessory building [[, garage or servants' 

quarter]] in RU >>or<< [[and]] EU-M Districts shall exceed 
one story in height >>,<< unless the principal residence on 
the lot is two stories in height and said structure complies 
with the principal structure setbacks. 

 
 
 Section 8.  Section 8CC-10 of the Code of Miami-Dade County, Florida, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 8CC-10.  Schedule of civil penalties. 
 
 The following table shows the sections of this code, as they 
may be amended from time to time, which may be enforced pursuant 
to the provisions of this chapter; and the dollar amount of civil 
penalty for the violation of these sections as they may be amended.  
 
 The “descriptions of violations” below are for informational 
purposes only and are not meant to limit or define the nature of the 
violations or the subject matter of the listed sections of this code, 
except to the extent that different types of violations of the same 
section may carry different civil penalties. For each section listed in 
the schedule of civil penalties, the entirety of that section may be 
enforced by the mechanism provided in this chapter, regardless of 
whether all activities proscribed or required within that particular 
section are described in the “Description of Violation” column. To 
determine the exact nature of any activity proscribed or required by 
this code, the relevant section must be examined. 
 
Code 

Section 
Description of Violation Civil 

Penalty 
 

*  *  * 
 

>>24-15 Non-structural impervious surface 
improvement installed, replaced, or 
expanded at a single-family residential 
property without plan approval. 

500.00 

24-15 Non-structural impervious surface 
improvement installed, replaced, or 
expanded at a property other than a 

1,000.00 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 59  
 
 
 

 

single-family residential property 
without plan approval. 

 Any other stormwater infrastructure, 
constructed, installed, or altered without 
plan approval. 

1,500.00<< 

 
*  *  * 

 
24-42(1) Discharge of prohibited substances into 

County waters 
2,500.00 

24-42(2) Exceeding effluent standards for 
discharges 

2,500.00 

24-42(3) Unlawful discharge affecting water 
quality 

2,500.00 

>>24-42.8 Violation of stormwater regulation 
standards 

2,500.00<< 

 
*  *  * 

 
 
 

Section 9. Section 24-5 of the Code shall be renumbered pursuant to the revisions in 

section 2 above. 

 Section 10. Pending applications.  For applications filed prior to January 1, 2024, the 

Director may continue to review said applications under the provisions of Chapter 24 that were in 

effect at the time of application.  However, any future applications for the same property or which 

include the same property that are filed on or after January 1, 2024, including resubmittals for 

building permit applications that were filed prior to January 1, 2024, but were thereafter denied or 

revoked, shall be reviewed pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 24 that are then in effect.   

 Section 11. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or provision of this ordinance is 

held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected by such invalidity.  

 Section 12. It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners, and it is hereby 

ordained that the provisions of this ordinance, including any sunset provision, shall become and 



  Agenda Item No. 
  Page 60  
 
 
 

 

be made a part of the Code of Miami-Dade County, Florida.  The sections of this ordinance may 

be renumbered or relettered to accomplish such intention, and the word "ordinance" may be 

changed to "section," "article," or other appropriate word.  

 Section 13. This ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after the date of 

enactment unless vetoed by the Mayor, and if vetoed, shall become effective only upon an override 

by this Board.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED: 
 
Approved by County Attorney as 
to form and legal sufficiency:   ________ 
 
Prepared by:     ________ 
 
Dennis A. Kerbel 
Abbie Schwaderer Raurell 



MEMORANDUM
Agenda Item No. 11(A)(1) 

TO: Honorable Chairman Jose "Pepe" Diaz  DATE: September 1, 2022
and Members, Board of County Commissioners 

FROM: Geri Bonzon-Keenan SUBJECT: Resolution directing the County 
County Attorney Mayor to (1) develop proposed  

changes to the Code with respect
to operations and maintenance  
of municipal stormwater systems, 
(2) develop new standards for
design and construction of
municipal stormwater systems,
(3) expand the County’s asset
management system to include
stormwater infrastructure, and
(4) conduct educational
campaigns related to Biscayne
Bay, and to provide reports with
respect to the foregoing; urging
municipalities to conduct
educational campaigns related
to Biscayne Bay; and urging the
Florida Department of
Environmental Protection to
strengthen requirements and
increase auditing and
enforcement of its National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (NPDES) permits for
municipal stormwater systems

The accompanying resolution was prepared and placed on the agenda at the request of Prime Sponsor 
Commissioner Danielle Cohen Higgins, and Co-Sponsors Commissioner Sally A. Heyman, 
Commissioner Jean Monestime and Senator Javier D. Souto.

_______________________________ 
Geri Bonzon-Keenan      
County Attorney 

GBK/smm 

1



Honorable Chairman Jose "Pepe" Diaz 
and Members, Board of County Commissioners

County Attorney

September 1, 2022

2

11(A)(1)



Approved Mayor Agenda Item No. 11(A)(1)
9-1-22 Veto __________ 

Override __________ 

RESOLUTION NO. ________________________ 

RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE COUNTY MAYOR OR 
COUNTY MAYOR’S DESIGNEE TO (1) DEVELOP PROPOSED 
CHANGES TO THE CODE OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY WITH 
RESPECT TO OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE OF 
MUNICIPAL STORMWATER SYSTEMS, (2) DEVELOP NEW 
STANDARDS FOR DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF 
MUNICIPAL STORMWATER SYSTEMS, (3) EXPAND THE 
COUNTY’S ASSET MANAGEMENT SYSTEM TO INCLUDE 
STORMWATER INFRASTRUCTURE, AND (4) CONDUCT 
EDUCATIONAL CAMPAIGNS RELATED TO BISCAYNE 
BAY, AND TO PROVIDE REPORTS WITH RESPECT TO THE 
FOREGOING; URGING MUNICIPALITIES TO CONDUCT 
EDUCATIONAL CAMPAIGNS RELATED TO BISCAYNE 
BAY; AND URGING THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION TO STRENGTHEN 
REQUIREMENTS AND INCREASE AUDITING AND 
ENFORCEMENT OF ITS NATIONAL POLLUTANT 
DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) PERMITS 
FOR MUNICIPAL STORMWATER SYSTEMS 

WHEREAS, stormwater that carries street level pollutants, such as nutrients from organic 

material, plastic, trash, chemicals, and sewer and septic runoff, has a detrimental impact on 

Biscayne Bay; and 

WHEREAS, there are various actions that the County may take in order to better address 

such potential impacts, including, for example, the development and adoption of new 

environmental regulations and standards with respect to municipal stormwater systems, and 

expanding the County’s asset management system to include stormwater infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, such new standards could be complemented by greater educational 

campaigns, and in particular, community and neighborhood events and activities that are focused 

on Biscayne Bay related matters; and  

3



Agenda Item No. 11(A)(1) 
Page No. 2 

WHEREAS, in addition, it may also be beneficial for the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection (FDEP) to impose greater design and maintenance requirements on 

municipal stormwater systems through FDEP’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 

(NPDES) permits to address nutrients from organic material, plastics, trash, chemicals, and sewer 

and septic runoff, and to increase auditing and enforcement by FDEP of such permit requirements; 

and 

WHEREAS, at its June 10, 2022 meeting, the Biscayne Bay Watershed Management 

Advisory Board recommended that this Board (1) direct the County Mayor or County Mayor’s 

designee to take various actions, as specified herein, related to municipal stormwater systems and 

educational campaigns, (2) urge municipalities to conduct educational campaigns, and (3) urge 

FDEP to strengthen design and maintenance requirements and increase auditing and enforcement 

of FDEP’s NPDES permits with a goal of reducing nutrients from organic material, plastics, trash, 

chemicals, and sewer and septic runoff entering or discharging from municipal stormwater 

systems,  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA, that this Board:  

Section 1. Directs the County Mayor or County Mayor’s designee to develop proposed 

changes to chapter 24 of the Code of Miami-Dade County to create standards and requirements 

for the operation and maintenance of municipal stormwater systems located within Miami-Dade 

County.  The County Mayor or County Mayor’s designee shall present such proposed changes to 

this Board in the form of a report within 90 days of the effective date of this resolution and place 

the completed report on an agenda of the full Board without committee review pursuant to 

Ordinance No. 14-65.  Such new standards and requirements, at a minimum, should address the 

following: 

4



Agenda Item No. 11(A)(1) 
Page No. 3 

• Requirements designed to effectuate a significant reduction in the amount of pollutants

such as nutrients from organic material, plastics, trash, chemicals, and sewer and septic

runoff that enter or are discharged from municipal stormwater systems, with a particular

focus on plastics or floatables that are larger than five millimeters in size;

• Regular maintenance requirements for stormwater infrastructure;

• Requirements for periodic cleanings of stormwater infrastructure, such as storm drains,

catch basins, and baffle boxes, with the goal of maintaining at least 50 percent capacity

in such structures, or metrics as recommended by the manufacturer for effective pollution

control; and

• Requirements for periodic street sweeping or other roadside litter control to reduce the

amount of debris and pollutants that could enter or clog stormwater infrastructure.

Section 2. Directs the County Mayor or County Mayor’s designee to develop 

new proposed standards for the design and construction of new or replacement municipal 

stormwater system infrastructure with a focus on controls for pollutants such as nutrients 

from organic material, plastic, trash, chemicals, and sewer and septic runoff.  The process of 

developing such new standards for design and construction should: (a) include consideration of 

multiple forms of stormwater technologies and infrastructures, including, but not limited to, inlet 

grates or baskets, baffle boxes, separator systems, boom nets, low-impact design techniques 

and “green” infrastructure, skimmer vessels, and other beginning, middle, or “end of pipe” pollution 

controls;  (b) allow and encourage input from the municipalities as to best practices and 

municipalities’ experiences with various stormwater system designs; and (c) include workshops 

and periodic ongoing collaboration meetings with municipalities.  The County Mayor or County Mayor’s 

5



Agenda Item No. 11(A)(1) 
Page No. 4 

designee shall present such proposed changes to this Board in the form of a report within 90 days 

of the effective date of this resolution and place the completed report on an agenda of the full 

Board without committee review pursuant to Ordinance No. 14-65.    

Section 3. Directs the County Mayor or County Mayor’s designee to expand the 

County’s existing asset management system, which currently includes a database of water and 

sanitary sewer infrastructure and maintenance records for such infrastructure, to also include 

stormwater infrastructure for all stormwater systems operating throughout Miami-Dade County, 

in order to better facilitate informed decisionmaking with respect to such infrastructure.  This 

Board further directs the County Mayor or County Mayor’s designee to explore other technology 

and systems, with the goal of integrating maintenance and monitoring data with the asset 

management system, to the extent possible.  The County Mayor or County Mayor’s designee shall 

prepare a report summarizing the efforts undertaken to comply with this directive, and shall 

provide the report to this Board within 90 days of the effective date of this resolution and place the 

completed report on an agenda of the full Board without committee review pursuant to Ordinance 

No. 14-65. 

Section 4.  Directs the County Mayor or County Mayor’s designee to conduct greater 

educational campaigns related to Biscayne Bay, which should include: (a) encouraging individuals 

and businesses in Miami-Dade County to properly maintain septic tanks and teaching how to 

recognize a failing septic tank; and (b) neighborhood-focused outreach and citizen involvement 

events, such as community clean-ups, storm drain stenciling, and community adopt-a-street efforts. 

The County Mayor or County Mayor’s designee shall prepare a report summarizing the efforts 

undertaken to comply with this directive, and shall provide the report to this Board within 90 days 

of the effective date of this resolution and place the completed report on an agenda of the full 

Board without committee review pursuant to Ordinance No. 14-65.    

6



Agenda Item No. 11(A)(1) 
Page No. 5 

Section 5. Urges municipalities in Miami-Dade County to conduct greater educational 

campaigns related to Biscayne Bay, which should include: (a) encouraging individuals and 

businesses in Miami-Dade County to properly maintain septic tanks and teaching how to recognize 

a failing septic tank; and (b) neighborhood-focused outreach and citizen involvement events, such 

as community clean-ups, storm drain stenciling, and community adopt-a-street efforts. 

Section 6. Urges the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) to 

strengthen the design and maintenance requirements in the upcoming FDEP National Pollutant 

Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permits for municipal stormwater systems to address 

nutrients from organic material, plastics, trash, chemicals, and sewer and septic runoff and increase 

FDEP auditing and enforcement of such permit requirements.  

Section 7. Directs the Clerk of the Board to transmit certified copies of this resolution 

to the Governor, the Senate President, the House Speaker, the Members of the Miami-Dade State 

Legislative Delegation, the Secretary of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, and 

the Mayors and City Councils or City Commissions of all municipalities within Miami-Dade 

County. 

Section 8. Directs the County’s state lobbyists to advocate for the action described in 

section 6 above, and authorizes and directs the Office of Intergovernmental Affairs to amend the 

2022 State Legislative Package to include this item and to include this item in the 2023 State 

Legislative Package when it is presented to the Board.  

The Prime Sponsor of the foregoing resolution is Commissioner Danielle Cohen Higgins, 

and the Co-Sponsors are Commissioner Sally A. Heyman, Commissioner Jean Monestime and 

Senator Javier D. Souto.  It was offered by Commissioner                                          , who moved 

its adoption.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner                                          and upon 

being put to a vote, the vote was as follows:  

7



Agenda Item No. 11(A)(1) 
Page No. 6 

Jose “Pepe” Diaz, Chairman 
Oliver G. Gilbert, III, Vice-Chairman 

Sen. René García Keon Hardemon 
Sally A. Heyman Danielle Cohen Higgins 
Eileen Higgins Joe A. Martinez 
Kionne L. McGhee Jean Monestime 
Raquel A. Regalado Rebeca Sosa 
Sen. Javier D. Souto 

The Chairperson thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted this 1st day of 

September, 2022.  This resolution shall become effective upon the earlier of (1) 10 days after the 

date of its adoption unless vetoed by the County Mayor, and if vetoed, shall become effective only 

upon an override by this Board, or (2) approval by the County Mayor of this resolution and the 

filing of this approval with the Clerk of the Board. 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA 
BY ITS BOARD OF 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

HARVEY RUVIN, CLERK 

By:________________________ 
      Deputy Clerk 

Approved by County Attorney as 
to form and legal sufficiency.  _______ 

Christopher J. Wahl 

8



MEMORANDUM
Agenda Item No. 4(C) 

TO: Honorable Chairman Oliver G. Gilbert, III  DATE:  July 6, 2023 
and Members, Board of County Commissioners 

FROM: Geri Bonzon-Keenan SUBJECT: Ordinance relating to zoning; amending 
County Attorney  sections 33-1, 33-8, and 33-14.1 and 

article XXXIII of chapter 33 of the Code; 
amending requirements for issuance of 
certificate of use (C.U.); exempting certain 
uses permitted in the agricultural (AU) 
zoning district from C.U. requirements 
and clarifying C.U. and floodplain review 
requirements for uses in the AU District; 
revising definitions; revising requirements 
for aquaculture and for uses that are 
ancillary to agricultural uses, including 
farm stands, wineries, breweries, and 
distilleries, and agritourism; authorizing 
mobile food service operations in the AU 
District subject to certain conditions; 
revising regulations for parking and 
outdoor storage of equipment and vehicles 
in the agricultural (AU) zoning district and 
for other uses that are ancillary to and 
directly supportive of agriculture; 
amending division 2 of article III of 
chapter 24; allowing handling of food and 
drink on agricultural properties when 
served by onsite domestic well system and 
onsite sewage treatment and disposal 
system under certain conditions; 
delegating authority to the director to 
approve certain form covenants; making 
technical changes 

The accompanying ordinance was prepared and placed on the agenda at the request of Prime Sponsor 
Commissioner Kionne L. McGhee. 

_______________________________ 
Geri Bonzon-Keenan       
County Attorney 

GBK/uw 

MDC001



Honorable Chairman Oliver G. Gilbert, III 
and Members, Board of County Commissioners

County Attorney

July 6, 2023

MDC002

4(C)



Approved       Mayor Agenda Item No. 4(C)
7-6-23Veto __________ 

Override __________ 

ORDINANCE NO.    

ORDINANCE RELATING TO ZONING; AMENDING 
SECTIONS 33-1, 33-8, AND 33-14.1 AND ARTICLE XXXIII OF 
CHAPTER 33 OF THE CODE OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; AMENDING REQUIREMENTS FOR ISSUANCE OF 
CERTIFICATE OF USE (C.U.); EXEMPTING CERTAIN USES 
PERMITTED IN THE AGRICULTURAL (AU) ZONING 
DISTRICT FROM C.U. REQUIREMENTS AND CLARIFYING 
C.U. AND FLOODPLAIN REVIEW REQUIREMENTS FOR
USES IN THE AU DISTRICT; REVISING DEFINITIONS;
REVISING REQUIREMENTS FOR AQUACULTURE AND FOR
USES THAT ARE ANCILLARY TO AGRICULTURAL USES,
INCLUDING FARM STANDS, WINERIES, BREWERIES, AND
DISTILLERIES, AND AGRITOURISM; AUTHORIZING
MOBILE FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS IN THE AU
DISTRICT SUBJECT TO CERTAIN CONDITIONS; REVISING
REGULATIONS FOR PARKING AND OUTDOOR STORAGE
OF EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLES IN THE AGRICULTURAL
(AU) ZONING DISTRICT AND  FOR OTHER USES THAT ARE
ANCILLARY TO AND DIRECTLY SUPPORTIVE OF
AGRICULTURE; AMENDING DIVISION 2 OF ARTICLE III OF
CHAPTER 24; ALLOWING HANDLING OF FOOD AND
DRINK ON AGRICULTURAL PROPERTIES WHEN SERVED
BY ONSITE DOMESTIC WELL SYSTEM AND ONSITE
SEWAGE TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL SYSTEM UNDER
CERTAIN CONDITIONS; DELEGATING AUTHORITY TO
THE DIRECTOR TO APPROVE CERTAIN FORM
COVENANTS; MAKING TECHNICAL CHANGES;
PROVIDING SEVERABILITY, INCLUSION IN THE CODE,
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, Miami-Dade County’s Comprehensive Development Master Plan 

(“CDMP”) contains numerous policies regarding the preservation of agriculture, including Policy 

LU-1P, which provides that, “while continuing to protect and promote agriculture as a viable 

economic activity, Miami-Dade County shall explore and may authorize alternative land uses in 

the South Dade agricultural area which would be compatible with agricultural activities and 

MDC003



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 2  

associated rural residential uses, and which would promote ecotourism and agritourism related to 

the area's agricultural and natural resource base . . . ,” Policy LU-8C, which requires the County, 

“[t]hrough its planning, . . . regulatory and [other] activities, . . . [to] continue to protect and 

promote agriculture as a viable economic use of land in Miami-Dade County,” and the 

Interpretation of the Land Use Plan Map policy providing, in the areas with a CDMP designation 

of “Agriculture,” that “[t]he principal uses in this area should be agriculture, uses ancillary to and 

directly supportive of agriculture and farm residences,” “[u]ses ancillary to and directly supportive 

of agriculture are defined as those uses related to preserving, processing, packaging or selling of 

agricultural products from Florida (except that wineries may utilize imported products for 

winemaking), and farm supplies, as well as sale and service of farm machinery and implements,” 

“[u]ses that are directly supportive of agriculture but not ancillary to an on-site agricultural use 

may occur in this area where it can be demonstrated that the use is primarily addressing a need of 

the local agricultural industry or that the use significantly furthers agritourism to the agricultural 

area,” and “to protect the agricultural industry, uses incompatible with agriculture, and uses and 

facilities that support or encourage urban development are not allowed in this area;” and 

WHEREAS, one of the ways the County implements these CDMP policies is through the 

zoning regulations that apply to properties that are zoned as part of the AU, Agricultural District, 

as codified in article XXXIII of chapter 33 of the Code of Miami-Dade County, Florida (“Code”); 

and     

WHEREAS, one of the primary mechanisms the County uses to ensure compliance with 

the County’s zoning code and other ordinances, building code and life safety regulations, and other 

applicable codes and regulations is the requirement that businesses and other non-residential uses, 

as well as certain multi-family uses, each obtain a certificate of use (C.U.) before establishing or 

changing the use or operator, as codified in section 33-8 of the Code; and 

MDC004



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 3  

WHEREAS, the Florida Statutes provide certain exemptions from local regulations for 

certain agricultural operations; and 

WHEREAS, for example, section 604.50, Florida Statutes, provides an exemption from 

“the Florida Building Code and any county or municipal code or fee” for “any nonresidential farm 

building, farm fence, or farm sign,” as those terms are defined therein, “that is located on lands 

used for bona fide agricultural purposes,” which, pursuant to section 193.461, Florida Statutes, 

means “good faith commercial use of the land” as determined by the property appraiser, but further 

provides that such structures remain subject to local “code provisions implementing local, state, 

or federal floodplain management regulations;” and 

WHEREAS, the County’s floodplain management regulations are set forth in chapter 11C 

of the Code of Miami-Dade County, Florida; and 

WHEREAS, section 570.85, Florida Statutes, preempts certain local government 

regulations relating to “agritourism activity” but expressly provides that it “does not limit the 

powers and duties of a local government to address substantial offsite impacts of agritourism 

activities or an emergency as provided in chapter 252;” and 

WHEREAS, section 570.85, Florida Statutes, defines “agritourism activity” as “any 

agricultural related activity consistent with a bona fide farm, livestock operation, or ranch or in a 

working forest which allows members of the general public, for recreational, entertainment, or 

educational purposes, to view or enjoy activities, including farming, ranching, historical, cultural, 

civic, ceremonial, training and exhibition, or harvest-your-own activities and attractions … [and] 

[a]n activity is an agritourism activity regardless of whether the participant paid to participate in

the activity;” and 

MDC005



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 4  

WHEREAS, section 570.86, Florida Statutes, further specifies that an agritourism activity 

does not include “the construction of new or additional structures or facilities intended primarily 

to house, shelter, transport, or otherwise accommodate members of the general public,” and thus 

such structures and facilities are not subject to the statutory exemptions provided for nonresidential 

farm buildings, farm fences, or farm signs; and 

WHEREAS, consistent with those statutes, on October 6, 2020, this Board adopted 

Ordinance No. 20-108, which created regulations on rural event venues in the Agricultural (AU) 

zoning district, including the requirement to obtain a certificate of use for each such use; and 

WHEREAS, although the County can continue to apply its zoning regulations to other 

uses in the AU District consistent with the Florida Statutes, to facilitate the establishment of uses 

that support agriculture as encouraged by the CDMP, this Board wishes to exempt certain 

agricultural uses from the requirement to obtain a C.U. prior to commencing or changing their 

operations, and to instead rely on enforcement to address compliance with the applicable 

regulations; and 

WHEREAS, to protect the public health, safety, and welfare, certain agricultural uses, and 

other uses permitted in the AU District, will continue to require a certificate of use, where the use 

poses a risk of contamination to neighboring properties, surface waters, or groundwater, such as 

from certain operations involving the preparation and service of food to the public for consumption 

on the premises, or imposes significant offsite impacts, such as traffic and noise; and 

WHEREAS, properly operated mobile food service operations that have self-contained 

utilities and do not dispose of waste on agricultural properties provide reasonable options to 

provide food service to the public in support of agritourism activities without presenting the same 

MDC006



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 5  

public health, safety, and welfare that other food service operations may present, and this Board 

thus wishes to allow mobile food service operations in the AU District when they are ancillary to 

an ongoing and lawfully established agricultural use; and 

WHEREAS, this Board also wishes to amend the environmental regulations codified in 

chapter 24 of the Code to facilitate food service operations on agricultural properties that comply 

with the requirements of chapter 33, without the need to obtain variances from the Environmental 

Quality Control Board after public hearing when such properties are served by an onsite domestic 

well system, an onsite sewage treatment and disposal system, or both; and 

WHEREAS, in addition, Miami-Dade County has a significant need to store large 

commercial vehicles, particularly large commercial trucks, in appropriate locations and has, 

through its Comprehensive Development Master Plan (“CDMP”) and its land development 

regulations, including Ordinance No. 21-42 which this Board adopted on June 2, 2021, authorized 

areas of the County where large commercial vehicles may be lawfully stored; and 

WHEREAS, on July 8, 2021, this Board adopted Ordinance No. 21-59, which 

comprehensively updated the County’s zoning regulations to, among other things, specify where 

commercial vehicle storage is allowed in the Agricultural (AU) Zoning District and under what 

conditions, and to facilitate enforcement against owners of illegally parked vehicles, to ensure that 

agricultural properties are not illicitly turned into illegal commercial vehicle parking lots; and 

WHEREAS, although commercial vehicles that are unrelated to agricultural production 

are appropriately restricted in the AU District, the agricultural industry itself relies on large 

commercial vehicles, which Ordinance No. 21-59 classifies as “distribution vehicles” and 

recognizes as integral parts of a farm operation, to bring agricultural goods, products, and supplies 

to and from the market to support the agricultural industry; and 

MDC007



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 6  

WHEREAS, to both address the needs of the agricultural industry and the County’s 

ongoing need for appropriate places to park large commercial vehicles, this Board wishes to 

remove the numerical limit on storage of distribution vehicles in the AU Zoning District when the 

storage is ancillary to an ongoing agricultural operation that occurs on the same property on which 

the vehicles are to be stored, to increase the number of distribution vehicles that may be stored on 

adjacent or contiguous parcels or off-site, and to provide for an additional increase of such allowed 

storage on properties that are close to the Urban Development Boundary, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA: 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated herein and are approved. 

Section 2. Section 33-1 of the Code of Miami-Dade County, Florida is hereby 

amended to read as follows:1 

Sec. 33-1.  Definitions. 

For the purpose of this chapter, the following definitions for 
terms used herein shall apply to all sections of this chapter unless 
the context clearly indicates otherwise: 

(1) Accessory building shall mean>>:  for a residential use,<<
an “accessory structure,” as defined in the Florida Building
Code, Residential Volume[[. Also]] >>(<<see Guesthouse
and Servants’ quarters>>); and, for a non-residential use, a
building or structure on a lot or parcel subordinate to and not
forming an integral part of the main or principal building<<.

* * * 

(5.1.2) Ancillary means that a use or structure is subordinate or 
subsidiary to the primary use on the same lot or parcel. An 
ancillary structure shall be smaller than the primary structure 
on the same lot or parcel. An ancillary use shall not exceed 

1 Words stricken through and/or [[double bracketed]] shall be deleted.  Words underscored 
and/or >>double arrowed<< constitute the amendment proposed.  Remaining provisions are now 
in effect and remain unchanged. 

MDC008



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 7  

the size of the primary use, unless specifically authorized in 
this chapter. 

* * * 

(15.1) Brewery (farm related). An establishment[[,]] >>that is<< 
located wholly on a >>parcel with an ongoing and lawfully 
established agricultural use and that is designed and used<< 
[[farm,]] for the manufacture of malt liquors, such as beer 
and ale. The facility may have accessory uses as permitted 
under Section 33-279 of this chapter, including uses that 
permit the sale and consumption of products manufactured 
on site, as allowed by applicable licenses from the State of 
Florida Division of Alcoholic Beverages and Tobacco.  

* * * 

(39.1) Distillery (farm related). A facility >>that is<< located 
wholly on a >>parcel with an ongoing and lawfully 
established agricultural use and that is<< [[farm]] designed 
>>and used<< for the distillation of agricultural products
including grains, fruits, or vegetables into liquor or spirits.
The facility may have accessory uses as permitted under
Section 33-279 of this chapter, including uses that permit the
sale and consumption of products manufactured on site, as
allowed by applicable licenses from the State of Florida
Division of Alcoholic Beverages and Tobacco.

* * * 

(44.1) Farm >>Stand<< [[Stands]]. A farm stand is a permanent or 
portable structure or vehicle >>that is<< located on >>a 
parcel with an ongoing and lawfully established agricultural 
use and is used<< [[an actively farmed site]] for the retail 
sale of agricultural products>>, including, without 
limitation, products of fish pools, nurseries, wineries, 
breweries, and distilleries, or that are lawfully grown or 
cultivated on a property in Miami-Dade County or that are 
packed, processed, or sold at a lawfully established packing 
house in Miami-Dade County<< [[, as provided in Section 
33-279(6.1)]].

* * * 

(46.1) Fruit and vegetable stand. Any portable establishment for 
the retail sale of locally grown fresh fruit and vegetables and 
food products derived from such fruit and vegetables.  

MDC009



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 8  

* * * 

(70.3) Mobile Food Service Operation. The preparation[[/]]>>,<< 
cooking, serving>>, or<< [[and/or]] sale of food>>, or 
combination thereof,<< conducted from a portable stand, 
vehicle>>,<< or trailer. Each such stand, vehicle>>,<< or 
trailer shall be considered a mobile food service operation. 
[[Mobile food service operations must obtain all required 
licenses from the State of Florida prior to operating in 
Miami-Dade County.]]  >>This classification does not 
include a farm stand as provided in this chapter.<< 

*      *  * 

(115.01)  Winery (farm related).  An agricultural processing facility 
>>that is located wholly on a parcel with an ongoing and
lawfully established agricultural use and that is designed
and<< used for fermenting and processing fruit into wine or
derivative products. The facility may have accessory uses as
permitted under Section 33-279 of this chapter, including
uses that permit the sale and consumption of products
manufactured on site, as allowed by applicable licenses from
the State of Florida Division of Alcoholic Beverages and
Tobacco.

*      *  * 

Section 3. Section 33-8 of the Code of Miami-Dade County, Florida, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 33-8. - Certificate of use. 

(a) No structure[[,]] other than a single-family [[residence]] or
duplex >>dwelling<<[[,]] shall be used>>, no<< [[or any]]
existing use >>other than a single-family or duplex dwelling
shall be<< enlarged, [[or any]] >>and no<< new use >>shall
be<< made of any land, body of water, or structure, without
first obtaining>>, on a form prescribed by the Director,<< a
certificate of use (C.U.) therefor from the Department >>as
required by this section<<.

>>(b) Except as expressly provided in this section or elsewhere in 
this chapter or code, a<< [[Said]] certificate of use shall be 
required for each >>non-residential use<< [[individual 
business]] and each multi-family building located within 

MDC010



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 9  

unincorporated Miami-Dade County >>and any other area 
over which Miami-Dade County exercises zoning 
jurisdiction<<. 

[[(b)]] >>(c)<<  In the event there is a question as to the legality of 
a use, the Director may require inspections, affidavits>>,<< 
and such other information >>the Director<< [[he]] may 
deem appropriate or necessary to establish the legality of the 
use >>or verify representations in an application for a 
C.U.<<, before a certificate of use will be issued>>,
reissued, or renewed<<.

>>(d) The Director<< [[Additionally, the Department]] shall have 
the right to periodically inspect premises at any reasonable 
time to ensure the existence of a current and valid C.U., and 
to ensure compliance with the terms and conditions under 
which a C.U. was issued.   

[[(c)]]>>(e)<<  The person or entity listed upon a Certificate of Title 
issued pursuant to Chapter 45, Florida Statutes as the 
purchaser of a single-family residence, condominium unit, 
townhouse or duplex shall obtain a C.U. from the 
Department prior to offering said residence for sale, transfer 
or other alienation. The C.U. required by this subsection (c) 
shall be for the purpose of determining whether or not the 
residence in question complies with all building codes and 
zoning codes applicable to the residence and to provide a 
disclosure of those findings. The Director shall require 
disclosure by requiring an inspection of the property by 
personnel authorized to conduct such inspections by the 
Director and to subsequently record in the public records of 
Miami-Dade County the inspection report. Said report shall 
include a good faith estimate of the cost to repair or remedy 
all code violations disclosed by the inspection. The Director 
shall prescribe the form of the inspection report and 
disclosure to ensure compliance with the intent of this 
section. Upon the recording of the inspection report and 
estimate in the public records of Miami-Dade County, the 
Director is authorized to issue the C.U. required by this 
subsection (c). The Director shall refer any County Code 
violations disclosed in the report to the proper County 
Department for enforcement action. County Departments are 
authorized to collect fees for inspections and other 
administrative costs and/or for the issuance of the C.U., as 
maybe applicable, and as established in the Departments' 
approved schedule of fees. 

MDC011



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 10 

>>(f)<<  Except for C.U.s required by code or zoning resolution to 
be renewed annually >>or that are<<[[, and except for 
C.U.s]] issued on a temporary basis, certificates of use shall
remain valid for an unlimited time unless revoked for cause.

>>(g) A<< [[The]] C.U. is only valid for the specific address, 
business name, corporate name>>,<< and type of business 
for which it was issued.  A new C.U. shall be required 
for>>:<< any changes in[[;]]  use, name, ownership, 
expansion of square footage occupied, >>or<< [[the]] 
inclusion of additional uses[[,]]>>;<< or when changes to 
>>a<< [[the]] structure have been approved by final building
inspection.

>>(h)<< No certificate of use shall be >>construed to authorize use 
of a property<< [[utilized]] in a manner contrary to the 
regulations contained in this chapter. 

Section 4. Section 33-14.1 of the Code of Miami-Dade County, Florida, is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 33-14.1. Mobile operations. 

(A) Notwithstanding any provisions of this chapter to the
contrary, mobile banking operations, mobile sales
operations, and mobile food service operations
(collectively, mobile operations, and all as defined in
Section 33-1) are permissible on private property subject to
the following conditions:
(1) Mobile operations are permissible only in the

following zoning districts:
>>(a)<<  BU, IU, urban center, urban area, and GU

(where trended for industrial or business 
use)[[. Mobile operations are also 
permissible in]]>>; 

(b)<< residential zoning districts on properties 
having a current certificate of use as a 
museum, hospital, school, or religious 
facility, provided such use does not operate 
more frequently than once per week and no 
longer than three consecutive days>>; or 

(c) In the AU District as provided in section 33-
279<<.

MDC012



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 11 

(2) Mobile operations may only be conducted from
7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. on weekdays and from 7:00
a.m. to 11:00 p.m. on weekends.

(3) Mobile operations shall not be located in any
driveway aisles, no parking zones, landscaped area,
loading areas, or parking lanes, nor may mobile
operations impede the on-site circulation of motor
vehicles.

(4) Mobile operations shall not be located in required
parking spaces unless the number of spaces exceeds
the minimum amount required for other uses on the
property. The utilization of an off-street parking
space for the operation of a mobile operation must
not cause the site to become deficient in required
off-street parking.

(5) Mobile operations shall not be located on the public
right-of-way.

(6) Mobile operations are permissible on vacant,
unimproved property only when approved as a
special event pursuant to the standards for Mobile
Food Service Operations Special Event set forth in
Section 33-13.

(7) Mobile operations shall be located a minimum of 20
feet from the property line of an existing residential
use, except that mobile operations may be located at
a minimum of 10 feet from the property line if the
residential use is separated by a six foot high
masonry wall.

(8) The total space dedicated to the mobile operation
and vending area shall not exceed an area of 600
square feet.

(9) Alcoholic beverage sales and use of sound
amplification devices are prohibited.

(10) Electric service connection to an on-site approved
outlet is permitted provided that no wiring or cables
are run beyond the vending area or pose any danger
to the patrons. For purposes of this requirement, the
vending area includes the space taken up by: a
portable stand, vehicle, or trailer; signs; equipment;
products; and any tents, tarpaulins, canopies, or
awnings.

(11) A Certificate of Use (CU) must be obtained by the
property owner to permit mobile operations on the

MDC013



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 12 

site>>, except as provided in section 33-279<<. A 
site plan or survey shall be submitted indicating the 
following:  
(a) Location of the individual mobile operations

and associated vending area. Mobile
operations shall be located so as to minimize
the impacts on adjacent residential uses.

(b) Location of improvements on the site.
(c) Location of on-site parking areas.
(d) Rights-of-way, internal circulation and

ingress and egress.
(12) Signage associated with the mobile operation shall

be confined to the mobile operation and authorized
vending area. Signage attached to the mobile unit
shall be permitted. Detached signage shall be
limited to one sign not exceeding nine (9) square
feet.

(13) The number of mobile operations permissible on a
site at any one time shall be limited as follows:
(a) One mobile operation may be permitted on

each site which contains a minimum of
10,000 square feet of net lot area.

(b) An additional mobile operation may be
permitted for each additional 50,000 square
feet of net lot area, up to a maximum of three
[[(3)]] mobile operations per site.

(c) Mobile operations in excess of these
thresholds may only be permitted as a
special event pursuant to the standards for
Mobile Food Service Operations Special
Event set forth in Section 33-13.

>>(14)  Mobile food service operations must obtain all 
required licenses from the State of Florida prior to 
operating in Miami-Dade County.<< 

(B) If it is found that a mobile operation is operating in manner
not consistent with the representations made in the
application package provided to the Department, the
Director shall have the authority to revoke the CU for the
mobile operation immediately.

(C) Except as otherwise provided in this Code, it is unlawful to
conduct mobile operations in any outdoor location without
first obtaining a CU in accordance with the provisions of
this Section.

MDC014



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 13 

(D) The operator of a mobile operation must be able to produce
for inspection: a copy of a letter or other written
communication from the property owner or representative
that authorizes the mobile operation and, for mobile food
service operators, a copy of the applicant's required State
license for food service establishments.

(E) Mobile operations located at County parks, sports stadiums
or racetracks during events shall be exempt from the
requirements of this section but must otherwise comply
with all other applicable requirements in this Code.

Section 5. Article XXXIII of Chapter 33 of the Code of Miami-Dade County, Florida, 

is hereby amended to read as follows: 

ARTICLE XXXIII. AU, AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 

Sec. 33-279. - Uses permitted.  

No land, body of water, or structure shall be maintained, 
used, or permitted to be used, and no structure shall be hereafter 
maintained, erected, constructed, moved, reconstructed, 
structurally altered, or be permitted to be maintained, erected, 
constructed, moved, reconstructed, or structurally altered in an AU 
District, which is designed, arranged, or intended to be used or 
occupied for any purpose, except for one or more of the following 
uses:  

(1) All uses, except golf courses, permitted in the RU-1, EU-
M>>,<< or EU-1 Districts and subject to the restrictions
thereof not inconsistent with this article.

>>(2)<<[[(1.1)]]  A bed and breakfast establishment shall be 
permitted subject to the following limitations: 

* * * 

[[(2)]]>>(3)<< Barns and sheds and packing facilities, in accordance 
with the following conditions: 
(a) Barns and sheds used for cattle or stock and ancillary

feed storage[[;]]>>,<< provided >>that<< such barns
and sheds>>:
1.<< shall not be used for hogs>>; and
2.<< [[and]] shall not be permitted [[unless

approved after public hearing if located]] 

MDC015



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 14 

within >>250<< [[two hundred fifty (250)]] 
feet of a residence under different ownership 
or [[if located within two hundred fifty (250) 
feet]] of an RU[[,]] or EU District >>unless 
approved after public hearing<<.  

(b) Barns, sheds, or other buildings used for the storage
of equipment, feed, fertilizer, produce, or other
items, as ancillary to [[a]] >>an ongoing and lawfully
established agricultural<< use permitted in this
section [[and]] >>is permitted<< only in accordance
with the following unless approved after public
hearing or as otherwise provided in Section 604.50,
Florida Statutes, for nonresidential farm buildings:
1. Such buildings shall be related to the

agricultural use conducted on the property
upon which the buildings are located; and

2. Such structures shall be located at least 50
feet from any residence under different
ownership and any RU or EU zoned property.

>>3.<<  It is provided, however, that a lawfully-
established structure or building shall not be 
required to be removed based on any 
subsequent changes in ownership, zoning 
classification, or development on any 
adjacent property. 

(c) >>Packing of fruits and vegetables within a packing
facility shall be permitted where ancillary to an
ongoing and lawfully established agricultural use 
conducted on the property upon which the packing 
facility is located, where the agricultural use 
encompasses at least 51 percent of the property, and 
in accordance with the following:<< 
1. Small packing facilities used for the packing

of fruit and vegetables upon compliance with
>>all of<< the following conditions:
a. [[Such use shall be accessory to an

agricultural use conducted on the
property upon which the packing
facility is located and said agricultural
use must encompass fifty-one (51)
percent or more of the property.

b.]] The packing facility shall be located
at least >>100<< [[one hundred
(100)]] feet from any property line.

>>b.< [[c.]]  The small packing facility shall
not exceed >>3,500<< [[three

MDC016



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 15 

thousand five hundred (3,500)]] 
square feet. 

2. Large packing facilities used for the packing
of fruit and vegetables upon compliance with
all of the following conditions:
a. [[Such use shall be accessory to an

agricultural use conducted on the
entire property upon which the
parking facility is located, and said
agricultural use must encompass
fifty-one (51) percent or more of the
property.

b.]] The lot upon which the packing
facility is located shall not be less
than ten [[(10)]] acres.

>>b.<<[[c.]] Packing operations shall be
discontinued if the farm or grove use 
is abandoned. 

>>c.<<[[d.]] Incidental cleaning, 
storage>>,<< and shipping of the fruit 
and vegetables is permitted. 

>>d.<< [[e.]]  Outside storage of refrigerated
containers is prohibited unless the 
refrigeration system is powered by 
electricity>>, subject to section 33-
279.3<<. 

>>e.<<  The parking of >>vehicles shall
comply with section 33-279.3<< 
[[trucks with refrigeration powered 
by means other than electricity is 
permitted on a temporary basis only 
until the truck is loaded for delivery]]. 

f. The packing facility shall be
>>100<< [[one hundred (100)]] feet
from any property line.

g. Site plan approval is secured [[from
the Department]] >>pursuant to
section 33-310.4<<.

h. [[Upon compliance with all
conditions enumerated, a]] >>A<<
certificate of use >>pursuant to
section 33-8 shall be obtained.<<
[[and occupancy is secured from the
Building and Zoning Department.]]

3. The term >>“<<packing facility>>”<< shall
include>>:<<  any building, lean-to, pole

MDC017



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 16 

barn>>,<< or open area utilized [[by the 
farmer or grove owner]] in the course of 
packing fruit or vegetables>>;<< [[as well 
as]] any areas>>,<< whether or not within a 
building>>,<< used for the cleaning of 
produce, storing of [[trucks, equipment,]] 
coolers, refrigerated containers, packing 
crates>>,<< or other items used in the 
packing operation>>;<< and >>storage 
and<< parking of any vehicles >>and 
equipment allowed pursuant to section 33-
279.3<< [[including employee cars and 
trucks used by the farmer or grove owner to 
transport the produce to or from the site as 
well as any trucks on the property being 
loaded for the purpose of transporting the 
produce onto or off the property]]. 

>>4. The sale, shipping, and marketing of products
packed at such facility is allowed as ancillary 
to a packing operation. 

(d) Except for a large packing facility, a certificate of use
pursuant to section 33-8 shall not be required for the 
uses authorized by this subsection. 

(4)<< [[(3)]]  Cattle or stock grazing (not including hog raising).  
>>A certificate of use pursuant to section 33-8 shall not be
required for cattle or stock grazing. 

(5)<< [[(3.1)]]  Commercial Vehicle Storage as defined in Section 
33-1, subject to the following conditions:

* * * 

>>(6)<< [[(4)]]  Raising or keeping of [[two]] hogs [[per site.]]>>, 
subject to the following: 
(a)<< Hog farms and hog raising[[,]] in excess of two hogs 

per site[[,]] shall be permitted only upon approval 
after public hearing >>and shall require a certificate 
of use pursuant to section 33-8. 

(b) A certificate of use pursuant to section 33-8 shall not
be required for raising or keeping of up to two hogs 
per site<<. 

>>(7)<< [[(5)]]  Dairy >>barn<< [[barns shall be subject to approval 
by public hearing, if to]]>>, meaning a barn used for the sole 

MDC018



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 17 

purpose of housing, feeding, and milking cattle, subject to 
the following: 
(a) Such use shall only<< be located within >>50<<

[[fifty (50)]] feet of a residence under separate and
different ownership or [[if to be located]] within
>>500<< [[five hundred (500)]] feet of an RU[[, EU-
M,]] or EU District boundary >>if approved after
public hearing.

(b) A certificate of use pursuant to section 33-8 shall:
1. not be required for a dairy barn that does not

require public hearing; and 
2. be required for a dairy barn requiring a public

hearing for approval<<. 

>>(8)<< [[(5.1)]]  A rural event venue shall be permitted, subject to 
the following conditions and limitations: 

* * * 

(h) An annually-renewable >>certificate of use<<
[[CU]] for each such facility is obtained >>pursuant
to section 33-8<< upon demonstrating compliance
with this subsection. For each >>certificate of use<<
[[CU]] or renewal, a complete application for a rural
event venue shall be submitted to the Department and
shall include the following:

* * * 

(i) Notwithstanding the foregoing, when a rural event
venue is entirely contained within land classified as
agricultural land by the Property Appraiser, only the
following simplified conditions and limitations to
address substantial offsite impacts and emergencies
shall apply to the event venue use:

* * * 

2. The use shall comply with the conditions and
limitations in paragraphs (e)—(h) above,
except that for the initial >>certificate of
use<< [[CU]] or renewal application:

* * * 

MDC019



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 18 

3. These simplified conditions and limitations
shall apply when the land classified as
agricultural land is only a portion of a larger
property, provided that the rural event venue
is entirely contained within land classified as
agricultural land.

* * * 

>>(9)<< [[(6)]]  Farms.  >>A farm means, for a use not otherwise 
enumerated in this section, the land, buildings, support 
facilities, machinery, and other appurtenances used in the 
production of any plant, as defined in s. 581.011, Florida 
Statutes (2022), or animal or insect useful to humans, 
including frog farms otherwise subject to section 33-13 and 
aviaries, and includes, without limitation, any product 
derived therefrom, including aquaculture products. A 
certificate of use pursuant to section 33-8 shall not be 
required for a farm. 

(10)<< [[(6.1)]]  Farm stands >>and fruit and vegetable stands<< 
may be permitted in the area designated >>“Agriculture”<< 
[[agriculture]] on the Adopted Land Use Plan Map of the 
Comprehensive Development Master Plan>>, or as provided 
in sections 33-279.1, and<< upon compliance with the 
following conditions: 
(a) Such [[farm]] stand shall be >>ancillary<<

[[accessory]] to >>an ongoing and lawfully
established agricultural use that encompasses<< [[a
bonafide, actively farmed and harvested agricultural
crop or crops, and said agricultural crops must
encompass]] 51 percent or more of the property.

>>(b)<<  The [[farm]] stand shall be operated only by the 
party engaged in the >>agricultural use<< 
[[production of the crops]] on that property. 

>>(c)<<  The stand shall be operated only during the period 
of time that [[the crops are being produced on]] 
>>the agricultural use is in operation on<< the site[[,
and the farm]]>>.
1. The<< stand use shall be discontinued when

[[farming]] >>the agricultural use<< on the
property is abandoned.

>>2. An agricultural use<< [[Farming on the
property]] shall not be deemed abandoned if 
the property is fallow between seasonal 
growing periods.  [[Agricultural products 

MDC020



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 19 

sold shall not be limited to products grown on 
the property.]] 

>>(d)<< [[(b)]]  Refrigerated storage area(s) are prohibited 
unless the refrigeration system is powered by 
electricity. 

>>(e)<< [[(c)]]  A minimum of six [[(6)]] parking spaces 
shall be provided; said spaces shall be located a 
minimum of >>35<< [[thirty-five (35)]] feet from 
right-of-way pavement. 

>>(f)<< [[(d)]]  The stand shall be located on the property 
with the following setbacks: 
1. From right-of-way pavement>>, 60<< [[sixty

(60)]] feet;
2. From rear property line, >>25<< [[twenty-

five (25)]] feet;
3. From side street property line, >>25<<

[[twenty-five (25)]] feet; and
4. From interior side property line, >>100<<

[[one hundred (100)]] feet.
>>(g)<< [[(e)]]  The stand shall be>>:<< a permanent 

structure of at least one open side; an open-sided, 
portable stand, trailer, or vehicle; or a self-propelled 
uni-body truck. 

>>(h)<< [[(f)]]  The maximum size of the stand shall not 
exceed >>1,500<< [[one thousand five hundred 
(1,500)]] square feet. Refrigerated storage area(s) 
shall be included in computing the size of the stand. 

[[(g)]] >>(i) Products sold at the stand shall comply with 
the following: 
1.<< Agricultural and food products may be 

offered for retail sale, provided that more 
than 51 percent of the products offered for 
sale shall be derived from crops grown in 
Miami-Dade County or animals raised in 
Miami-Dade County. 

>>2. Agricultural products sold at the stand are not
limited to products grown on the property 
where the stand is located. 

(j)<< [[(h)]]  The hours of operation of the [[farm]] stand 
shall be limited to between 6:30 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. 

>>(k) A certificate of use pursuant to section 33-8 shall not 
be required for the uses authorized by this 
subsection.<< 

* * * 

MDC021



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 20 

>>(12)<< [[(7)]]  Groves.  >>A certificate of use pursuant to section 
33-8 shall not be required for a grove.

(13)<< [[(8)]] Greenhouses, nurseries—commercial. >>A
certificate of use pursuant to section 33-8 shall not be 
required for a greenhouse or nursery. 

(14)<< [[(9)]]  Dude ranches and riding academies shall be 
permitted only upon approval after public hearing >>and 
shall require a certificate of use pursuant to section 33-8. 

(15)<< [[(10)]]  Horticultural farming—commercial. >>A 
certificate of use pursuant to section 33-8 shall not be 
required for horticultural farming. 

(16)<< [[(11)]]  Hydroponics or other chemical farming.  >>A 
certificate of use pursuant to section 33-8 shall not be 
required for hydroponics or other chemical farming. 

(17)<< [[(12)]]  Nurseries—horticultural.  >>A certificate of use 
pursuant to section 33-8 shall not be required for a 
horticultural nursery.<<  

[[(13)]]>>(18)  Poultry raising, subject to the following: 
(a)<< The raising of >>100<< [[one hundred (100)]] 

poultry, or more, shall be considered as commercial 
poultry raising.  

>>(b)<<  Buildings housing poultry must be at least 
>>500<< [[five hundred (500)]] feet from any EU or
RU District boundary, and at least >>50<< [[fifty
(50)]] feet from any residence under separate
ownership on any adjacent property.

>>(c) A certificate of use pursuant to section 33-8 is 
required for commercial poultry farming but not 
other poultry farming uses.<< 

* * * 

>>(20)<< [[(14)]]  Truck gardens>>, meaning the cultivation of 
large quantities of vegetable crops.  A certificate of use 
pursuant to section 33-8 shall not be required<<. 

* * * 

>>(23)<< [[(17)]]  Fish pools >>and other aquaculture, subject to 
the following: 

MDC022



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 21 

(a) The location of all structures used for aquaculture<<
shall conform to setbacks for accessory buildings, as
provided in >>section<< [[Section]] 33-282(b).

>>(b) Excavations shall comply with the lake excavation 
requirements set forth in section 33-16 but shall not 
be subject to public hearing. 

(c) Filling of an excavation shall comply with section
33-16.01.

(d) A certificate of use pursuant to section 33-8 is
required.

(e) Each structure that is exempt from the Florida
Building Code shall obtain floodplain review
pursuant to section 11C-3.<<

* * * 

>>(26)<< [[(20)]]  Seed drying facility >>is only permitted upon 
approval after public hearing and only<< on a parcel of land 
not less than >>10<< [[ten (10)]] acres gross [[shall be 
permitted as a special exception upon approval after public 
hearing]].  >>A seed drying facility shall require a certificate 
of use pursuant to section 33-8.<<  

 [[(21) Wineries]] >>(27)  Farm-related wineries<<, 
breweries>>,<< and distilleries [[(farm related)]] as defined 
in Section 33-1, subject to the following conditions:  
(a) [[A farm winery, brewery, or distillery]] >>Such

uses<< may use local or imported >>agricultural<<
[[farm]] products and shall be located on a site with
>>an ongoing and lawfully established agricultural
use<< [[a farm]], which may include direct sales to 
the public on a U-Pick Farm. 

(b) A [[farm]] brewery or distillery not on a site with a
winery shall not exceed production of 250,000
gallons of malted beverage/beer or 125,000 gallons
of distilled spirits respectively.

(c) The property upon which the [[farm and farm]]
>>agricultural use and<< winery, brewery, [[or]]
distillery>>, or combination thereof,<< is located
shall not be less than five [[(5)]] acres gross.

(d) Such a [[farm]] winery, brewery, [[or]] distillery>>,
or combination thereof<< may be open to the public
for events and activities related to the preserving,
processing, packaging>>,<< or selling of
agricultural products from Florida>>,<< including

MDC023



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 22 

tours, product tasting, festivals, parties>>,<< and 
other similar events. 

(e) >>Parking shall comply with the following, except
as provided for farm-related festivals:
1.<< Off-street parking requirements for the 

tasting and sales areas shall be calculated at 
one parking space for every 250 square feet 
of gross floor area or fractional part thereof. 

>>2.<< Office and other use areas shall have 
off-street parking spaces provided for such 
areas as otherwise provided in this Code.  [[In 
addition to the aforementioned parking 
requirements, at the time of application for 
ZIP, parking for indoor or outdoor farm-
related festivals shall be determined by the 
Director and such requirements shall be 
based on the number of people that can 
reasonably be assumed to be on such 
premises at one (1) time. Said determination 
shall be calculated on a basis of one (1) 
parking space for each four (4) persons.]] 

(f) Food service, preparation>>,<< and consumption,
including table service, shall be >>ancillary<<
[[accessory]] to the production of wine, beer>>,<<
[[or]] distilled spirits>>, or combination thereof<<.

(g) The hours of retail sales operation for the farm-
related winery, brewery, [[or]] distillery>>, or
combination thereof<< shall not extend beyond
11:00 p.m. 

(h) Outdoor farm-related festivals shall be
allowable>>,<< [[on properties having a current
Certificate of Use for a farm-related winery,
brewery, or distillery]] provided:
(1) No such [[outdoor farm-related]] festival

shall be more than three [[(3)]] days long.
(2) A Zoning Improvement Permit (ZIP) [[for

outdoor farm-related festivals]] shall be
obtained for each festival.

>>(3) As part of the ZIP review process, the 
Director shall determine the required parking 
for each farm-related festival, which 
determination shall be based on the number 
of people that can reasonably be assumed to 
be lawfully on such premises at one time for 
the festival use and shall be calculated on a 

MDC024



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 23 

basis of one parking space for each four 
persons. 

(4)<< No more than a total of six [[(6)]] outdoor 
farm-related festivals shall be held per 
calendar year per farm. 

>>(5)<<  Such outdoor farm-related festivals shall be 
restricted to daylight hours only. 

(i) The use of mechanically amplified outdoor
entertainment shall be prohibited from 11:00 p.m. to
9:00 a.m.

(j) The winery, brewery, [[or]] distillery>>, or
combination thereof<< shall not be located in the
East Everglades Area of Environmental Concern as
that area is described in Chapter 33B, Code of
Miami-Dade County.

>>(k) The facility may have ancillary uses as permitted 
under this section, including uses that permit the sale 
and consumption of products manufactured on site, 
as allowed by applicable licenses from the State of 
Florida Division of Alcoholic Beverages and 
Tobacco. 

(l) A certificate of use pursuant to section 33-8 shall be
required for such winery, brewery, distillery, or 
combination thereof, if it includes food service, 
preparation, or consumption but not for other uses 
permitted by this subsection. 

(28)<< [[(22)]]  Uses ancillary to and directly supportive of 
agriculture >>not otherwise enumerated in this section<<. 
(a) Definitions. For purposes of this subsection,

>>subsections (29) and (30)<<[[subsection (23)]],
and Section 33-279.3, the following definitions shall
apply:
1. "Agriculture" or "agricultural" includes,

without limitation: horticulture; floriculture;
viticulture; aquaculture, including
algaculture; pisciculture; apiculture; forestry;
dairy farming; keeping or farming of
livestock or poultry; and sod farming.

2. >>“Agritourism” means any agricultural
related activity consistent with a bona fide
farm, livestock operation, or ranch or in a 
working forest which allows members of the 
general public, for recreational, 
entertainment, or educational purposes, to 
view or enjoy activities, including farming, 

MDC025



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 24 

ranching, historical, cultural, civic, 
ceremonial, training and exhibition, or 
harvest-your-own activities and attractions. 
i. An agritourism activity does not

include the construction of new or 
additional structures or facilities 
intended primarily to house, shelter, 
transport, or otherwise accommodate 
members of the general public. 

ii. An activity is an agritourism activity
regardless of whether the participant 
paid to participate in the activity. 

iii. The construction of new or additional
structures or facilities intended 
primarily to house, shelter, transport, 
or otherwise accommodate members 
of the general public is subject to 
compliance with the Florida Building 
Code, chapter 24 of this code, and 
other applicable regulations. 

3.<< “Farm equipment” means, in accordance 
with >>sections<< [[Sections]] 316.003 and 
604.40, Florida Statutes (2020), tractors or 
farm implements that are primarily designed 
for or primarily used in agriculture. 
i. This term includes, without

limitation, the following: farm
tractor; all-terrain vehicle; combine;
harvester; backhoe; front loader;
plow; mower; implements of
husbandry; irrigation trucks; and any
other equipment that is used on a farm
that is not required by the State of
Florida to be registered as a motor
vehicle.

ii. This term includes such other
implements as determined by the
Director to be primarily designed for
or used in agriculture and not for off-
road construction, mining, utility, or
industrial purposes.

iii. This term excludes: equipment
designed for or used in off-road
construction, mining, utility, and
industrial purposes; and Category 3

MDC026



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 25 

vehicles as defined in >>section<< 
[[Section]] 33-124.1. 

[[3.]]>>4.<< “Farm supplies” means materials, 
other than farm equipment, that are primarily 
designed for or primarily used in agriculture. 

(b) General requirements. Except as provided in this
article for outdoor storage, maintenance, and repair
of farm equipment, distribution vehicles, and other
classified vehicles, all uses enumerated in this
subsection shall be subject to the following
requirements:
1. Each use shall only be authorized on a

property that:
i. Is designated Agriculture on the

Comprehensive Development Master
Plan Land Use Plan Map; and

ii. Contains land that has been classified
by the Miami-Dade County Property
Appraiser as agricultural land.

2. >>Except as provided in this subsection or
section 33-279.3, a certificate of use pursuant
to section 33-8 shall not be required for uses 
authorized by this subsection<< [[The 
property or business owner shall obtain from 
the Department an annually renewable 
certificate of use for each use]]. 

(c) The following uses shall be permitted when ancillary
to an ongoing and lawfully established agricultural
use:
1. The packing, processing, or sale of

agricultural goods or products produced
within the State of Florida >>and not
otherwise enumerated in this section<<.

2. Farm tours, farm meals, cooking classes,
agricultural workshops, agricultural
education, [[and agritourism, including]] U-
Pick, pony rides, [[and]] horseback riding>>,
and agritourism not otherwise enumerated
herein<<. 

3. Farmers’ markets, restricted to the sale of
fruits, vegetables, live farm animals, [[and]]
plants, [[as well as]] >>and<< products
derived directly therefrom>>, and not
otherwise classified as a farm stand or fruit
and vegetable stand<<. 

MDC027



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 26 

4. Uses determined by the Director to be similar
to those enumerated in subparagraphs (1)—
(3) above. In determining similarity between
a proposed use and the uses enumerated
above, the Director shall be guided by
whether the proposed use is ancillary to and
directly supportive of agriculture.

5. The sale and service of farm equipment and
farm supplies.

6. Outdoor storage, maintenance, and repair of
farm equipment, distribution vehicles, and
other classified vehicles, only in accordance
with this subsection and with Section 33-
279.3; it is provided, however, that such use
may be a primary use on a lot as provided
therein.

>>7. Mobile food service operations, only in
accordance with the following: 
i. Each such operation complies with

section 33-14.1, except that a 
certificate of use shall not be 
required; and 

ii. The mobile food service operation
uses only self-contained utilities, 
including but not limited to gas, 
water, and waste disposal, and is not 
connected to and does not use any 
utility that is not self-contained, 
except for electrical connections 
permitted by section 33-14.1; and 

iii. Except for self-contained utilities in
the mobile food service operation, the 
storage, processing, or disposal of 
solid or liquid waste, as defined in 
sections 24-5 or 15-1, including, 
without limitation, any vegetable or 
animal product used in, or a 
byproduct of, the cooking, food 
preparation, or cleaning process, from 
any such operation shall not occur on 
the agricultural property. 

iv. Overnight storage of a mobile food
service vehicle is permitted on the 
agricultural property on which it is 
used.  All other vehicle storage is 
subject to section 33-279.3. 

MDC028



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 27 

(29)<< [[(23)]]  The sale of farm supplies and farm equipment, 
together with general retail items, subject to the following 
requirements: 
(a) Administrative site plan review and approval

pursuant to >>section<< [[Section]] 33-310.4 >>and
a certificate of use pursuant to section 33-8 are<<
[[is]] required. 

* * * 

>>(30) General provisions relating to agricultural uses.  
(a) For uses allowed pursuant to this article where

located on a property with, or ancillary to, an
ongoing and lawfully established agricultural use,
the primary agricultural use shall be one of the
following uses enumerated in this section:
1. Cattle or stock grazing (not including hog

raising).
2. Raising or keeping of hogs.
3. Dairy barn.
4. Farm.
5. Grove.
6. Greenhouses, nurseries—commercial.
7. Horticultural farming—commercial.
8. Hydroponics or other chemical farming.
9. Nurseries—horticultural.
10. Poultry raising.
11. Truck garden.
12. Fish pool or other aquaculture.
13. Seed drying facility.

(b) Obtaining an agricultural classification as provided
in section 193.461, Florida Statutes, as may be
amended, is not required to demonstrate compliance
with this subsection.

(c) For uses that this section exempts from obtaining a
certificate of use pursuant to section 33-8, the
following shall apply:
1. Building permits shall be obtained for any

structure that is not a nonresidential farm 
building, farm sign, or farm fence, as defined 
in section 604.50, Florida Statutes. 

2. Where the use involves a structure that is
exempt from the Florida Building Code, 
floodplain review pursuant to section 11C-3 
shall be required. 

MDC029



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 28 

3. It is provided, however, that, notwithstanding
chapter 11C or any other provision of this 
code to the contrary,  floodplain review shall 
not be required for the following structures 
when located outside of a special flood 
hazard area and coastal high hazard area and 
when they are accessory buildings for an 
ongoing and lawfully established agricultural 
use:  pre-manufactured sheds; site-built 
sheds; cargo containers; and pole barns and 
other structures that are open on at least one 
side. 

(d) For uses that provide food service to the public:
1. Where such uses do not provide bathrooms in

a permanent building, sufficient portable 
toilets to accommodate the public shall be 
provided. 

2. Where such uses provide bathrooms in a
permanent building: 
i. the bathrooms shall be served by a

public water main and a public 
sanitary sewer system; or 

ii. where a public water main is not
available, the bathroom shall be 
served by a legally established 
domestic well approved pursuant to 
chapter 24, and where a public 
sanitary sewer system is not 
available, the bathroom shall be 
served by a legally established onsite 
sewage treatment and disposal system 
approved pursuant to chapter 24. 

(d) Presumption of compliance.  For uses that require a
minimum percentage of products to come from 
certain areas or sources, the use shall be presumed to 
comply with such requirement, subject to rebuttal by 
the Department, where the property owner or tenant 
presents to the Department: executed contracts, 
manifests, bills of lading, load tenders, confirmations 
of tender, proofs of delivery, payment records, or any 
combination thereof, to establish that the products 
were obtained from the required area or source. 

(e) Voluntary certificate of use.  A use that does not
require a certificate of use pursuant to section 33-8 
shall be deemed to comply with this section where: 
1. The property owner has:

MDC030



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 29 

i. voluntarily obtained from the 
Department such a C.U. after 
submitting an application that 
contains the information required by 
this paragraph; or 

ii. has previously obtained a C.U. for a
similar use based on presenting 
substantially similar information, as 
determined by the Department. 

2. To comply with this paragraph (d), the
application for voluntary C.U. shall include a 
site plan or sketch, subject to the 
Department's approval, that identifies: 
i. the location and size of the primary

agricultural use or uses; 
ii. the location and size of any ancillary

use or uses; 
iii. the location of all structures for

agricultural uses and ancillary uses, 
respectively, including demonstrating 
compliance with applicable setback 
standards; and 

iv. the location and type of required
visual buffering.<< 

* * * 

Sec. 33-279.2. - Agricultural Uses Permitted in Areas Located 

Outside the Urban Development Boundary, Designated 

Agriculture on the Comprehensive Development Master Plan 

and Zoned EU, RU, BU or IU. 

Notwithstanding any provisions to the contrary in Chapter 
33 of this Code, the agricultural uses provided in this Section are 
permissible in areas zoned EU, RU, BU>>,<< and IU that are 
designated Agriculture on the Comprehensive Development Master 
Plan Land Use Plan Map and that are located outside of the Urban 
Development Boundary.  

* * * 

(c) For all properties subject to this Section:
(1) The property shall conform to the minimum lot size

and setback requirements of the underlying zoning
district.

MDC031



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 30 

(2) Agricultural uses on the property shall not be subject
to the underlying zoning district's landscaping and lot
coverage requirements.

(3) >>Agricultural uses shall be governed by section 33-
279 as to certificates of use, zoning improvement
permits, and floodplain review<< [[A Zoning
Improvement Permit shall be obtained prior to
establishing any agricultural use]].

>>(4) This section shall not be construed to limit the use of 
the property in accordance with the underlying 
zoning district to the extent permitted by the 
CDMP.<<  

Sec. 33-279.3 - Outdoor storage of farm equipment, distribution 

vehicles, and other classified vehicles; presumption of illegal 

commercial vehicle storage.  

(1) Outdoor storage, maintenance, and repair of farm
equipment, distribution vehicles, and other classified
vehicles is permitted in the AU district, only in accordance
with Section 33-279 and this section.

(2) Definitions. For purposes of this section, the following
definitions shall apply:
(a) “Distribution vehicle” means any Category 3

vehicle, as defined in section 33-124.1, that is used
to distribute qualified products and is an integral part
of a farm operation.  It is provided, however, that
open commercial car carrier trailers of a double-
decker design shall not be construed to qualify for
this classification.

(b) “Onsite storage” means:
i. The vehicle is stored on the lot where it is

primarily used for the distribution of
qualified products; or

ii. The vehicle is stored on a lot that is adjacent
to or contiguous with the lot where it is
primarily used, provided that the lots are
owned by the same person or legal entity.

(c) “Offsite storage” means that the vehicle is stored on
a lot that does not qualify for onsite storage.

(d) “Owner” includes a lessee, and “own” includes a
lease.

(e) “Qualified product” means:
i. an agricultural good or product, including,

without limitation, products of fish pools,

MDC032



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 31 

nurseries, wineries, breweries, and 
distilleries, that is lawfully grown or 
cultivated on a property in Miami-Dade 
County; or 

ii. an agricultural good or product that is
packed, processed, or sold at a lawfully
established packing house or other property
where such packing, processing, or sale is
permitted in accordance with this section; or

iii. goods or supplies used for or in conjunction
with the cultivation, packing, or processing
of the goods or products referenced in
subparagraphs i. or ii. above.

(f) “Storage” includes parking and maintenance and
repair, including major overhauls and major repairs.

* * * 

(4) General requirements for outdoor vehicle storage uses.  The
following general requirements apply to all outdoor storage
of vehicles:
(a) The outdoor storage use is ancillary to an >>ongoing

and lawfully established<< agricultural use
authorized on the subject property pursuant to
section 33-279, except as provided in this section for
offsite storage >>and for onsite storage on adjacent
or contiguous property<<.

* * * 

(f) A certificate of use is required for offsite storage of
distribution vehicles but not for onsite storage.

(g) Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit a
distribution vehicle from being parked on the lot
where the distribution vehicle is actively loading or
unloading qualified products from or for a packing
house or >>other ongoing and lawfully established
agricultural use authorized pursuant to section 33-
279<< [[farm]], including where such vehicle is
operating a refrigeration unit.

* * * 

(6) Maximum number of distribution vehicles.
(a) >>Amount allowed as of right for storage on the

subject property.  The number of distribution

MDC033



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 32 

vehicles allowed on a single lot shall not be limited 
where: 
i. Such storage is ancillary to an agricultural

use on the subject property; or
ii. The subject property is zoned BU or IU.

(b)<<  Amount allowed as of right >>for onsite storage on 
adjacent or contiguous property or for offsite 
storage<<.  Unless a greater number is approved as 
provided in this subsection, the maximum number of 
distribution vehicles allowed on a single lot >>being 
used for offsite storage, or for onsite storage where 
adjacent to or contiguous with the lot on which it the 
vehicles are used,<< shall be as follows: 
i. No more than >>2<< [[0.4]] distribution

vehicles are permitted per gross acre,
provided that no more than 200 distribution
vehicles are stored on a single lot, regardless
of whether the storage is onsite or offsite.
Fractions of 0.5 or greater shall be rounded
up to the nearest whole number.

ii. >>Notwithstanding the foregoing, on lots
that are contained wholly within 2,000 feet of
the Urban Development Boundary (UDB),
up to 10 distribution vehicles are permitted
per gross acre, provided that no more than
400 distribution vehicles are stored on a
single lot, regardless of whether the storage is
onsite or offsite.  Fractions of 0.5 or greater
shall be rounded up to the nearest whole
number.

iii.<< Notwithstanding the foregoing, at least one 
distribution vehicle, including a semitrailer, 
truck-tractor, or combination thereof, shall be 
permitted regardless of lot size. 

>>iv.<< [[iii.]]  Trailer or semitrailer portions may
be stored separately from truck tractors.  In 
that event, the maximum permitted number 
of distribution vehicles shall be calculated 
based on the trailer or semitrailer portions. It 
is provided, however, that where the number 
of truck tractors exceeds the number of 
trailers or semitrailers, each excess truck 
tractor shall be counted as a distribution 
vehicle. 

>>v.<< [[iv.]] Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
additional distribution vehicles beyond the 

MDC034



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 33 

[[0.4]] per acre limitation above are permitted 
at a ratio of one vehicle for each 5 acres of 
property, up to a maximum of 5 additional 
vehicles, only in accordance with the 
following:  
1. Fractional portions of property shall

be rounded up to the next 5-acre
increment for the purposes of this
calculation.

2. The additional distribution vehicles
are limited to: box trucks; flatbed
trucks; horse and stock animal
carriers; and other similar vehicles as
approved by the Director in
consultation with the County’s
Agricultural Manager.

3. Semitrailers, as defined in section
316.003, Fla. Stat., that are over 20
feet in length, and truck tractors, as
defined in section 320.01, Fla. Stat.,
shall not qualify for this allowance for
additional distribution vehicles.

>>(c)<<[[(b)]]  Administrative adjustments. Where the 
applicant demonstrates a need for additional 
distribution vehicles and demonstrates that approval 
will not be a detriment to nearby properties, will not 
have an adverse effect on physical or environmental 
conditions in the surrounding area, and will be 
otherwise compatible with the surrounding land uses, 
an increase of up to 50 percent above the number of 
distribution vehicles permitted by paragraph >>(b)i. 
and ii.<< [[(a)i. and ii.]] for semitrailers or truck 
tractors, or up to 100 percent for other distribution 
vehicles, may be approved as follows:  

* * * 

iii. The number of additional distribution
vehicles allowed pursuant to subparagraph
>>(b)iv.<< [[(a)iv.]] shall not be eligible for
administrative adjustment.

>>(d)<<[[(c)]]  Special exception. A greater number of 
distribution vehicles is permitted if approved as a 
special exception after public hearing in accordance 
with Section 33-311.  

MDC035



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 34 

* * * 

Section 6. Division 2 of article III of chapter 24 of the Code of Miami-Dade County, 

Florida, is hereby amended to read as follows: 

DIVISION 2. - WELLFIELD PROTECTION, DOMESTIC 

WELL SYSTEMS AND POTABLE WATER STANDARDS 

* * * 

Sec. 24-43.1. Liquid waste disposal and potable water supply 

systems. 

* * * 

(4) Nonresidential land uses with potable water or OSTDS with
only domestic sewage. Notwithstanding any provision of this
code to the contrary, no County or municipal officer, agent,
employee, or board shall approve, grant or issue any building
permit, certificate of use or occupancy (except for changes
in ownership for facilities that do not require an operating
permit pursuant to Section 24-18), municipal occupational
license (except for changes in ownership for facilities that do
not require an operating permit pursuant to Section 24-18),
platting action (final plat, waiver of plat, or equivalent
municipal platting action), development agreement subject
to the Florida Local Government Development Agreement
Act, zoning action (district boundary change, unusual use,
special exception, use variance, or equivalent municipal
zoning action), or other development order or development
permit for any nonresidential land use served or to be served
by any source of potable water supply or an OSTDS without
obtaining the Director's prior written approval pursuant to
this subsection.

Furthermore, notwithstanding any provision of this code, no
person shall construct, utilize, operate, occupy, or cause,
allow, let, permit, or suffer to be constructed, utilized,
operated, or occupied, any nonresidential land use served or
to be served by any source of potable water or an OSTDS
without obtaining the Director's prior written approval. >>It
is provided, however, that a mobile food service operation

MDC036



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 35 

that complies with section 33-279 is not subject to this 
subsection.<<  

Written approval shall only be issued if it is demonstrated 
that the only liquid waste (excluding liquid wastes associated 
with >>the following:<<  the processing of agricultural 
produce in agricultural packing houses [[and liquid wastes 
associated with]] >>;<< [[an]] agricultural >>vehicles or<< 
[[vehicle or,]] agricultural equipment maintenance 
facilities[[,]]>>; farm-related breweries, distilleries, or 
wineries or mobile food service operations that comply with 
section 33-279; or<< stormwater and water used within a 
self-contained water recycling car wash facility, provided 
said facility does not backwash the recycling filters) that 
shall be generated, disposed of, discharged, or stored on the 
property shall be domestic sewage discharged into an 
OSTDS that complies with section 24-42.7, that the property 
is not within a feasible distance for public water mains and 
public sanitary sewers, and only: 
(a) After the owner of the property (excluding property

upon which an agricultural vehicle or agricultural
equipment maintenance facility operates) submits to
the Director [[or the Director's designee]] a covenant
running with the land executed by the owner of the
property in favor of Miami-Dade County >>that<<
[[which]] provides that the only liquid waste
(>>except for those liquid wastes excluded by this
subsection (4) above<< [[excluding liquid wastes
associated with the processing of agricultural
produce in agricultural packing houses and liquid
wastes associated with agricultural vehicle or
agricultural equipment maintenance facilities,
stormwater and water used within a self-contained
water recycling car wash facility, provided said
facility does not backwash the recycling filters]])
which shall be generated, disposed of, discharged, or
stored on the property shall be domestic sewage
discharged into >>an OSTDS<< [[a septic tank]].
>>(i)<<  Said covenants shall be in a form(s)

prescribed by the Director [[and approved by 
the Board of County Commissioners]].  

MDC037



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 36 

>>(ii)<<  The covenants shall be recorded by the 
Department at the expense of the owner of the 
property>>. 

(iii) The Director is authorized to accept
modifications of previously approved
covenants to conform to this paragraph
(4)(c)<<; and

* * * 

(c) If the Director or the Director's designee determines
that the existing nonresidential land use for the
property or the nonresidential land use requested for
the property is served or to be served by an onsite
domestic well system and [[a septic tank]] >>an
OSTDS<< and is not one [[(1)]] or more of the
following nonresidential land uses:
(i) Establishments [[primarily]] engaged in the

handling of food and drink>>; it is provided,
however, that the preparation, cooking, or
table service of food or drink when ancillary
to an ongoing and lawfully established
agricultural use to the extent permitted in
section 33-279 may be permitted<< [[except
factory prepackaged products and 
agricultural crops and, food preparation 
facilities on agricultural properties which 
serve the prepared food and drink on site]].  

* * * 

(6) Other nonresidential land uses without public water, public
sanitary sewer, or both. Notwithstanding any provision of
this code to the contrary, no County or municipal officer,
agent, employee, or board shall approve, grant or issue any
building permit, certificate of use, certificate of occupancy,
municipal occupational license, platting action (final plat,
waiver of plat or equivalent municipal platting action),
development agreement subject to the Florida Local
Government Development Agreement Act, zoning action
(district boundary change, unusual use, special exception,
use variance, or equivalent municipal zoning action), or
other development order or development permit for any

MDC038



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 37 

nonresidential land use served or to be served by any 
>>method for<< [[liquid waste]] storage, disposal, or
treatment [[method]] >>of liquid waste (excluding liquid
wastes associated with the following:  the processing of
agricultural produce in agricultural packing houses;
agricultural vehicles or agricultural equipment maintenance
facilities; or farm-related breweries, distilleries, or wineries
or mobile food service operations that comply with section
33-279)<< other than public sanitary sewers, or by any
source of potable water supply other than a public water
main, without obtaining the Director's prior written
approval.

Furthermore, notwithstanding any provision of this code to 
the contrary, no person shall construct, utilize, operate, 
occupy, or cause, allow, let, permit, or suffer to be 
constructed, utilized, operated, or occupied, any 
nonresidential land use served by any >>method for<< 
[[liquid waste]] storage, disposal, or treatment [[method]] 
>>of liquid waste (except for those liquid wastes excluded
by this subsection (6) above)<<, other than public sanitary
sewers or any source of potable water supply other than a
public water main, without obtaining the Director's prior
written approval.  >>It is provided, however, that a mobile
food service operation that complies with section 33-279 is
not subject to this subsection.<<

Such written approval shall only be issued if one or more of 
the following is met:  

* * * 

Sec. 24-43.2. Regulation of on-site domestic well systems and 

other water supply wells. 

(1) Regulation of on-site domestic well systems generally.
(a) Notwithstanding any provision of this code to the

contrary, no County or municipal officer, agent,
employee, or board shall approve, grant or issue any
building permit, certificate of use or occupancy
(except for changes in ownership), municipal
occupational license (except for changes in
ownership), platting action (final plat, waiver of plat
or equivalent municipal platting action),

MDC039



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 38 

development agreement subject to the Florida Local 
Government Development Agreement Act, zoning 
action (district boundary change, unusual use, 
special exception, use variance, or equivalent 
municipal zoning action), or other development 
order or development permit for any land use served 
or to be served by an on-site domestic well system 
without obtaining the Director's prior written 
approval.  

Furthermore, notwithstanding any provision of this 
code to the contrary, no person shall construct, 
utilize, operate, occupy, or cause, allow, let, permit, 
or suffer to be constructed, utilized, operated, or 
occupied, any land use served or to be served by a 
domestic well system without obtaining the 
Director's prior written approval.  

Such written approval shall only be issued if the 
Director determines all of the following are met:  
(i) the existing or requested land use for the

property complies with Section 24-43.1; and
(ii) the installation of a public water main to

serve the property from the nearest available
point of connection to an available public
water main is not within feasible distance for
public water mains; and

(iii) the groundwater at the site does not require
treatment [[in order]] to meet the primary
drinking water quality standards specified in
Chapter >>62-550<< [[62-55]], Florida
Administrative Code, as same may be
amended from time to time; and

(iv) the groundwater at the site does not contain
more than 250 milligrams per liter (mg/l) of
chlorides at a depth of 30 feet from ground
elevation>>; and

(v) for establishments engaged in the 
preparation, cooking, or table service of food 
or drink when ancillary to an ongoing and 
lawfully established agricultural use to the 
extent permitted in section 33-279, the 
following additional requirements: 
1. the groundwater at the site complies

with secondary drinking water quality
standards specified in Chapter 62-

MDC040



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 39 

550, Florida Administrative Code, as 
same may be amended from time to 
time, or treatment is provided to 
comply; 

2. the on-site domestic well water
treatment system or treatment train is
designed for land uses within the cone
of influence of the well based on the
maximum day flow rate, but not less
than 1/8-mile;

3. the on-site domestic well system
includes mechanical, electrical, and
component reliability to assure
uninterrupted supply and treatment;

4. the Director has given written
approval for monitoring plans for the
following, including samping
frequency for primary drinking water 
standards: 
a. a sentinel groundwater 

monitoring plan, which 
includes monitoring wells; 
and 

b. a raw (untreated) and treated
water monitoring plan; and

5. the Director has given written
approval for a water treatment system
operation and maintenance plan,
which includes a Class C or higher
Operator performing  site visits on a
frequency based on treatment
processes and flow rate, but not less 
than 5 visits per week and one visit 
each weekend for a total of 2.4 
hours/week ; and 

6. the system includes a disinfection
system that provides 4-log removal or
inactivation of pathogens with an
inactivation ratio equal to or greater
than one based on peak hourly flow
rate.

7. Notwithstanding any provision of this
chapter to the contrary, a mobile food
service operation that complies with
section 33-279 is not subject to this
section.<<

MDC041



Agenda Item No. 4(C) 
Page 40 

*    *  * 

Section 7. Section 33-279 of the Code shall be renumbered pursuant to the revisions 

in section 2 above. 

Section 8. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or provision of this ordinance is 

held invalid, the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected by such invalidity.  

Section 9. It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners, and it is hereby 

ordained that the provisions of this ordinance, including any sunset provision, shall become and 

be made a part of the Code of Miami-Dade County, Florida.  The sections of this ordinance may 

be renumbered or relettered to accomplish such intention, and the word "ordinance" may be 

changed to "section," "article," or other appropriate word.  

Section 10. This ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after the date of 

enactment unless vetoed by the Mayor, and if vetoed, shall become effective only upon an override 

by this Board.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED: 

Approved by County Attorney as 
to form and legal sufficiency:  ________ 

Prepared by:  ________ 

Dennis A. Kerbel 

Prime Sponsor:   Commissioner Kionne L. McGhee 

MDC042



Biscayne Bay Watershed Restoration Plan (WRP)

The watershed restoration plan is a 
collection of all the tools in our toolbox 

used to achieve water quality and seagrass 
restoration and Biscayne Bay health. 

Identify water quality problem

Develop RAP
Addresses reduction of 

phosphorus and 
nitrogen loads 

Develop and Implement a 

Watershed Restoration Plan
Addresses all factors impacting the 
health of Biscayne Bay water quality 

and seagrass habitats 

Conduct Monitoring and 

Track Progress with 

Adaptive Management

Meet Water 

Quality Standards

A Watershed Restoration Plan 

should address things like: 
• Growth/development policies

• Zoning and planning policies

• Contamination sources that can 
impact groundwater that ultimately 
reaches Biscayne Bay

• Implications of climate change, 
resilience, and sea level rise

• Outreach and engagement with 
diverse stakeholder groups, 
including local governments

• Enforcement activities and 
practices

• Flood protection, storage, and 
aquifer recharge

•  Increased development pressures 

• Recreation/aesthetics (e.g., 
access, river walks, boating, 
fishing, swimming)

• Protection of high-quality wetlands 

• Post-disaster efforts 

• Protection of drinking water 
sources

• Local and regional restoration 
activities, including CERP



�����������	
���	����������������������������������������������������



���������	
���
��������
�������
�������
��
�������
����������
���������
������
�����
������������
 ��������
������������
���
���
�����
��������
��������
�����
���
�������
�!
�!�������
!��
���������
 ��������"�����
�����
��
������
���
�������
 ����
#����$%
���
��������
��!���
��
��������$
���
���������$
��������
����
������
������$
�����
��#��������%
���
��������
����
���
���������
!��
�����
��������
��
�����������
���
�
�
�
���������
����!%
�����
�
����
���
�����
������$
�����
��#��������
��
&'(�
�������
����������
���������
������
�����
������������
 ��������
������������
��
���
�����
���
����
���
����$
��
�
���������
�������
�����
����
���
������������%
&'(�
������
�������$�
�����
�����������
���
���������
����
������
��)���
�����
���
��������
��
�����
����������
��
�
����"�$"����
����
����
�!!��
!���
���
�������%
���
���
�!
�����������$
 ����
�)�
*+,-./�
0,-./�
1,-./�
234�
256+7�
890,229:/�
9:0,-8369�
9;<907�
���
03:
�
���
�������
�����
�����$
����
��������
�
���������
��
�����������=
�
����
���
����
����
���
���������
��
�������������
�
������$
��#�����
����
�
������
������$
�����
��#���������
��
����
!���� ��
���
���������
��
�������������
���������$
�������
��
�>��������
�!
&'(
��������%
?���������
������
���
!���
��
����
#�������
���
��@������
�����
���
��������������
�!
���
���������
�!
���
�������
��
�
��������
���
&'(
 ��
�������
 ������
���
��������������
�
���
�������
���
����������
�
����
�������%
&'(
����
������
���
�������
�
���
!�����%
A
B-50C
D-5/9
7,
E3798*+9/
F3:36929:7
 ��
��������
�$
�����
�����
?��%�
�����
�
��������
 ��
&'(%
���
����
 ��
���������
 ��
����
!���
!�������
������
���
�����
 ��������
�����������
���
��������
�>�����%

G����
H�����
&�����������
'��������
(����$
I!!��
�!
J��������
I������
���
J���������
K������
H�����
L������
M�����
NOPQR�S
TUQQ
'����$�����
(��%�
KJ
J���������
VL
UQOWQ
&'(
XOT"Y"TR"QQR
Z�$
UQTR




�����������	
����
�
����������
���
	�����������
����
���	�����
����������
���
����� �!�"��#�$�%�&'�(���")�*&'��+��'��,-��+.�/00�+��'0�1��)"� #2�/+�"�#2�"� �1"��&#3� #�4'�5'����!'6&+��7'��&')�8&"�+3�9:;<=>?�@A<<�*���#.)%"��"�,%�B2�41�1"#3��-�'�2�C7�A<:D<�$*,�E:@FGF@=F<<=�H".�A<@=������������	
����
�
����������
���
	������� ����



��������	��
�	
���
���	�����
�

��� ������������	�����	�	���
�����	���	����
��



����������	
��	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������		����������	������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������	���
����������	������������ ���!��"��������������������������������������������������������������������#��$�	�"�%�	����������
������������&������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	'�	����(�����$�	�"�%�	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)��	�����(�������$�	�"�%�	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������*�+,-.��/��0�.1,�2)+�-+������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3�4����
���	�������/	����	�	����,������
��(�����
���52
������
������������������������������������������������������6�+��7
����,((���	�������
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������8�+��7����2�	���������
�	7
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������8������	(#�9�#�+�"�������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������8������	(#��

��
��(�-�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������:�+�������	�	��#�%��
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������:�������7�����	�	��#����	����
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������:�-���������;�	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������<�+��7�*��-������	'����������
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������<�%�����,=	
�	���������-����������
������������#�����������������������������������������������������������������������<������	(#����%7
����-�������)��	�	�������	(�/���

�#�����������������������������������������������������������������>�)��#'�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������>�+��7�3��+���%��
���������	(#�+����	��
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������+����������%��
��������������;?���	��
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������7����	����
@.����
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������*�������	���A���B�����	��
�/����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������3������	(#��������������	��
����)��	����%��
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������3�+��7�C����
	�������7�������	�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������C�������7�����7�������	���+����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������C��	��
����
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������C�2������"
������
����������

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������6����	���	���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������6���(����	��@,����	���-��7�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������8�D�EFGHI�JFGKL�MN�OLPLQNRGST�UVMLWXYLK�ZQVSX� P�



���������	
������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��
���	����
���	���
�	�
��	�	���
�������	�
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��
����
��
��������
�������	�����	
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��
����
 !
�������	�
���
"��������
���	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�#
�������
"��$
���	�
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�#
�������	�
%�	�&���	�
������&���
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�#
'�	���
%�	�����	&
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�#
�	���(�
)���
*���
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+,
'�	���
�	��������	-�������	
���������
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+,
�����
.������
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+,
����
��
%������
���&����
�	�
%�$�
��/�����	��
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+�
���$
���&����
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
++
%�$�
��/�����	��
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
++
��'��01
��!
"2��3�
1�"4
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+5
*���
����
�����
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+5
���
"����
6������
������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+5
1����&�	
�	�
����������
��������	
*���
����
����
����������������������������������������������������������������������������
+7
��������(�	&
�����
���
"��������
.���������	
�	�
��������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������
+7
���
.������
����	����
����	�	&
����
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+7
�������	&
2������
"���������
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+ 
���
.�&��	
 
"����	��
��������	�
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+ 
8����	�
8���	��
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+�
1�	���	�
�����
��������	
�����
�������
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+�
8����	�
8���	��
����
�&���������
'�	��������	
���/���
���������������������������������������������������������������������
+�
��	��	&
������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+�
��	�	���
�������	�
���
'�	��������	
�������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+�
'������
'��	&�
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+�
������	&
��
'������
'��	&�
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+�
��������	&
'������
.��$�
�	�
���������	
0����	�
���
"����
�	�
"����9����
:��������
������������������������
+;
����&�	&
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+;
�	��������	&
�����
�	�������
�	��
"��������
���	�
����������������������������������������������������������������������������
+;
�������	&
���
<����
��
���������
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+#
��
 =
>?@AB
C?@DE
FG
HEIEJGK@LM
NOFEPQRED
SJOLQ




��������		��
����������	�������	��������	�	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �!�	���	������	"��!	����������#����	���������������	������������������������������������������������������������������ �!�	���	��$	����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����%&'
(�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�*	������+�������+�������	�&��,���������	�������"�$��������������������������������������������������������������������)�*	�	�	��	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������)�

-�./012�3/045�67�8595:7;0<=�>?65@AB54�C:?<A� 900�



��������	��
�	
���
���	�����
�

����� ������������	�����	�	���
�����	���	����
��



���������	��
��������
��������
��
��
�����������
���������
�������� 
!"#
$%&%
'()*+,(-#(./0
1+,.#2.*,(
34#(25
6'137
"/8
9,+
-/(5
5#/+8
#(2,:+/4#;
8./.#8
/(;
,."#+8
.,
;#)#0,<
=/.#+8"#;
<0/(8
.,
"#0<
<+,.#2.
/(;
+#8.,+#
,:+
=/.#+8%
>:#
.,
."#
2,-<0#?
/(;
;*99:8#
(/.:+#
,9
(,(<,*(.
8,:+2#
<,00:.*,(@
."#
8:A8./(.*/0
2,8.8
.,
/;;+#88
*.@
/(;
9+#B:#(.
+#0*/(2#
,(
),0:(./+5
/2.*,(
A5
*(;*)*;:/0
0/(;,=(#+8@
8:22#889:005
/;;+#88*(4
(,(<,*(.
8,:+2#
<,00:.*,(
.,
/2"*#)#
=/.#+
B:/0*.5
8./(;/+;8
,9.#(
+#B:*+#8
5#/+8
,9
8:<<,+.
9+,-
/
2,/0*.*,(
,9
8./C#",0;#+8@
<+,4+/-8@
/(;
9:(;*(4
8,:+2#8%
D/.#+8"#;
<0/((*(4
"#0<8
/;;+#88
=/.#+
B:/0*.5
<+,A0#-8
*(
/
",0*8.*2
-/((#+
A5
9:005
/88#88*(4
."#
<,.#(.*/0
2,(.+*A:.*(4
2/:8#8
/(;
8,:+2#8
,9
<,00:.*,(@
."#(
<+*,+*.*E*(4
+#8.,+/.*,(
/(;
<+,.#2.*,(
8.+/.#4*#8
.,
/;;+#88
."#8#
<+,A0#-8%
��F
�
GH�� 
IH���
�
��������
���������J
K(
LMMN
'13
<:A0*8"#;
."#
OPQRSTTU
VTW
XYZY[T\]Q̂
_P̀YWabYR
c[PQa
̀T
dYàTWY
PQR
cWT̀Yè
TfW
_P̀YWa
6."#
g/(;A,,C7
.,
<+,)*;#
:8#+8
=*."
/
2,-<+#"#(8*)#
+#8,:+2#
.,
;#)#0,<
-,+#
#99#2.*)#
=/.#+8"#;
<0/(8
/8
/
-#/(8
.,
*-<+,)#
/(;
<+,.#2.
."#
(/.*,(h8
=/.#+
B:/0*.5%
!"#
g/(;A,,C
/08,
<+,)*;#8
4:*;/(2#
,(
",=
.,
*(2,+<,+/.#
."#
(*(#
-*(*-:-
#0#-#(.8
9+,-
."#
i0#/(
D/.#+
32.
8#2.*,(
jkl
m,(<,*(.
&,:+2#
1+,4+/-h8
9:(;*(4
4:*;#0*(#8
*(.,
."#
=/.#+8"#;
<0/(
;#)#0,<-#(.
<+,2#88%
&*(2#
."#
g/(;A,,C
=/8
*88:#;@
'13
/(;
,."#+
#(.*.*#8
"/)#
8.#<<#;
:<
=/.#+8"#;
<0/(
*-<0#-#(./.*,(@
*(.+,;:2#;
(#=
*(*.*/.*)#8@
;#)#0,<#;
(#=
.,,08@
/(;
<+,)*;#;
/;;*.*,(/0
9:(;*(4
8,:+2#8%
n)#+
."#
</8.
o
5#/+8@
.",:8/(;8
,9
2,<*#8
,9
."#
g/(;A,,C
"/)#
A##(
<+*(.#;%
!"#
g/(;A,,C
"/8
A##(
:8#;
A5
=/.#+8"#;
<+/2.*.*,(#+8@
*(2,+<,+/.#;
*(.,
.+/*(*(4
2,:+8#8@
/(;
#)#(
/;,<.#;
/8
</+.
,9
2,00#4#
2:++*2:0/%
!"#
<:+<,8#
,9
."*8
p:*2C
q:*;#@
;#)#0,<#;
*(
+#8<,(8#
.,
9##;A/2C
,(
."#
0#(4."
/(;
2,-<0#?*.5
,9
."#
g/(;A,,C@
*8
.,
<+,)*;#
/
8.+#/-0*(#;@
#/85r.,r+#/;
8:--/+5
,9
."#
g/(;A,,C%
!"#
4:*;#
/08,
*(2,+<,+/.#8
C#5
=/.#+8"#;r+#0/.#;
.,<*28
(,.
*(20:;#;
*(
."#
g/(;A,,C%
!"#
p:*2C
q:*;#
*8
(,.
-#/(.
.,
+#<0/2#
."#
g/(;A,,C@
A:.
+/."#+
.,
<+,)*;#
/
A+*#9
4:*;#
.,
=/.#+8"#;
<0/((*(4
/(;
"*4"0*4".
(#=
*(9,+-/.*,(
."/.
2/(
A#
:8#;
9,+
-,+#
#99#2.*)#
;#2*8*,(r-/C*(4
0#/;*(4
.,
*-<+,)#;
-/(/4#-#(.
,9
,:+
=/.#+
+#8,:+2#8%

stu
vwu
xyzzy{|}~
|�y}t
vy
wuz�
zy��vu
t�u�|x|�
|}xy���v|y}
|}
vwu
��|��
��|�u
�
K(;*2/.#8
="#+#
,(#
,9
."#
}|}u
�|}|���
uzu�u}vt
*8
;*82:88#;%
K(;*2/.#8
/
��tu
tv���
."/.
"*4"0*4".8
."#
:8#
,9
."#
(*(#
-*(*-:-
#0#-#(.8
*(
=/.#+8"#;
<0/(8%
�
�#9#+8
."#
+#/;#+
.,
8<#2*9*2
8#2.*,(8
*(
vwu
��}��yy�
9,+
-,+#
;#./*0#;
*(9,+-/.*,(%
�����������
��
��
GH�� 
IH���
!"#
p:*2C
q:*;#
*8
;*)*;#;
*(.,
.=,
8#2.*,(8�
� �u�v|y}
��
�wu
��t|�t
<+,)*;#8
/
8.+#/-0*(#;
8:--/+5
,9
."#
g/(;A,,C%
K.
*(20:;#8
."#
-/�,+8.#<8
*(
."#
=/.#+8"#;
<0/((*(4
<+,2#88
/(;
/
A+*#9
,)#+)*#=
,9
."#
(*(#
-*(*-:-
#0#-#(.8
.,A#
*(20:;#;
*(
=/.#+8"#;
<0/(8
:(;#+
'13h8
i0#/(
D/.#+
32.
8#2.*,(
jkl
m,(<,*(.
&,:+2#1+,4+/-%� �u�v|y}
���
�w�v�t
�u{
"*4"0*4".8
+#2#(.
'13
=/.#+8"#;r+#0/.#;
*(*.*/.*)#8
/(;
<+#8#(.8
(#=.,,08
."/.
<+/2.*.*,(#+8
2/(
/22#88
.,
*-<+,)#
=/.#+
B:/0*.5
/2+,88
."#
2,:(.+5%�
��� ¡
¢��£¤
¥¦
§¤̈¤©¦ª�«¬
®¥¤̄°±¤£
²©®«°

 ³




���������	�
	��������	��	����
��	�	
���������

�
������	������
����	�
�
	���
�����	�	�	
��������������	����
�������������	����	��������������������	���
�������������������
����������������	����
������������	��
	��������
���������������������
��
��������	��
�����������	��	����
��	�	
����������	����� !"#!�$%&�'(!�)� #*�+� �!�,�	�-�����.���	����
�	
�	������
����	����	�����	/�	��	
�	�����������
	�������
���
����	��	�0�	���	����	������	��	�	��������	�����������
���������	�	���,�	�-�����.���	��������
�	
�	��������
��	���
����	���
����	���
�	����	���	����	����

�
��	����������������	���
�����	���	���������	�����
��������
��	�����	
����
��������1�
�
�������	��,�	�2��	
��/��
����	������������
����������3425�4�����	��6�
����4�������7����899���	��	������9������	9
�9��	�	����:��	���	��;�����
������������������	������	�����	��
��������
��
��	���������	��	�����

�
���	<���	�	
���
��������	���

=� 2�-�����.���	����>	�	����
��?��	��	��4��
�



���������	 	
����������
���	��	������������������������������ ���!��"����#��$�����%�������!����!&��'(�)*+,-../�0.1�23435.67+8�9*:31;<3,�=5*+;�:.�>3;:.13�*+,�=1.:3?:�@A1�9*:31;(���!�%� '��#�"�����"B������&�����%�������!�� �����B���!���� ������������������C�D���!!�����(����������������B� �B����%������������� �����B��������������������������������������"��� �������E��������&�F����������B��G���H"���!�$���%�������!I&���!�� �������������!�J� ���!���!���� ������!�%������������KLM�$"�!�C�N�������!�� �������J�!�������� #����$����%��'�$�������B��B��$$��������&������������%�����H"� ��#����!�B��!�!���������!�������������J���  �%�������!���� ��C�N�������!�� ��������������������!����&�������!!������B������������"������  "�����&#����J�!��B��������������J��������������$������������"������  "�������!��������$�����B����������"��������!!���������C�OPQ�����B��R�������������  �%�������!���������������!�����������!���!������������#�������%�������!����'��� !����%�������!�J� �����!���� ������%�������!�� �������������"�����������B���B�IH"� ��#�%�������!�C�����%�������!�� �����B���!���� ������������������������� ���$������ ��#���!��������!�%�������!�(�&"�������J���  �%�������!�� ���B�� ����!�����B������������B����%�  �J��#�!����!��B���� ��� ���!���B���� �����������(�������J���������B����(���!���B" ����#���H"�����������������������������"��!���������J������C�D����������������$�����S"��'�T"�!�(�#�"�%�  � ������&�"������$����%��'�������!"������"�����$" �%�������!�� �����B��$$���C�����&�����$��������$����%��'��������UVW�UXYZU�[\�]̂ XY_ÙYa�Zb̂ccVcde�%���������!���"���!����!���� ��������f��!&��'�E����ghh%����C���CB�Jh�� %����h���h���!&��'i��!�FC�$�GC�Q���!!������ �B�� ��$�����f��!&��'�E��!(��"&��H"��� #(��$������B"�!�G����������%�&������%�����cVcY�YbYjYcXU���������!��������k ����N�����Q�����������KLM�B�����B"�!� ��������J�����&"� !��B�& ��'�����!�J� ���%�������!�� ������!�%������������ �������$���%������������F��������$�����%�������!�� �����B���������El�B"���LGC����������� ���������������������������$�����%�������!�� �����B��������������OPQ�&� ��J����������������������� ������������B��$$����J��%�������!�� ������!�����B�����  #���H"���!�$���%�������!����m�����$"�!�!�"�!�����������KLMC�OPQ�$��� �R�!�����"�!���!���������KLM�n.+6.7+:�o.A1?3�=1.81*p�*+,�q1*+:�qA7,357+3;�0.1�o:*:3;�*+,�r3117:.173;����stLK(���!������� "!������������� �������!���"���!��������f��!&��'���!������S"��'�T"�!��E����%%%C���CB�Jh���hKLMGC�

	uvvwxy��z��{�������v���vuv��|�v���}����~�����|u�������}�����������zu������w��x}{����|w�}�z�x��{x�w�������x��v�w�x����w��x}��CD!����$#���"������!���"������$���  "����&CO����������  "����� ��!��B����������%�������!���!�����F�����!� ��!���!"�������C������&������B����������"���������%�  ������J�� ��!��!"���������!����B���!�������� ������!CO�����������"�����$��������� ���!�$������� ��������������!������ �J�����"�������������!�!������� ����������� ���C��J� ��������$��������h�!"����������������$C��J� ��������m��������!" �BC������&�������������(�����"��& ���� ��������CD!����$#���!���������������"������B�����C��J� ��������������B���������������������������������v�w�x���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ¡��{x�w����������������������������¢�������������������£���������������������������������������������������������������¤�����£���������������������������������¡�

��¥���¤�¦��������§�̈���©����ª���������«������ ¬�



��������	�


�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��  �!"#$%�&"#'(�)*�+(,(-*.#/0�12)(345('�6-2/4�



��������	� 
�������������������������������������������������� �����!"#�$%&%'()%$�*+%�,-,%�.-,-./.�%'%.%,*0�*(�+%')�12*%30+%$�.2,24%30�2$$3%00�0(.%�(5�*+%�.(0*�6(..(,�)-*52''0�0%%,�-,�12*%30+%$�)'2,07�)23*-6/'23'8�*+(0%�5(3�-.)2-3%$�12*%309�:2*%30+%$�)'2,0�(5*%,�'26;�</2,*-5-%$�%0*-.2*%0�(5�6/33%,*�2,$�)3(=%6*%$�)(''/*2,*�'(2$0�2,$�*+%�3%$/6*-(,0�,%%$%$�*(�26+-%&%�12*%3�</2'-*8�0*2,$23$0�2,$�(*+%3�12*%30+%$�4(2'09�>+%0%�'(2$-,4�%0*-.2*%0�2,$�%0*-.2*%0�(5�'(2$�3%$/6*-(,0�53(.�)3()(0%$�)(''/*-(,�6(,*3('�.%20/3%0�)3(&-$%�*+%�2,2'8*-6�'-,;�?%*1%%,�26*-(,0�(,�*+%�43(/,$�2,$�2**2-,.%,*�(5�12*%3�</2'-*8�0*2,$23$09�@,�*+%�2?0%,6%�(5�0/6+�2�532.%1(3;7�-*�-0�$-55-6/'*�*(�$%&%'()�2,$�-.)'%.%,*�2�12*%30+%$�)'2,�*+2*�62,�?%�%A)%6*%$�*(�26+-%&%�12*%3�</2'-*8�0*2,$23$0�(3�(*+%3�%,&-3(,.%,*2'�4(2'09�#'*+(/4+�*+%0%�.-,-./.�%'%.%,*0�./0*�?%�-,6'/$%$�-,�12*%30+%$�)'2,0�5/,$%$�1-*+�0%6*-(,�BCD�5/,$0�5(3�*+3%2*%,%$�(3�-.)2-3%$�12*%307�-,6'/$-,4�*+%0%�%'%.%,*0�-,�2''�12*%30+%$�)'2,0�-0�0*3(,4'8�3%6(..%,$%$�?%62/0%�*+%8�)3(&-$%�2�</2,*-*2*-&%�532.%1(3;�5(3�*+%�)'2,,-,4�)3(6%00�*+2*�'%2$0�*(�12*%3�</2'-*8�-.)3(&%.%,*0�2,$�3%0*(32*-(,�*(�2**2-,�12*%3�</2'-*8�0*2,$23$09�>+%0%�%'%.%,*0�23%�,(*�2''E%,6(.)200-,47�?/*�*+%8�)3(&-$%�*+%�?20-6�6(.)(,%,*0�,%%$%$�*(�)3($/6%�2�12*%30+%$�)'2,�*+2*�62,�'%2$�*(�12*%3�</2'-*8�-.)3(&%.%,*09�>+%�%'%.%,*0�23%�'2?%'%$�F�*+3(/4+�G�*(�3%5'%6*�+(1�*+%8�23%�)3%0%,*%$�-,�*+%�BCD�4/-$%'-,%09�>+%�5-30*�*+3%%�%'%.%,*0�HF�*+3(/4+�IJ�23%�6(,0-$%3%$�$/3-,4�*+%�6+2326*%3-K2*-(,�2,$�4(2'E0%**-,4�)+20%0�*(�2$$3%00�*+%�)3-.238�0(/36%0�(5�)(''/*-(,�-,�*+%�12*%30+%$�2,$�*(�$%*%3.-,%�*+%�.2,24%.%,*�0*32*%4-%0�,%%$%$�-,�0)%6-5-6�23%20�*(�3%$/6%�*+%�)(''/*-(,�*(�.%%*�12*%3�</2'-*8�4(2'09�>+%�3%.2-,-,4�0-A�%'%.%,*0�HL�*+3(/4+�GJ�23%�/0%$�*(�$%&%'()�2�0)%6-5-6�)'2,�(5�26*-(,�1-*+�.%20/3%2?'%�*234%*0�2,$�.-'%0*(,%07�20�1%''�20�*+%�,%6%00238�5-,2,6-2'�2,$�*%6+,-62'�3%0(/36%0�,%%$%$�*(�3%0*(3%�*+%�12*%3?($89�M,$%3�0%6*-(,�BNBH$J�(5�*+%�O'%2,�:2*%3�#6*7�0*2*%07�*%33-*(3-%07�2,$�2/*+(3-K%$�*3-?%0�23%�3%</-3%$�*(�$%&%'()�'-0*0�(5�-.)2-3%$�12*%30P12*%30�*+2*�23%�*((�)(''/*%$�(3�$%432$%$�*(�.%%*�*+%-3�12*%3�</2'-*8�0*2,$23$09�>+%�'21�3%</-3%0�*+2*�*+%0%�=/3-0$-6*-(,0�%0*2?'-0+�)3-(3-*8�32,;-,40�5(3�12*%30�(,�*+%�'-0*0�2,$7�-,�.(0*�620%07�$%&%'()�*(*2'�.2A-./.�$2-'8�'(2$0�H>QRS0J�5(3�*+%0%�12*%309�#�>QRS�-0�2�62'6/'2*-(,�(5�*+%�.2A-./.�2.(/,*�(5�2�)(''/*2,*�*+2*�2�12*%3?($8�62,�3%6%-&%�53(.�?(*+�)(-,*�2,$�,(,)(-,*�0(/36%0�2,$�0*-''�.%%*�12*%3�</2'-*8�0*2,$23$09�>QRS0�)3(&-$%�2,�-.)(3*2,*�0*23*-,4�)(-,*�5(3�12*%3�</2'-*8�)'2,,-,49�T(.%�>QRS�$%&%'().%,*�3%)(3*0�2'0(�6(,*2-,�2,�-.)'%.%,*2*-(,�0*32*%48�(3�)'2,9�>+%�)(-,*�0(/36%�2''(62*-(,0�-,�>QRS0�)3(&-$%�12*%3�</2'-*8�*234%*0�5(3�)(-,*�0(/36%0�0/6+�20�120*%12*%3�*3%2*.%,*�)'2,*0�2,$�0*(3.12*%3�*3%2*.%,*�080*%.0�*+2*�4(�-,*(�*+%-3�3%4/'2*(38�)%3.-*09�U(,)(-,*�0(/36%�2''(62*-(,0�23%�/0/2''8�.2,24%$�266(3$-,4�*(�2�>QRS�-.)'%.%,*2*-(,�)'2,�(3�12*%30+%$E?20%$�)'2,7�1+-6+�./0*�-,6'/$%�*+%�,-,%�%'%.%,*0�$%063-?%$�-,�*+-0�4/-$%�2,$�-,�*+%�O'%2,�:2*%3�#6*�0%6*-(,�BCD�5/,$-,4�4/-$%'-,%09�

�VWXYZ�[\]̂_�̀abcd_ecf�gchbdai�jebbklmmnabcdockaopqrmbskcmnabcd_ecf_mfabatbmnabcd_ecfuchbdaimthfcvouwxyz�thui{fthp�tb_�nt|tz�uah�}c�{_cf�bq�a__t_b�nabcd_ecf�kdaubtbtqhcd_�th�caue�qw�bec�nabcd_ecf�kiahhthp�ahf�txkicxchbabtqh�_bck_o�

]�~{tu|��{tfc�bq��crciqkthp�̀abcd_ecf�\iah_�� ��



��������	�
���������������������������������������� !�!"#$ %&�'!"!�! (�)*! #�!$"+!�$%�,"!#- )"��%.�$%�,"/"0%+�*&,� 1+0"1"&$�*&�"22"#$ /"�.*$"-!�",�+0*&3���"!"�!$"+!�+-%/ ,"�*�-%*,�1*+�2%-�4%'�$%�2%00%.�$%�*#� "/"�4%'-�.*$"-!�",�5%*0!3�6789�:;�<' 0,�+*-$&"-!� +!� 6789�=;�>�*-*#$"- ?"�4%'-�.*$"-!�",� 6789�@;�A &*0 ?"�5%*0!�*&,� ,"&$ 24�!%0'$ %&!� 6789�B;�C"! 5&�*&� 1+0"1"&$*$ %&�+-%5-*1� 6789�D;�E1+0"1"&$�.*$"-!�",�+0*&� 6789�F;�G"*!'-"�+-%5-"!!�*&,�1*H"�*,I'!$1"&$!�J%$ #"�$�*$� &�$�"�+ #$'-"�%&�$�"�+-"/ %'!�+*5"�$�"�-%*,� &#0',"!�*�0%%+3���*$� !�)"#*'!"�.*$"-!�",�+0*&& &5� !�*&� $"-*$ /"�+-%#"!!K�L!�4%'�#%00"#$�&".� &2%-1*$ %&M�4%'�!�%'0,�-"2 &"�%-�1%, 24�4%'-�*++-%*#��*&,� &#%-+%-*$"�0"!!%&!�0"*-&",� &$%�4%'-�+0*&& &5�*&,� 1+0"1"&$*$ %&�+-%5-*13���"�-"1* &,"-�%2�N"#$ %&�E�+-%#"",!�$�-%'5��"*#��%2�$�"�! (�!$"+!�*&,� &#0',"!�#*!"�!$', "!�*&,�-"0"/*&$�$%%0!�*&,�-"!%'-#"!�4%'�#*&�*##"!!�2%-�1%-"� &2%-1*$ %&3�
���OP�QR�S��T�������������"�2 -!$�!$"+� &�$�"�.*$"-!�",�+0*&& &5�+-%#"!!� !�$%�)' 0,�+*-$&"-!� +!3���"�/"-4�&*$'-"�%2�.%-H &5�*$�*�.*$"-!�",�0"/"0�1"*&!�4%'�!�%'0,�.%-H�. $��0%#*0�!$*H"�%0,"-!�*&,�%$�"-�+*-$&"-!3�J".� ,"*!�*&,� &+'$�+-%/ ,",�)4�+*-$&"-!�&%$�%&04�+-%/ ,"�*�1%-"�!%0 ,�#%11 $1"&$�$%�!%0'$ %&!�)'$�*0!%��"0+�$%�+%%0�-"!%'-#"!�*&,�!H 00�!"$!3���"�!$*H"�%0,"-!�$�*$�4%'� &/%0/"� &�$�"�.*$"-!�",�+0*&�,"/"0%+1"&$�+-%#"!!�. 00��"0+�4%'� ,"&$ 24�#- $ #*0� !!'"!M�!"$�+-"0 1 &*-4�5%*0!�)*!",�%&�*-"*!�%2�1'$'*0�#%&#"-&M�*&,�,"/"0%+�*&� & $ *0�!"$�%2� &, #*$%-!�$�*$�. 00�)"�#-'# *0� &�1%& $%- &5�+-%5-"!!3��� !�!$"+�. 00�*0!%��"0+�4%'�$%�,"/"0%+�*&�"22"#$ /"� &2%-1*$ %&U",'#*$ %&�#%1+%&"&$M�.� #�� !�%&"�%2�$�"�& &"�1 & 1'1�"0"1"&$!�V, !#'!!",� &�N$"+�WX3�N$*H"�%0,"-� &/%0/"1"&$�*0!%� &#-"*!"!�$�"�+-%)*) 0 $4�%2�0%&5Y$"-1�!'##"!!�$�-%'5��$-'!$M�#%11 $1"&$M�*&,�+"-!%&*0� &/"!$1"&$3�
6789�:;�Z[\]̂�_̀a7b8acd\9ce f̂8b7\gh�i8h�c7̀i8dj]̂8ace f̂8b7\gh�\cc[8c�jg�kjbk8abe 687�9a8]\l\b̀ah�mj̀]ce n8o8]j9�\b̂\k̀7jace pjb̂[k7�9[q]\k�j[7a8̀kdr������s�t�s�
��u���S�����vwxyz{|}~z���*-"�$�%!"�.�%�1*H"�*&,� 1+0"1"&$�,"# ! %&!M�$�%!"�.�%�*-"�*22"#$",�)4�$�"�,"# ! %&!�1*,"M�*&,�$�%!"�.�%�#*&�*!! !$�%-� 1+","� 1+0"1"&$*$ %&�%2�$�"�,"# ! %&!3��"4�!$*H"�%0,"-!�*0!%� &#0',"�$�%!"�.�%�#*&�#%&$- )'$"�-"!%'-#"!�*&,�*!! !$*&#"�$%�$�"�.*$"-!�",�+0*&& &5�"22%-$�*&,�$�%!"�.�%�*-"�.%-H &5�%&�! 1 0*-�+-%5-*1!�$�*$�#*&�)"� &$"5-*$",� &$%�*�0*-5"-�"22%-$3�E$� !� 1+%-$*&$�$%�-"1"1)"-�$�*$�!$*H"�%0,"-!�*-"�1%-"�0 H"04�$%�5"$� &/%0/",� 2�4%'�#*&�!�%.�$�"1�*�#0"*-�)"&"2 $�$%�$�" -�+*-$ # +*$ &53�E&�5"&"-*0M�$�"-"�*-"�*$�0"*!$�2 /"�#*$"5%- "!�%2�+*-$ # +*&$!�$%�#%&! ,"-�.�"&� ,"&$ 24 &5�!$*H"�%0,"-!K�e ��%!"�.�%�. 00�)"�-"!+%&! )0"�2%-� 1+0"1"&$ &5�$�"�.*$"-!�",�+0*&e ��%!"�.�%�. 00�)"�*22"#$",�)4� 1+0"1"&$*$ %&�%2�$�"�.*$"-!�",�+0*&e ��%!"�.�%�#*&�+-%/ ,"� &2%-1*$ %&�%&�$�"� !!'"!�*&,�#%&#"-&!� &�$�"�.*$"-!�",�� L��' #H��' ,"�$%�C"/"0%+ &5��*$"-!�",��0*&!�



��������	� 
 ������������������������������������������������������� ���������������������������� �������!�"�"#���������������$����������������$��#�����������������$��%
 ��������$������������$���$������������$������������$����������������������������������������!�"�"#�����������������������$���#�$����������� �����������%"&�'()(*�+,�-,*./0((+�1�,2�345(�167�,)�+0(�8429:,,.�),*�4�;0(;.<=/+�,)�/.=<</�429�*(/,>*;(/�+04+�/+4.(0,<9(*/�;42�;,2+*=:>+(�+,�+0(�3<422=25�3*,;(//?�&�'()(*�+,�@ABBCDE�CD�FBAGH�IDEJECDE�FBJKALMNOAPQ�CD�RMSP�TJBAPQLAO�),*�U,*(�=2),*U4+=,2�,2�+0(�+,,</�2((9(9�+,�())(;+=V(<W�(2545(�/+4.(0,<9(*/�+,�*(/+,*(�429�U4=2+4=2�0(4<+0W�(2V=*,2U(2+4<�;,29=+=,2/�+0*,>50�;,UU>2=+W�/>33,*+�429�;,,3(*4+=V(�4;+=,2�X0++3YZZ;)3>:?(34?5,VZ23/+:[Z5(+=2/+(3?0+U<\?�]̂_̀abcd�]eef_e�gc�hg̀i_j̀�k�������������������������������������������������������� �����$�$��������������������"������������������������$���������$���������l��������������������������������������������$�����������������������������������"���������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������$$ ������������������������������$�$����"�����������������������������������������������$��$������ ���������������������������������l�������������������l����������$���������������������������l������$���"�&�'()(*�+,�+0(�8(4<+0W�-4+(*/0(9/�m(:/=+(�),*�U,*(�=2),*U4+=,2�429�*(/,>*;(/�*(<4+(9�+,�m4+(*/0(9�3*,+(;+=,2?�n_a�oj_pbqb̀rjd�sgrpe�t�� ���������������������������������ul ���������$�����������������������������������������u��������������������������"�����������������l������������� �� �����������������$������������������������������������������������"�v�$�����lw�$��������������� ���l�������������������$����������� ���������������������l����������������$����������������������� ������$��"�&�x((�y=5>*(�z6z�,2�345(�z6{�,)�+0(�8429:,,.|�=+�=/�4�;,2;(3+>4<�9=45*4U�,)�0,m�m4+(*/0(9�5,4</�5*,m�429�(V,<V(�9>*=25�+0(�m4+(*/0(9�3<422=25�3*,;(//?�}~���������������~����������������������~���~����������������������������������������~�������������������~������������������u�����l��������������� ���� ������!�� %�l������������$�����������������$����l��������������������$��������������������#������#����� ���������������$������"��������������$����������$�������$�� $���������$����������������������������$��������������������������������������$ �����$��������� ����������$����"�¡ ���������������#�������������������������������l���� ���� ���������������������������������$������������������$���$��$ ��¢ ������"�£�����������$�����������$��������������������$��������������¤ ������¥¦�§̈©�ª«̈�¬®©̈̄�°©±®°²³�k���$���!�%¦�
 �́������$�������������������� ������������
 µ�¶���������¶���!���$������́ ������%���������
 � �l����������� ������������������������� ������������"������ �$���� ����� ���������������$����������·��������� ��������������$����"�t�� ������$���������������$������������$��������������$���l��� ����������¦̧̧�����"���"��̧����̧$�ļ���̧����$����"$��"�¹�ºSC»K�@SCOA�BM�¼A½ANMGCDE�TJBAPQLAO�¾NJDQ�� ¿�À_Á_pgÂ�oj_pbqb̀rjd�]̀ b̂iragje�ÃÄÅÆÇ®ª̈̄���������$����������$������ ������������$������������������"�È���������#����������$������$�����������������������������������$����������������������l������������������$��� �$�������� ��������������������� ������������������"�t�����$������$����� ���l�������� ��������������



��������	�
����
�������������������������������������
�����������
�������������� �������
�� �������������!����������
���������
��"�������������
����
����
#���������������
��������!���������������!�����������������������

��$����������
�
������"�����������������������
�������!��������������
#����������
������"���
������������� �� ��������!����������!��

�������������!���������"�����
������%�
���
����������������!���
������"���� ����������!��������������
����������!�����

#��������������
�
�������������"���� ����������
������������������� ��"����������������������������#�
�����#�������!����������&����
��'()*+,-�.+/01,�2+-345,6��� ��������7�������������������
�
������"����������������������
���� ����������
����������!��  ������� ��������8�����������������
�����
����������
�����������

��
#������������������
����������!�����

#���������
���������������������9�������!������ ��������7��������������������
������ �������������������������
:�����
���
��

��� ����������$���;�� ����������
����������!�����

�<�� �������!��=>?��@�ABCDEFG�HI�JKLMN�OHP�QRN�PS�DDTU�VW�EBF�XCYZ[VV\�DGV]̂ZF_�̀VGF�ZFEĈa�VY�EBF�̂YWVG̀CÊVYbFZcdCÊVY�dV̀ DVYFYET�e-4f�gh�'6535,-431i4�-64�j5-43k64*�l���������8��!����������
���#���
���"���
#��������������
�����
�������
�����"�
�
� �����������!��  �����������!������
�����!��
�����������������������!���
��m�������������8���������������
�
�����

����
���� ���
�����!�������  ���
����������
����

��!�����
�����������������
�����9����!����
�
������� ��
��� �����������������
��
������

��n�m��������
��������
��������������o����pq�rstqurvrwxuryq�yv�uzt�wx{|t|�xqs�|y{}wt|�y}�~}y{�|�yv�|r�r�x}�|y{}wt|�uzxu��r���qtts�uy��t�wyqu}y��ts�uy�xwzrt�t�uzt��yxs�}ts{wuryq|�t|ur�xuts�rq�uzr|��xut}|zts��x|ts���xq��xqs�uy�xwzrt�t�xq��yuzt}��xut}|zts�~yx�|�rstqurvrts�rq�uzt��xut}|zts��x|ts���xq���
�������������������������������� ��������������������� ��������������������� ���¡�¢� £�����¤¢����������� �¡¥¥����������¡��¥�������¤�������� ¦��¥¢�������� £�����¤¢���§���������¡§�����¡¤�̈����̈ ����� ©���̈�����¡¥¥§�����¥¡���ª5-643�«¬1k-1)�®5-5�5)*�'345-4�5�j5-43k64*�̄)°4)-(3±�²�������� ��
�������� ���&�
���!��� ��������������!�������
����������
��
��9����������� ��������
����������!������������� �������!n�³�¢����¥������́�§��¥�µ���§����¶·̧¹º»¼¹½�¾¿ÀÁ½·ºÂ¹»Ã�¼Ä½º¿Å¿ÆÄÃ�¿̧Ç¿Æº·Ç¼ÄÃ�»¿ÂÅ»Ã�¹̧ÈÉ�Ê����Ë�������³¡�§¥���¡������������������Ì·Á½�À»¹Ã�Å·Á½�È¿Í¹ºÃ�¹ÎÂ»̧ÂÁÆ�Ï·Á·Æ¹Ï¹Á̧Ã�¹̧ÈÉ� �����Ð¡�¢��¡�����¡���ÑÒÓÔ¾Õ�º¹Ç¿º̧»Ã�ÑÒÑÔ½Õ�º¹Ç¿º̧»Ã�Ö×ØÌ»Ã�»¿ÀºÈ¹�Ù·̧¹º�·»»¹»»Ï¹Á̧»Ã�¹̧ÈÉ� ³¡¥¥§������¡§�����Ú¹ºÏÂ̧̧¹½�Ç¿ÂÁ̧�»¿ÀºÈ¹»Ã�Á¿ÁÇ¿ÂÁ̧�»¿ÀºÈ¹»Ã�·̧Ï¿»Ç¼¹ºÂÈ�½¹Ç¿»Â̧Â¿ÁÃ�¹̧ÈÉ� �����Ð¡�¢�Û¡���¡�����Ü����¶·̧¹º�ÝÀ·ÅÂ̧Ä�·Á½�ÞÅ¿ÙÃ�¾Â¿Å¿ÆÄÃ�Æ¹¿Ï¿ºÇ¼¿Å¿ÆÄÃ�¹̧ÈÉ�

ß� à�á�����â��������9�������!�ã����
����ä���
�



��������	� 
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������������������������� ���������!�������������������������" ������������������������������� �����������������������#$% �&'()' �&'*% �+
,' �(%' �&'-'".�/��!������������������!�������������������������0��������������������������������������������������������"��������������������.�1�234�5346�789345:;738�38�;<=6>�39�?:;:�;<=7@:AA<�@3AA6@;6?�934�B:;64>C6?�@C:4:@;647D:;738�:8?�;C6�?:;:E>�=3;68;7:A�F>6>G�>66�H:IA6�JKL�MNO2G�LPQR�SIG�JT�==PU�38�=:V6�JKW�39�;C6�X:8?I33YP�Z[\]̂_̀a�bĉc�dcef�c][�ghii\ĵ�k[[_̂_h]ci�bĉc�_̀�l\j\ffcma�n�����!������!������������������������ ���������������o�����������������������!������������������!����������������������������������0��!������������������!�����p����������������.�n���������������������q�r ,���������������������!�������!���������������������p�����������s��������������������������������������������������������������r #p�����������������������������!�����������������o�����������������������������!�������������������������������������������r ,����������!��������������������������������������������������������s�����s������.t��������������������������������������������������� �����������������������������.�n����!�������������������������������!��������� �������������������������������������������������������������������������u����������������������������������'����v.�1�234�5346�789345:;738�38�?6>7V878V�:�>:5=A78V�=A:8G�>66�wNxE>�yz{|}~����~������{~��}��}���{~�����{�~������~�{��~��~�}���}�}��������{�~�MNO2G�LP�R�S�G�L�W�==PU�:8?�wNxE>��F:A7;<�S:8:V6568;�H33A>�B6I>7;6�:;�C;;=���BBBP6=:PV3����x��H���:�?3@>PC;5AP�k]cia�\�bĉc������������������������p�������������!��������������������������������������������������������������������� ����!���������0���������������������������!����������������������������������������������������� ����!������������������������������.�t�������������������!������������������������ ����!����������������������������������������������������������������������.�t��������������������������������������������!�����������������������������������������������������������������������������s����������������������������.�1��6964�;3� C:=;64>���:8?�W�MNO2G��WL�¡�G�RR�==PU�39�;C6�X:8?I33Y�934�?6;:7A>�38�78>;46:5�?:;:G�B:;64>C6?�?:;:G�:8?�:8�78K?6=;C�?7>@F>>738�39�=3AAF;:8;�A3:?�6>;75:;738P��6964�;3�H:IA6��KL�MNO2G��WL�¡�G�RR�==PU�38�=:V6��K¢�39�;C6�X:8?I33Y�934�6£:5=A6>�39�?:;:�:8:A<>7>�:@;7�7;76>�:8?�;C6�;33A>�F>6?�78��:473F>�>;6=>�39�;C6�B:;64>C6?�=A:8878V�=43@6>>P�Z[\]̂_̀a�gc¤f\f�c][�¥h¤mj\f�¦§ĉ�l\\[�̂h�̈\�gh]̂mhii\[��n�������!���������������������o�����������������������o�!������������!�������� ������0������������������������������������������������!���������!������������������������!�������������!�������������������������������.�)������o�!����!�������������������������������� �����������������������������������������������������������!��������.�$�������������� ������!����������������������� ������� ������������������!�������� ����������������������������������������������������������.�t����������������������������������������������.�. �����������������������������������"����������������������������������������������������������������.� �©ª«¬�®���~�̄��°±�²������³�°���~�{}�������~{~�������|����{́�|�{~�����{�~�µµ��}~�́��z��|����}�����������������³�����~�{}������{����{̄��{~�}�̄}������|�́}��|��~�}����{�������}�����¶�®�{��������}~�́��z��|�{~���~·z~��{�~�{̄���������|}�}���������|����}����������{��}{��|��{������}���}��������{����������~�{}�������������}~|������̄}������|���}��¶�±�̧z{�¹�yz{|������������{~��º}������|�°�}~��� »�



��������	�
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������������!������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ��������������������������"�������������������������������#$�������"�������%�&'�()*"+,-.,/0�/1�.2)�0/0-/,0.�*/3+")�45056)4)0.�4)5*3+)*�.25.�7,88�0))(�./�9)�,4-8)4)0.)(�./�5"2,):)�8/5(�+)(3".,/0*�50(�5�()*"+,-.,/0�/1�.2)�"+,.,"58�5+)5*�,0�72,"2�.2/*)�4)5*3+)*�7,88�9)�0))()(�./�,4-8)4)0.�.2,*�-850;<� ���������������������������!������������������������������������!��
��������=�����!����������>����������������������������!���������������?@ABCDAE�FGHHIADJA�KGDL@��M�>���������������������!����������������������������������������������������������������������������������!������������������������!�����������������������N����������������������N���!����������������������������������������������������������������������������O��������!!�������������������������������������������������� ���������!!��!�������������!���������N�����������������������������>�������!������������������������������������������������!�����������������������=!���������P���������Q�����������!��N�����������������>����������N���!������������������������������������ RST������U�����T�Q����������������������V������������������������������������������!��N���������������������!!��!�����������N���!�����������������!����� RST������������������������!�����������!������������������������������������������������������������������������������>���������������� ��� RST��������=�����!������������������������������������������������������������������!!��������������>���������������������������������������������������������!��N���������������������������������������������������������� ��� RST����������������������������!��������������������������������Q�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
���������������������������������!!�����������������!�������������������������N���!��������������������������!����������������N���>������������������N��!�������������������������������������
�����������������������������������!�����������!�����������������!����������������!������������������������������������>������������������!������������������������������������������������������!��������������������=���������������������������������������!��������� ������!����������� RST�W����������������������������������X�!��N����������������������������������N�������������!��������������������V�����������������������������������������������������������������!������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �����������������������!������������>�������������������!�������������%�WYX�������>�������������������������������������������������N���������WZX�������>����������������������!�������������������!���������������R����������������������������N��������������������!����!!�������������!��N����������������������������!����������������������������������� �����������>������������������������������������������������������������������������������������N�����������������[����������������������������������������������R�����!��N������������!!���������������������������!��N�������������������������������N���������N���������������������������N���� �����������������������������������������������������������������������N������������������
��������������������!�����������������������N���!��������������������!!��������������������N������������������������M�����������������������������!�����������������������������������������N���������������������������!������>��������������������������������������������!!��!������������������� �!�����>�������������������������������������������������������%�\]� M�̂���Q�_�������S�N���!����̀ ��������a�����



��������	� 
 ������������������������������������������������������������������
 ����������������������������������������������� ��������������������!�������������"�#�#$�����������������%����� ��&�
 ������������������������������������������%�������������"�#�#$� �������������%��������� �����������&�
 �������������������!�����������������������������!!����%������������������!������������������"�#�#$����������������������$���������������������$����������������� ��������"'()�&�!������ ����&�
 ���������������� ���������������*����������������!��+�� �������
 ������������������� ������������������������!�������������������������
 ,�������!���������������������������������-����%������� �����
 ,��������������������� ���������������������������������������������� ���������.������������  ����������%�� ������������������������������  ������������+��/���#�0�������������������+��/������������  ���������!�������������������!��%���������������%��#�,�������������������������  ������������+��/������������ ��������������%���������� �������������������������������������������#�1����������!������������������$����������������������!���+����/�����!����������������������#�2�3�4566789�:;�<78=:54�7>>8:7?@A4�54AB�C:�A4C=67CA�>:DD5C7EC�D:7B4�=E�F7CA84@AB4�=4�=E?D5BAB�=E�G7HDA�IJK�:E�>7LA�IJM�:;�C@A�N7EBH::OP�QRST�UV�QSR�WXYZ[�Y\]�̂]S\R_̀a�QXZbR_X\[�c��������������%������������-�������������!�������� �����������������������$���������������!�������� ���������������������%�� ����������������d����%��$������������������$���������������#�.��� ������������������������e�� �f���� ��%��������������!���������!��������������������������������������������������"���������������������������������������&�������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������%������������������#�
ghij�kl�gih�mnopq�ors�tsirhuvw�gnpxhunrq�
 gih�nyizopp�{nopq�ors|oro{i|irh�n}~i�huyiq
 �iyipnj�ursu�ohnzq�hoz{ihq
 �ihiz|uri�pnos�zisx�hunrqriisis
 tsirhuvw��zuhu�op�ozioq
 �iyipnj�|oro{i|irh�|ioqxziqhn�o��uiyi�{nopqQSR���S�YZZ�WXYZ[�Y\]��Y\Y�S�S\R����S�R_�S[�����������!���� ��������������������������������%����������������������������������/��������������������������������-������ ������$������������������!�����������������������������!������������������#������������������������������������d����%�����������������������������������%�� ������!���������������������������#��������� �$��� ����������������%�� ����������������� ���� ����$����e�� ����!��������������� ������� ������$���������%����������������������������������#��'��������������!������������������������������������$����e�� �f��!��������������� ������� ������$����������������������������������������������������� ���������������������������� ����������������������������%���$����������/��������$���������+�����������������������"�#�#$��%�����/$�������������&#����/�������� ���������������������������������� ������!� ������������ �������!����������������������d����%��#�*�����������$��  �� �������������������d����%���������������"�&������������������������!����� ����������������"f&��� ��%������ ������%�����������������������%�����/�����������������-�����������/�#���������������������� �¡�¢£�¤¥��¦§̈���© ¥¢§�� ªª�



��������	�
������������������������������ !"�#$%%�&�'�%!(�$)&$*+�!,-�+)&�)".�,$*��+,/��-��!�0"+)�$�+�$'�% �.�+-",��#1��1�,� !"�+,��.���$)/� !",�!23�*�$'�-4�5!"�$&�)�$6$�&�$)&$*+�!,-�#$�1� !",�-�+7�1!%&�,-��+,%$�,��!�&���,.$)���1��*",,�)��1�+%�1�!6��1��#+��,-1�&8�)!#� !"�#$%%�,�6$)���1��$)&$*+�!,-��!�.�+-",��$.(%�.�)�+�$!)4�91�)�&�'�%!($)/� !",�$)&$*+�!,-�+)&��+,/��-:�+%-!�#!,7��!��-�+2%$-1�$)��,$.�.$%�-�!)�-��1+��#$%%�.�+-",���1��$.(%�.�)�+�$!)�!6�+*�$'$�$�-�$)� !",�#+��,-1�&�(%+):�$)*%"&$)/��1��*!-�-�+--!*$+��&�#$�1��1!-��+*�$'$�$�-4�;�6�,��!��1��<$%�-�!)�-�-�*�$!)�!6�=��(�>�!6��1$-�?"$*7�@"$&��6!,�.!,��$)6!,.+�$!)4�A��$-�$.(!,�+)���!�"-��&$66�,�)��� (�-�!6�$)&$*+�!,-��!�,�6%�*��#1�,�� !"�+,��$)��1��#+��,-1�&�.+)+/�.�)��(,!*�--�+)&��1��+"&$�)*��#$�1�#1$*1� !"�+,��*!..")$*+�$)/4�5!"B%%�6$,-��-�%�*���)'$,!).�)�+%�$)&$*+�!,-��!�.�+-",���1��*",,�)��*!)&$�$!)-�$)��1��#+��,-1�&�+)&�1�%(��!�$&�)�$6 ��1��-�,�--!,-�+)&��1��(!%%"�+)��-!",*�-4�C)'$,!).�)�+%�$)&$*+�!,-�+,��+�&$,�*��.�+-",��!6��1���)'$,!).�)�+%�*!)&$�$!)-��1+��(%+)�$.(%�.�)�+�$!)�-��7-��!�+*1$�'�4�D-� !"�&�'�%!(� !",�.+)+/�.�)��!23�*�$'�-�+)&�+*�"+%% �+--�.2%�� !",�#+��,-1�&�(%+):� !"�#$%%�+&&�(�,6!,.+)*��$)&$*+�!,-:�-"*1�+-�-!*$+%�+)&�(,!/,+..+�$*�$)&$*+�!,-:��!�1�%(�.�+-",��(,!/,�--��!#+,&�.���$)/� !",�/!+%-4�D)���+.(%��!6��+*1�� (��!6�$)&$*+�!,�$-�(,!'$&�&�$)�E+2%��F4�GHIJ��KL�MNHOPJ�Q��R�P�SR�SOH������T��H��SQ�M�U�S��O���HJ� VS�WSHOOH���� ����HJ�X YZ[\]̂�_̀̂�a]̂b]cdef]g�̀hîj]̂kld̂]e[�[im]l�dned�hZmmo[]]d�emm�ped]̂�qZemidoldecrêrlX s]rZbdìc�ic�àmmZdecdm̀ericfl�ĥ̀[�c̀càicdl̀Ẑb]l X YZ[\]̂�̀h�aZ\mib�ped]̂�lold][lpidn�l̀Ẑb]�ped]̂�â d̀]bdìc�ameclX YZ[\]̂�̀h�[ecef][]cd�[]elẐ]li[am][]cd]r�ic�e�ped]̂ln]r�_]tftucZ[\]̂�̀h�eb̂]l�Zcr]̂�cZd̂i]cd[ecef][]cdu�cZ[\]̂�̀h�̂iaêiec\Zhh]̂l�b̂]ed]rg X vcb̂]el]�ic�dn]�cZ[\]̂�̀h]̂lir]cdl�lifcicf�ped]̂ln]rld]pêrlnia�am]rf]X sed]l�̀h�aêdibiaedìc�ic]rZbedìc�â f̀̂e[lla]bihibemmo�rî]bd]r�d̀pêrl̀mjicf�aêdibZmê�c̀càicdl̀Ẑb]�àmmZdìc�â \̀m][l

�wxyz{�|]bdìc�vv�â j̀ir]l�Zared]r�ich̀̂[edìc�̀c�ǹp�d̀�r]j]m̀a�ecr�Zl]�l̀biem�icribed̀ l̂�d̀�[]elẐ]�ped]̂ln]r�[ecef][]cd�â f̀̂]llt�

}~������~�������������������������������������}�����������������������}�~����������������������}������������������������������������ eld�̂][̀ jem�̀h�p̀ r̀o�̂iaêiec�ln̂Z\l�em̀cf�¡̀f�¡̂`̀¢�[er]�dn]�\ec¢l�̀h�dn]�ld̂]e[�lZlb]adi\m]�d̀�]̂̀ lìct�£l�]̂̀ lìc�b̀cdicZ]r�̀j]̂�di[]u�dn]�ld̂]e[�bnecc]m�\]be[]�pir]̂�ecr�[̀ ]̂�Zclde\m]u�]¤eb]̂\edicf�dn]�]̂̀ lìc�â \̀m][�ecr�l]cricf�d̀cl�̀h�l]ri[]cd�icd̀�dn]�ld̂]e[t�£cemolil�̀h�e]̂iem�aǹd̀f̂eanl�lǹp]r�dned�dn]�ld̂]e[�bnecc]m�ner�]̂̀ r]r�med]̂emmo�Za�d̀�¥¦�h]]d�\]dp]]c�§̈¨̈�ecr�©ªª¥u�b̀clZ[icf�«uªªª�lqZê]�h]]d�̀h�mecrt�¬nil�d̂eclmed]r�d̀�§©ª�d̀cl�̀h�l]ri[]cdeaâ ¤̀i[ed]mo�dn]�e[̀ Zcd�c]]r]r�d̀�himm�cic]�rZ[a�d̂Zb¢l]cd]̂icf�dn]�ld̂]e[�]ebn�o]êu�nê[icf�ped]̂�qZemido�ecr�l[̀ dn]̂icf�hiln�ne\idedt�vc�ec�]hh̀̂d�d̀�nemd�dn]�r]f̂eredìc�̀h�¡̀f�¡̂`̀¢u�dn]�mecr̀pc]̂�er®eb]cd�d̀�dn]�]̂̀ ricf�bnecc]m�p̀ ¢̂]r�pidn�dn]�d̀pc�̀h�|d̂edh̀̂r�ecr�e�b̀clZmdecd�d̀�l]bẐ]�e�l]bdìc�¥§̈�f̂ecd�ĥ̀[�dn]�Y]p�̄e[alnî]�°]aêd[]cd�̀h�±cjî̀c[]cdem�|]̂jib]lt�¬n]�â ®̀]bd�bemm]r�h̀̂�e�b̀[â]n]clij]�ld̂]e[�[̀ âǹm̀fo�ell]ll[]cdu�e�r]lifc�amecu�ecr�̂]b̀cld̂Zbdìc�̀h�e�©²¦³h̀̀ d�ld̂]dbn�̀h�dn]�ld̂]e[�d̀�e�[̀ ]̂�cedẐem�b̀cridìct� ̂ ®̀]bd�aêdc]̂l�̂]dẐc]r�dn]�ld̂]e[�bnecc]m�d̀�e�[̀ ]̂�cedẐem�lded]�ecr�amecd]r�j]f]dedìc�ed�dn]�lid]t�£l�e�̂]lZmdu�dn]�bnecc]m�lde\imí]r�ecr�]̂̀ lìc�lZ\lir]rt�vc�©ªªµu�Y]p�̄e[alnî]�Zaf̂er]r�dn]�ld̂]e[�ĥ̀[�¶·̧ ¹º»¼½�\o�¾¿À¼»�ÁÂ¾Ã�»¼Äº·¼�¹Â¿¼»¹¿º¾ÅÆ�d̀�ÇÈÂÂÉ�ÊȨ̀ ¾̧»¿ºÅÄ�ËÌÈ¹¿ºÍ�ÎºÁ¼�ÏÆ¼�ic�idl�¥ª¦_\g�lẐheb]�ped]̂�qZemido�̂]à d̂t�Ð!,�.!,��$)6!,.+�$!)�-���1��(ÑÒÒ#+��,4�(+4/!'Ò(!%#+-��Ò)(-Ò-"**�--ÓFÔÒ)1Õ2!/4*6.4�§©� D�?"$*7�@"$&���!�Ö�'�%!($)/�9+��,-1�&�×%+)-�



��������	� 
�������������������������������������� !�"#$%�!���&$�!��'(#&�)�!*�+,�-#.�&.���%!�!(&��!�� !�!/�!����#�0 �1 �� !�*#"".�$���"#$%���!!%��#�2!�(!%.1!%��#�&!!��0$�!(� !%��#$"�3�4#(�0$�!(��'#(�0 �1 �567� $��$**(#8!%�#(�!��$2"�� !%�9:;<�,�� !�*"$��� #."%��%!���'-�$�%���1#(*#($�!�� !�9:;<�3�9 !�!���&$�!�� #."%�$11#.���'#(�(!%.1��#������*#"".�$���"#$%��'(#&�*#����$�%��#�*#�����#.(1!���%!���'�!%����� !�9:;<�$���!1!��$(-��#�$��$���� !�$**"�1$2"!�0$�!(�=.$"��-���$�%$(%�3�9 !�"#$%�(!%.1��#��!���&$�!��$(!�2$�!%�#��� !�*"$��!%�&$�$�!&!���&!$�.(!���#�2!��&*"!&!��!%����� !�1(���1$"�$(!$�3�5"!&!����>�$�%�?�#'�� !����!�&���&.&�!"!&!����$(!�%�(!1�"-�"��@!%A�B5"!&!���>���$�!��� $��� !�0$�!(� !%�*"$��� #."%���1".%!�CDE�FGHIJKHF�LM�HNF�OLKP�QFPR?HILEG�FSTF?HFP�MLQ�HNF�JKEKUFJFEH�JFKGRQFG�PFG?QI>FP�IE�FOFJFEH�V?W�>FOLXYZ�B5"!&!���?���$�!��� $��-#.�� #."%���1".%!�CD�PFG?QITHILE�LM�HNF�[\]�JKEKUFJFEH�JFKGRQFG�HNKH�XIOO�EFFP�HL�>F�IJTOFJFEHFP�HL�K?NIF̂F�HNF�OLKP�QFPR?HILEG�FGHIJKHFP�IE�FOFJFEH�V>W�K>L̂F_�KEP�KE�IPFEHIMI?KHILE�VRGIEU�K�JKT�LQ�K�PFG?QITHILEW�LM�HNF�?QIHI?KO�KQFKG�IE�XNI?N�HNLGF�JFKGRQFG�XIOO�>F�EFFPFP�HL�IJTOFJFEH�HNIG�TOKEYZ�9#�!���&$�!�� !�"#$%�(!%.1��#���!/*!1�!%�#�1!�� !�&$�$�!&!���&!$�.(!��$(!��&*"!&!��!%,�-#.��!!%��#�.�%!(��$�%�� !�1$.�!̀$�%̀!''!1��(!"$��#�� �*�2!�0!!��*#"".�$���"#$%��$�%�� !�0$�!(2#%-�(!�*#��!3�5��$2"�� ����� ���"��@�$""#0��-#.��#�!8$".$�!� #0�&.1 �#'�$�"#$%�(!%.1��#��'(#&�0$�!(� !%��#.(1!������!!%!%��#�&!!��0$�!(2#%-��$(�!��3�7��0�� �-#.(�$**(#$1 �'#(�=.$���'-����*#"".�$���"#$%�,��!"!1������ !�$**(#*(�$�!�$**(#$1 �0�""�%!*!�%�#���!8!($"�'$1�#(�,���1".%����$8$�"$2�"��-,�*#"".�$���,�0$�!(2#%-��-*!,��-*!��#'��#.(1!�,���&!�'($&!,�$�%��*$��$"��1$"!3�:#����&*#(�$��,�� !�$**(#$1 �&.���2!�1#&*$��2"!�0�� �� !�&!� #%�.�!%��#�=.$���'-�"#$%��$�%�&.���2!�$2"!��#�*(!%�1��� !��!1!��$(-�"#$%�(!%.1��#����#�&!!���$(�!��3�a.&!(#.��&#%!"��$(!�$8$�"$2"!��#�%!�!(&��!�0 �1 �b:6��$(!�&#(!�$**(#*(�$�!�'#(�(!%.1����*#"".�$���"#$%��$�%��#�$�%�����!"!1������ !�"#1$��#���&#���"�@!"-��#�$1 �!8!�� !��(!$�!���"#$%�(!%.1��#��3�7""�&#%!"�� $8!�"�&��$��#���� $��-#.�&.���%#1.&!����#�!��.(!�%!1���#�̀&$@!(��.�%!(��$�%�� !&�2!'#(!�.������ !�%$�$3�c�defeg�hi�jklme�nop�qr�hse�tkhegusev�wkrvliix�fig�k�uyzzkg{�if�zkr{�if�hse�ge|eq}qr~��kheg�zivemu�k}kqmklme�hi�uy��igh�mqrxk~e�if�uiyg|eu�krv�qrvq|khigu�fig��khegusev��mkrrqr~����������������������������������������������������!�!($",�&$�$�!&!���*($1��1!��$(!��&*"!&!��!%��&&!%�$�!"-�$%�$1!����#�� !�0$�!(2#%-�#(�.*"$�%��#�$%%(!���� !��#.(1!��#'�*#"".�$���"#$%�3�7��*$(��#'�-#.(��1(!!�����*(#1!��,�-#.�0�""�0$����#��%!���'-�0 �1 �&$�$�!&!���*($1��1!��1$��2!��&*"!&!��!%����� !�1(���1$"�$(!$��� $��-#.��%!���'�!%�$��*$(��#'�)�!*�+3����&#���*$(���#'�� !�1#.��(-,�"$�%�.�!��$(!�1 $�����,�$�%�-#.�0�""��!!%��#�.�%!(��$�%� #0�� !�!�1 $��!��$''!1��*#"".��#��"#$%��$�%�0$�!(�=.$"��-3�)#&!�0$�!(� !%�*#"".��#��&#%!"��$""#0�-#.��#�'$1�#(����8$(�#.��%!8!"#*&!���$�%�$�(�1."�.($"��1!�$(�#��$��0!""�$��1 $������1"�&$�!3��$�!(� !%�*"$���������$��#**#(�.���-��#�0#(@�0�� ��!0�*$(��!(���#��%!���'-�$1��#���� $��(!%.1!�*#"".��#�,�(!��#(!�%$&$�!%�!1#�-��!&�,�$�%�*(#�!1��8$".$2"!� $2��$�3�

����������������������������������������3���8!��#(-�!/�������&$�$�!&!���!''#(������� !�0$�!(� !%,�$@�������#�$11#.���"#1$"�*(�#(���!��$�%�������.��#�$"�%(�8!(�3�+3� .$���'-�� !�!''!1��8!�!���#'�1.((!���&$�$�!&!��&!$�.(!�3�¡3��%!���'-��!0�&$�$�!&!���#**#(�.����!�3¢3��%!���'-�1(���1$"�$(!$������ !�0$�!(� !%�0 !(!�$%%���#�$"&$�$�!&!���!''#(���$(!��!!%!%3£3��%!���'-�*#���2"!�&$�$�!&!���*($1��1!�3¤3��%!���'-�(!"$��8!�*#"".�$���(!%.1��#��!''�1�!�1�!�3¥3�;!8!"#*��1(!!�����1(��!(�$��#��%!���'-�#**#(�.����!��$�%1#���($����3¦3�§$�@�$"�!(�$��8!��$�%�%!8!"#*�1$�%�%$�!�&$�$�!&!��#**#(�.����!�3
�̈©ª«¬�®ª«̄°�±²�³°́°µ²¶«·̧�¹º±°»¼½°̄�¾µº·¼�� ¿À�



��������	�
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �!�������������������������������������������������������������������������������"�����������������#��������������� �$���#����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������#������������� �%&'(�)*�+',-./�0/�12(3'2'/&0&-4/�564.602�7#������������8�����9��:������;��#��������������������������������<�������������������������������������������������=���������������������������������������������>��������?@�������������������������������������������#�������������������#����������>��������A@����������������������#�������������������������������������������������������������������������������"���������������������>��������B@ �C���#��������������������������������������������������������#������������������#������������������ �
DEFG�HI�JFKLMN�OPGQFPFNERELSN�TUSMURP�V JFWFQSG�RN�LPGQFPFNERELSNKXYFZ[QFV JFWFQSG�LNEFULP�PLQFKESNFK�ESEURX\�LPGQFPFNERELSN�S]PRNRMFPFNE�PFRK[UFKV JFWFQSG�XULEFULR�ES�PFRK[UFGUSMUFKK�EŜ RUZ�PFFELNMR̂EFUKYFZ�MSRQKV JFWFQSG�PSNLESULNM�XSPGSNFNEV JFWFQSG�LN]SUPRELSN_FZ[XRELSNXSPGSNFNEV JFWFQSG�FWRQ[RELSN�GUSXFKKV OZFNEL]̀�EFXYNLXRQ�RNZ�]LNRNXLRQRKKLKERNXF�NFFZFZ�ES�LPGQFPFNEGQRNV aKKLMN�UFKGSNKLbLQLÈ�]SU�UFWLF̂ LNMRNZ�UFWLKLNM�EYF�GQRN

cd� e�f��<�g��������h����������i���������j�����

+'k'34(�0/�12(3'2'/&0&-4/�%lm'no3'�!���������������������������������������������������������������������p����������������������<� �!�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������#q�������=���������������������������������������������# �r������������#�������������������������<����������������������������#���������������#����<����������� �s����t������������������������������������������<���������������������"������� �r���������������������������������������������������"�����#�����������������������������������������������t��������#�����������p��������� �!�������������������������������u����vjew������������������������������������������#�������������������x�yzB{|}~�|�u�������|�|�������{|������������~�B|��?�?�|�|����|?�~�|���}|���u�|}�����{�����?���{?������|?���?A���|��|}����~���������������������������������� ��¡�����¢£��¤����¥¦§̈©�ª«¬�®©�«̄�°°±²�����£����£³�́���¡�£���³�́�³���£�����³£����µ�¶-3',&4/',�i��������������#����������������������������#������������������������������������������������������#����������������������������������������������#������������������ �h������������������������������������������������������������������vjew��������������� �xv�����������"������y·�}|�B���������u����|�����|?�~�|?A�|����|����|��u���}|�|��������̧{|�{|�������������~�B|��?�?�|�|����|?�~�|�������{|��B�������?B������?�|�A|��������|�|��|}���r��������#���������������������������������������������������������<���������������¹������º�����>9����:�#����@�����º�����>:����»�#����@����������º�����>»����9¼�#��������������@ �i�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������7½j�������������������������������< �



��������	� 
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����������������������������������������������!�"����#������������������������������������$������#������ ���������������%���������%��������������%���������������!�&'((�)*+,-.((/�0123�45678�9:;�<=8�:>�??@A�*B�/.(�CDEFG**,�B*+�(HDIJK(�ILK(-/*E(-M� NOPQRST�UVSTWXYZTW�[\Y]X̂_T]Q�̀a�b�cTP]Wd�e�������f�#������������������������������������g�hhh����������������������������������i���i������� ���������$���#������������������������j����#�������!�k��������������������������������� ���������������������������������������������������������$�����������f�hhh���������������������l����������������������������������i���i����!�UVm̂_T]Q�̀a�n�cTP]Wd�o�������������������������������������������������$�gf�#��������$�������������������������������p�qhh���������i���i����!�rYZŝ_T]Q�̀n�cTP]W�Y]�SYZsT]d�e�������������������������� �����������$�����������������##�������������i���i�����������t��� �$�qu!�

v�wxyz{�|xy}~����6~�~��?y������~���~}�5������ ���

��������������������������������e�$�����#�������$���� ��������#�����$��� ����������������������������#������������������������!�"����������������������������������������������������������� �����������$�������������!�!�����������������������������������������l$�������������#������������������������������������������������������������!�!��������������������������#�����������������������������������������������������������!�������������������������� �$���������������� ����������� ��������#���������������������������������������������������!�"������������������������������������������������#����������#������ �������������������������������� ������������$������������������������������������#����������������������������#����������������¡����$��������������������������������#���������!�"���#����������� ��������#��������#����� �����������������������k¢e����������������������!�£k�������¤������¥¦�§̈©�ª«�¬®©̈®̄�©¤̄©�¬̄°�±̈�²§̈³�©ª�³̈©̈́®°̈�µ¤̈©¤̈�¶ª̄³®°·�̈³²¬©®ª°§�̄̈�±̈®°·�¬̄¤®̧̈ ³̈�ª̧̈ �©®́ �̈̄°³�§²±§©̄°©®̄¶�¹ª·̈§§�®§�±̈®°·�́ ³̄̈�©ªµ̄³�̄©©̄®°®°·�µ̄©̈�º²̄¶®©»�§©̄°³̄³§¼½�&¾DGK(�0120�*B�/.(�CDEFG**,�F(I*E-/+D/(-�.*¿�À*Á�ÂDE�Á-(�D�-ÁL/(�*B�LEFLÂD/*+-�/*�I(D-Á+(�J+*Ã+(--�LE�+(FÁÂLEÃ�J*KKÁ/DE/�K*DF-�F(J(EFLEÃ�*E�/.(�L--Á(-�*B�Â*EÂ(+EM����Ä���Ä���������������������������#������� ������������������®�� ���������������$�����������������£�¥¦�́ª°®©ª®°·�¬ª́¹ª°̈°©�©ª�̧̈ ¶̄²̄©̈�©¤̈�̈««̈¬©®̧̈°̈§§�ª«�©¤̈�®́¹¶̈́ °̈©̄©®ª°�̈««ª©§�ª̧̈ �©®́ Å̈�́¨̄§²̈³�̄·̄®°§©�©¤̈�¬®©̈®̄�§̈©̄±¶®§¤̈³�²°³̈�®©̈́ �¤¼½�Æ����������#�������������������������������#��������������������������������������������������� �����������$�����������������������!�Æ���������#���������������������������������������##������� ��������#��Ç���������#������������������������ ��������������������������������������������$��������� �����������$��������������������������������������#������!�Æ����������#���������������������������������������#��Ç���%#���������������������#��%#��Ç����������������������!�È����������#�������������������������������$������Ç���������������#���������������������� ��������������������� ����������!�e��$����������������������������� ���É�Ê È���������������� ����$��������� ��ËÊ È�������������� ����������ËÊ È���������������������$�����#������������������ËÊ i��� ���������������������������� �����������������������������������ËÊ È����������������������������� �������������������������� �����������$����������#�����������#������Ë



��������	�
�������������������������������� !"��#$�%�&'!(�#$)*'%�+(,'*%��!(�+(-)�.!"+)(/�%*,!"+)(�,).&)(�("�"$!"�+(�)'��#�"$�� !"��#$�%�,)..*(+"�0�1�,!*#��.!(�� !"���2*!'+"��&�)3'�.#���#*'"�-�).�+(%+�+%*!'�!,"+)(#�!(%�"$��#)'*"+)(#�!���)-"�(��)'*("!���&�!,"+,�#4��--�,"+���&*3'+,�+(�)'��.�("�!(%�&!�"+,+&!"+)(�&�).)"��"$��!%)&"+)(�)-�.!(!5�.�("�&�!,"+,�#6�$�'&�")��(#*���"$��#*#"!+(!3+'+"��)-�"$�� !"��#$�%�.!(!5�.�("�&'!(6�!(%4�&��$!&#�.)#"�+.&)�"!("4��(,)*�!5��,$!(5�#�+(�3�$!�+)��"$!"� +''�$�'&��)*�!,$+�����)*��)���!''� !"��#$�%�5)!'#0�7$+#�&$!#��)-�"$�� !"��#$�%�&'!((+(5�&�),�##� +''�!%%��##��'�.�("�84� $+,$�,!''#�-)��9:;<�=<>?@ABC=?<�B<D�8DEFBC=?<�F?AG?<8<C�EH8D�C?�8<IB<F8�GEJK=F�E<D8@HCB<D=<L�?>�CI8�G@?M8FC�B<D�8<F?E@BL8�CI8=@�8B@KN�B<D�F?<C=<E8D�GB@C=F=GBC=?<�=<�H8K8FC=<LO�D8H=L<=<LO�B<D�=AGK8A8<C=<L�CI8�<?<G?=<C�H?E@F8�AB<BL8A8<C�A8BHE@8H�CIBC�P=KK�J8�=AGK8A8<C8DQR�7$��)3S�,"+��#�)-�"$��&*3'+,�)*"��!,$�&�)5�!.�#$)*'%�%+��,"'��#*&&)�"��)*�� !"��#$�%�.!(!5�.�("�5)!'#�!(%�+.&'�.�("!"+)(�)-�"$�� !"��#$�%�.!(!5�.�("�&'!(0�7$���#$)*'%�!'#)�+(,'*%��.�!#*�!3'��+(%+,!")�#�-)��"�!,T+(5�&�)5��##0�7$��+(-)�.!"+)(/�%*,!"+)(�,).&)(�("�)-��)*�� !"��#$�%�&'!(�#$)*'%�3*+'%�)(�"$��)*"��!,$��--)�"#��)*�+(+"+!"�%�+(�U"�&�V�!#�&!�"�)-�3*+'%+(5�&!�"(��#$+&#0�7)�%���')&�!(��--�,"+���+(-)�.!"+)(/�%*,!"+)(�&'!(4��)*�#$)*'%�*#��"$��-)'') +(5�#"�&#W�X Y�-+(��+(-)�.!"+)(/�%*,!"+)(�5)!'#0X Z%�("+-��!(%�!(!'�[��"$��"!�5�"�!*%+�(,�#0X \��!"��"$��.�##!5�#�-)���!,$�!*%+�(,�0X ]!,T!5��"$��.�##!5��-)��"$���!�+)*#�!*%+�(,�#0X Y+#"�+3*"��"$��.�##!5�#0X ��!'*!"��"$��+(-)�.!"+)(/�%*,!"+)(�&�)5�!.0^�_̀a�b̀ ac�def̀abghd̀e�ijcgkc�kcc�lmnnopq�op�rnmst�u�lvowm�xyz�{ypwv|nopq�}~nmz��mw��vnzm~|��{~�s~oqp����hhi����fi���cig��̀��eikh���fdjck��chekhci��d�c�i�f�����d���c�ijgdek�h�c�khcik�ecc�c��h̀��c�cj̀i�ge��dbijcbceh�ge�cffc�hd�c��ghcak�c��̀�hacg����gbigd�e�ge��de�j��ck�g�kch�̀f�iag�hd�gj��̀a�k�cchk�h̀��cji��̀���ch�̀e��̀�a��g��������������������7$����!���" )�&�+.!�����!#)(#�")���!'*!"���)*�� !"��#$�%�&�)5�!.0��+�#"4��)*� !("�")�3��!3'��")�%�.)(#"�!"��"$!"�3��+.&'�.�("+(5�"$��.!(!5�.�("�.�!#*��#4��)*�!���!,$+��+(5��)*�� !"��#$�%�5)!'#0�U�,)(%4��)*� !("�")�3��!3'��")�,)("+(*!''��+.&�)����)*��&�)5�!.�+(�"��.#�)-��--+,+�(,��!(%�2*!'+"�0�Z(�5�(��!'4��)*� +''���!'*!"��"$����.!S)��,).&)(�("#�)-��)*�� !"��#$�%�+.&'�.�("!"+)(�&�)5�!.��+(&*"#4�)*"&*"#4�!(%�)*",).�#���+5*�����0��)*����!'*!"+)(�-�!.� )�T�#$)*'%�+(,'*%��+(%+,!")�#�")�.�!#*����!,$�,).&)(�("0���3�+�-�%�#,�+&"+)(�)-��!,$�,).&)(�("�+#�+(,'*%�%�3�') W�X Z(&*"#�"$���'�.�("#�)-�"$��&�),�##�*#�%�")�+.&'�.�("��)*��&�)5�!.��+0�04���#)*�,�#�)-�"+.�!(%�"�,$(+,!'���&��"+#�4�#"!T�$)'%���&!�"+,+&!"+)(�X  *"&*"#�"$��"!#T#�,)(%*,"�%�!(%�"$��&�)%*,"#�%���')&�%��+0�04�+.&'�.�("!"+)(�!,"+�+"+�#�#*,$!#�+(#"!''+(5�.!(!5�.�("�&�!,"+,�#�X  *",).�#�"$����#*'"#�)��)*",).�#���!'+[�%�-�).�+.&'�.�("!"+)(��--)�"#��+0�04��(�+�)(.�("!'+.&�)��.�("#�'+T�� !"���2*!'+"��0
¡¢� ��£*+,T�¤*+%��")�Y���')&+(5�¥!"��#$�%�]'!(#�



��������	�

����������������������������������������������������������������� !"�#�$%� $&'�&���( �&�$ &'�)** *�&�$��+�,-./.,01�20,/3-�.4�/5-4.46�735-�80/9-:;9<�=104�.4/3�0,/.34�.:�/;9�0>.1./7�/3�254<�.?=19?94/0/.34@�A54<.46�?.6;/�>9�499<9<�23-�?51/.=19�0,/.B./.9:C�:5,;�0:�?04069?94/�=-0,/.,9�.4:/0110/.34C�.423-?0/.34D9<5,0/.34�0,/.B./.9:C�?34./3-.46C�04<�0<?.4.:/-0/.B9�:5==3-/@�E4�0<<./.34C�735�:;351<�<3,5?94/�8;0/�/7=9:�32�/9,;4.,01�0::.:/04,9�0-9�499<9<�/3�.?=19?94/�/;9�=104�04<�8;0/�-9:35-,9:�3-�05/;3-./.9:�8.11�>9�-91.9<�34�23-�.?=19?94/0/.34C�.4�/9-?:�32�>3/;�.4./.01�0<3=/.34�04<�1346F/9-?�3=9-0/.34�04<�?0.4/9404,9@�G;9�.<94/.2.,0/.34�04<�9:/.?0/.34�32�2.404,.01�04<�/9,;4.,01�0::.:/04,9�:;351<�/0H9�.4/3�0,,354/�/;9�231138.46I�J +<?.4.:/-0/.34�:9-B.,9:C�.4,15<.46�:010-.9:C�-96510/3-7�299:C�:5==1.9:C�04<�.4FH.4<�:9-B.,9:J .423-?0/.34D9<5,0/.34�9223-/:J E4:/0110/.34C�3=9-0/.34C�04<�?0.4/9404,9�32�?04069?94/�?90:5-9:J K34./3-.46C�<0/0�04017:.:C�04<�<0/0�?04069?94/�0,/.B./.9:@E<94/.27.46�/;9�/9,;4.,01�04<�2.404,.01�0::.:/04,9�499<9<�8.11�0<<-9::�919?94/�<�32�LM+N:�4.49�919?94/:I�OPQRSTUVW�XY�WZ[U\X[W�S]�[̂W�X\S_Y[Z�S]�[Ẁ̂ YÙXa�XYV�]UYXỲUXa�XZZUZ[XỲW�YWWVWVb�XZZS̀UX[WV�̀SZ[Zb�XYVcSR�[̂W�ZS_R̀WZ�XYV�X_[̂SRU[UWZ�[̂X[�dUaa�eW�RWaUWV�_fSY�[S�U\faW\WY[�[̂UZ�faXYgh�i�"*��j�kl$$�**!l'��mn'�m���&� j��+1/;356;�/;9-9�.:�43�:.4619�,3?=3494/�/;0/�<92.49:�:5,,9::C�:9B9-01�20,/3-:C�.2�.?=19?94/9<C�8.11�94;04,9�735-�,;04,9:�32�0�:5,,9::251�80/9-:;9<�.?=19?94/0/.34�=104I�J K90:5-0>19�6301:�04<�3>o9,/.B9:J p9<.,0/9<�:/022�/3�,0--7�35/�0<?.4.:/-0/.B9�<5/.9:J q34:.:/94/C�1346F/9-?�254<.46J E4B31B9?94/�32�:/0H9;31<9-:�.4�=1044.46�9223-/:J p9<.,0/9<�.4<.B.<501:�8;3�0-9�:5==3-/9<�>7�13,01�63B9-4?94/�0694,.9:J r3,01�3849-:;.=�32�/;9�80/9-:;9<�=104J +�?9/;3<�23-�?34./3-.46�04<�9B0150/.46�.?=19?94/0/.34�:/-0/96.9:J s=94�,3??54.,0/.34�>9/8994�3-604.t0/.34�?9?>9-:@u�vwxyz�{wx|}�~���}�}���x�����~}���}|�������� ���



��������	�
������������������������������������������������������������ !������"��#�$���%��������#�����������&"������������ '���� �����()*�+,-.�,/�0)*�1,2345-�647*2�302-0*+8�43�0,�92,:,0*�-�7,.;<0-28�=*30�:-<-+*:*<0�92-5045*�0,�4:92,7*�0)*�>-0*2�?;-.408�4<�0)*�1,2345-�647*2@�A*504,<�BCD�/;<E3�>*2*�3,;+)0�0,�4:9.*:*<0�-�7,.;<0-28�5,7*2�52,9�*<2,..:*<0�92,+2-:�0-2+*0*E�/,2�:-F4:;:�>-0*2�?;-.408�=*<*/403�4<�0)*�1,2345-�647*2@�()*�0-=.*�=*.,>�43�-<�*F5*290�,/�0)*�4:9.*:*<0-04,<�302-0*+4*3�-<E�35)*E;.*3�0,�/;./4..�*.*:*<03�/G�+G�-<E�)@�()*�0-2+*03�/,2�0)43�>-0*23)*E�>*2*�;9E-0*E�4<�HICHG�-<E�:,2*�4</,2:-04,<�43�-7-4.-=.*�-0�)009JKK>>>@0,><,/5*<02*74..*@,2+K;9.,-E3K/4.*KHICHLM82L6*9,20LN4<-.LO*234,<L1,2345-L647*2L6*9,20P)0:@9E/@�QR�RS�T����U�VR��S��U� WRV�X�V�UY��U�Z[��\�V�T�����S�TR�RS�T�����Z]����̂�� ��_�̀a[�� Q�RUaVRZ[����̀��R��VUb�Y�V\�VTR����T�RUaV�U� Q�����V��S�R�̀�YRV�X�V�UY��U�Z[��\�V�T�����V��S� WaZ[�����̂�[̂�T���c��a�V�R�_c��V��̀a�R�������TY������ 	���̂R����U��V�R̀ �̀����R[�[�̂�VRS���V�Z���\���de�fghijk�glm�jghno�pnglkqlr�qlsjlkqtju�svwwvmqkou�xwgnn�rhgqlu�svtjh�shvpe�yvgnz�{|||�mjwvlxkhgkqvl�gshjxe�
}~jjl��llj�x��v~lko��vqn��vlxjhtgkqvl��qxkhqsk�� �~khjgs�z��gnn��||���wpnjwjlkgkqvlz��||��kv��||�e�fvlqkvhqlrz��||��kv��||�e� �v~lmx�v��l~khqjlkx�hjm~sjme��~w�jh�v���ghwjhx�glm�l~w�jh�v��gshjx�jlhvnnjme�}~ghkjhno�hjpvhkx�glm�khgsiqlr�v��gshjgrjx�jlhvnnjme�

�gqhjm��gkjhx�jm�xk~moz�fghonglm��jpghkwjlk�v���gk~hgn��jxv~hsjxe�yhv~lm��gkjh�kjxk��jnnxz��lqtjhxqko�v��fghonglm��vvpjhgkqtj���kjlxqvle�
}������grrhjxxqtj�jlhvnnwjlk�qlqkqgkqtje��hjxjlkgkqvl�v��mgkg�hjx~nkx�kv�p~�nqsu�vk�jh��gkjhx�jmxu�glm�f������������j�xqkje�

�hvhgkjm�jghno�pnglkqlr�qlsjlkqtjz��d��gshj�jghno�pnglkqlru��d��pjh�gshj�ngkjh�pnglkqlre��hvtqmjx��qlglsqgn�qlsjlkqtj�kv��ghwjhx�kv�pnglk�svtjh�shvpx�jghnqjh�kv�gs�qjtj�rhjgkjh�l~khqjlk�~pkgije��e��rhqs~nk~hj�l~khqjlk�glm�xjmqwjlk�hjm~sqlr�xkhjgw��~��jhxe�yvgnz�{|��jwvlxkhgkqvl�gshjxe� }~jjl��llj�x��v~lko��vqn��vlxjhtgkqvl��qxkhqsk� �~khjgs�z��gnn��||�e��wpnjwjlkgkqvlz��||��kv��||�e�d��gshjx��o��||�e�d��gshjx��o��||�e�fvlqkvhqlrz��||��kv��||�e�
�~w�jh�v��gshjx��~��jhjme���glrj�ql�svlsjlkhgkqvl�v��l~khqjlk�glm�xjmqwjlk�njtjnx�ql�x~h�gsj��gkjhxe�}~ghkjhno�hjpvhkx�khgsiqlr�l~w�jhx�v��gshjx�jlhvnnjme�

�hgsiqlr�v���~��jhjm�gshjxz�}~jjl��llj�x��v~lko��vqn��vlxjhtgkqvl��qxkhqskz��gqhjm��gkjhx�jm�xk~moe��hj�glm�pvxk�xgwpnqlr��vh�l~khqjlkx�glm�xjmqwjlkz�fghonglm��jpghkwjlk�v���gk~hgn��jxv~hsjxe�
}������grrhjxxqtj�jlhvnnwjlk�qlqkqgkqtje��hjxjlkgkqvl�v��hjx~nkx�kv�p~�nqsu�vk�jh�f���go��gkjhx�jmxu�glm�pvxk�vl�f������������j�xqkje�

���rgp��snvxjhe��jwvlxkhgkjx��~��jh�mjtjnvpwjlk�glm�wglgrjwjlk�kjs�lq�~jxe��~hhjlkno�k�jxj�~l�~��jhjm�ghjgx��gnn�v~kxqmj��khgmqkqvlgn��~��jh�phvrhgw�shqkjhqge��v~hsjz��kkpz�����ejpgervt�v�v���gkjhx�jm��gkjhx�jmsjlkhgn�pnglj�gwpnjx�pm��sh�xkhgkjro���epm�e�N,2�-�5,:9.*0*�.430�,/�-7-4.-=.*�/*E*2-.�/;<E4<+�/,2�>-0*23)*EL2*.-0*E�-5047404*3G�74340�0)*� ¡¢¡£¤¥�¤¦�§̈©̈ª¡£�«¤¬̈¢®̄�°®¢¡±̄ �̈²>>>@5/E-@+,7³@�́.3,�74340�>>>@*9-@+,7K>-0*23)*E/;<E4<+�0,�74*>�0)*� ¡¢¡£¤¥�¤¦�§̈©̈ª¡£�§µ±©®±¥�¶¤µª̄̈�¦¤ª�·¡¢̈ª̧̈ ©�¹ª¤¢̈̄¢®¤±º�d»� �́¼;45½�¾;4E*�0,�¿*7*.,94<+�À-0*23)*E�Á.-<3�



��������	� 
��������������������������������������� !��" #���$���%�&'�%()�%*�+�',,-,!�+(�#%))�-)�$�# )%*��,�*%.%��+-,!���%�+�',/�(%) ��)�&-���,����'++%,� ,�-����%�+�',�-)�'#� '��0�-"+�%"%,�%*1�2"+�%"%,�'�-�,�'#�-.-�-%)�)�� �*�$����&���%�(�'*�"'+�*%.%��+%*�-,�0� (�+�',1�3�-)�"%',)���'��-,*-.-* '��+(�4%#�)�)�� �*�5%�#��(*-,'�%*�50�'�+�',6*%)-!,'�%*�+(�4%#��"','!%(��(�-"+�%"%,�'�-�,��%'"����%,) (%���'��789)�'(%�,���4 )��-"+�%"%,�%*�5 ��'�)��$-����%�)#�%* �%)/�'#�-%.%�)+%#-$-#�"-�%)��,%)/�',*�'(%�-,�%!('�%*�&-���.'(-� )�"�,-��(-,!�',*�� �(%'#��%$$�(�)1�
:;<=�>?�@A=B<A<C;�;D<�EF;<GHD<I�JBFC�K JG<=FG<�LMGN�=BFCHK @A=B<A<C;�AFCFO<A<C;H;GF;<OP<HK QMCIRS;�AMCP;MGPCOK QMCIRS;�PCTMGAF;PMCU<IRSF;PMCFS;PVP;P<HK :DFG<�G<HRB;H

W�XYZ[\�]YẐ_�̀a�b_c_daeZfg�hì_jkl_̂�mdifk�� no�

��������p�q�������r� �&-��� )%�0� (��.%('���&'�%()�%*�+�',�')���%�$� ,*'�-�,�$�(�+(%+'(-,!�&�(s�+�',)/�&�-#��&-���� ��-,%���%�'#�-.-�-%)�-,�t6����u60%'(��-"%�$('"%)1�3�-,s��$�0� (�&'�%()�%*�+�',�')�'�)�('�%!-#�+�',�$�(���,!6�%("�) ##%))�',*�',, '��&�(s�+�',)�')���%�)+%#-$-#���6*���-)�)����'#�-%.%���'��.-)-�,1�v�(s�+�',)�#',�'�)��5%� )%$ ���%"+�'�%)�$�(�+(%+'(-,!�!(',��'++�-#'�-�,)����$ ,*�-"+�%"%,�'�-�,�'#�-.-�-%)1�w%+%,*-,!��,���%��-"%�$('"%�'))�#-'�%*�&-���0� (�$ ,*-,!�)� (#%/�0� (�&�(s�+�',)�"-!���,%%*����5%�+(%+'(%*�',, '��0�&-���x '(�%(�0�(%+�(�-,!1����������y���z������
�����z{���2"+�%"%,�-,!���%�&'�%()�%*�"','!%"%,��+�',�-,.��.%)�'�.'(-%�0��$�%|+%(�-)%�',*�)s-��)/�-,#� *-,!�+(�4%#��"','!%"%,�/��%#�,-#'��%|+%(�-)%/�!(� +�$'#-�-�'�-�,/�*'�'�','�0)-)/�#�"" ,-#'�-�,/�',*�+ 5�-#�(%�'�-�,)1�3�%�"','!%"%,��+('#�-#%)�0� �-*%,�-$-%*�-,�0� (�+�',�&-���+(�5'5�0�-,#� *%�'�#�"5-,'�-�,��$�)�( #� ('��',*�,�,)�( #� ('��#�,�(��)1�7%�) (%����)%��',*��('#s���%�"-�%)��,%)����"%') (%���%�('�%��$�+(�!(%))�-,�-"+�%"%,�-,!���%�"','!%"%,��)�('�%!-%)1�r� (��('#s-,!�)�� �*�-,#� *%���%�+(�!(%))�"'*%�-,�789�-"+�%"%,�'�-�,/�"'-,�%,',#%�'#�-.-�-%)/�',*�}-$�'++�-#'5�%~�+�-,��)� (#%��(%'�"%,��-"+(�.%"%,�)�',*�"�,-��(-,!��$�)�#-'��-,*-#'��()1��p������yp�{�p�{�z��)�+'(���$���%�*%.%��+"%,���$�0� (�&'�%()�%*�+�',/�0� �)�� �*��'.%�*%.%��+%*�'�"�,-��(-,!�#�"+�,%,������('#s�',*�%.'� '�%���%�%$$%#�-.%,%))��$�0� (�-"+�%"%,�'�-�,�%$$�(�)1�3�%(%�'(%�"',0�&'0)����"�,-��(�&'�%(�#�,*-�-�,)1�3��"�,-��(���%�#�,)�-� %,�)�-,�&'�%(/�)%*-"%,�)/�',*�$-)���-)) %�) #��')��%.%�)��$�*-))��.%*��|0!%,/�) )+%,*%*�)%*-"%,�)/�, �(-%,�)/�"%�'�)/��-�)/�',*�+%)�-#-*%)�"�,-��(-,!�)+%#-'�-)�)�+%($�("�#�%"-#'��"%') (%"%,�)1�9�0)-#'��"%') (%"%,�)��$�!%,%('��#�,*-�-�,)�) #��')��%"+%('� (%/�$��&/�&'�%(�#���(/�',*���%�#�,*-�-�,��$�)�(%'"5',s)�',*��'s%)��(%)�'(%�'�)��-"+�(�',�1�7-���!-#'��"%') (%"%,�)��$���%�'5 ,*',#%�',*�.'(-%�0��$�'x '�-#�+�',��',*�',-"'���-$%�',*���%�'5-�-�0��$��%)���(!',-)")����) (.-.%�-,�)'"+�%�&'�%(�'(%�'�)��&-*%�0� )%*����"�,-��(�&'�%(�#�,*-�-�,)1�2,�'**-�-�,����!�.%(,"%,��"�,-��(-,!�+(�!('")/��('-,%*�.�� ,�%%()��'.%�5%%,�'5�%����+(�.-*%�-"+�(�',��*'�'�$�(�&'�%()�%*�"','!%"%,�1�



��������	�
�������������������������������� ���������� �!���������"�#�����$��%�#���������&'()*+,�-./�01,2*,3�456�6+137)�)+�*89:+;'�45)':�<15=*)>�(+,2*)*+,6�*,�)7'�?))':�@:''A�45)':67'2B�C+2'=*,3�5,2�0*'=2�*,;',)+:*'6�*2',)*0*'2�(:*)*(5=�5:'56�,''2*,3�):'5)8',)�)+�5(7*';'�)7'�9:+D'()�3+5=6�+0�*89:+;*,3�2*66+=;'2�+E>3',�=';'=6�5,2�:'21(*,3�F5()':*5=�=';'=6B�G'6)�85,53'8',)�9:5()*('6�HGCI6J�4':'�*89='8',)'2�+,�5:'5�25*:>�05:86K�)7'>�*,(=12'�:5*,45)':�2*;':6*+,6L�(+,(:')'�=+52*,3�5:'56L�0*=)':�6(:'',6�)+�):59�=5:3'�6+=*26�*,�:1,+00L�5,2�3:566'2�0*=)':�6):*96�0+:�):'5)*,3�:1,+00B�M7'�0+==+4*,3�8+,*)+:*,3�5()*;*)*'6�5:'�(+,21()'2�)+�):5(A�9:+D'()�'00'()*;','66N�O I5*:'2�45)':67'2�5,2�196):'58P2+4,6):'58�8+,*)+:*,3�6)12*'6�(+;':*,3�'*37)�8+,*)+:*,3�6*)'6�5:'16'2�)+�';5=15)'�)7'�F','0*)6�+0�)7'�GCI6B�M7'�8+,*)+:*,3�6*)'6�5:'�5F+;'�5,2�F'=+4�5�25*:>�4*)7�F5:,>5:2�5,2�6):'58F5,A�6)5F*=*Q5)*+,�GCI6B�O R5F*)5)L�0*67L�5,2�85(:+*,;':)'F:5)'6�5:'�6589='2�'5(7�>'5:�21:*,3�)7'�6188':BO S5)':�(7'8*6):>�*6�):5(A'2�)7:+137�5,5=>6*6�+0�-T�4''A=>�6589='6�(+=='()'2�'5(7�>'5:�0:+8�U9:*=�)+?()+F':�5)�)7'�95*:'2�45)':67'2�5,2�196):'58P2+4,6):'58�6*)'6BO V1,+00�';',)6�5:'�5=6+�6589='2�5)�)7'�196):'58P2+4,6):'58�6*)'6�5,2�5)�)7'�6*,3='�2+4,6):'586)5)*+,�6*)'�5)�)7'�+1)=')�+0�?))':�@:''ABV'52�8+:'�5F+1)�)7*6�9:+D'()�5)�7))9NPP444B'95B3+;P+4+4PWI&P&'()*+,-./XXXP920P-./Y5==B920B�

Z[� U�\1*(A�]1*2'�)+�̂';'=+9*,3�S5)':67'2�I=5,6�

_̀abcde�fghi�jaka�M4+�)>9'6�+0�5,5=>6'6�67+1=2�F'�(+,6*2':'2�21:*,3�)7'�*89='8',)5)*+,�9756'N�H.J�:+1)*,'�61885:>�5,5=>6*6�)75)�):5(A6�9:+3:'66L�566'66'6�)7'�<15=*)>�+0�25)5�:'=5)*;'�)+�8'561:'8',)�<15=*)>�+FD'()*;'6�H*B'BL�47')7':�)7'�25)5�5:'�+0�52'<15)'�<15=*)>�)+�5,64':�)7'�8+,*)+:*,3�<1'6)*+,6JL�5,2�9:+;*2'6�'5:=>�0''2F5(A�+,�):',26L�(75,3'6L�5,2�9:+F='86�*,�)7'�45)':67'2�5,2�HlJ�*,)',6*;'�5,5=>6*6�)+�2')':8*,'�6)5)16L�(75,3'6L�):',26L�+:�+)7':�*661'6�)75)�8'561:'�)7'�:'69+,6'�)+�45)':67'2�9=5,�*89='8',)5)*+,B�X,�3',':5=L�*,)',6*;'�25)5�5,5=>6*6�67+1=2�F'�(+,21()'2�5)�='56)�5,,15==>�*,�5�81=)*>'5:�45)':67'2�9=5,B�M7'�)>9'6�+0�25)5�5,5=>6'6�>+1�9':0+:8�+,�)7'�8+,*)+:*,3�25)5�2'9',2�+,�)7'�+;':5==�3+5=6�5,2�+FD'()*;'6L�)7'�85,53'8',)�599:+5(7L�5,2�)7'�,5)1:'�+0�)7'�8+,*)+:*,3�9:+3:58K�6';':5=�)>9'6�+0�5,5=>6'6�8*37)�F'�599:+9:*5)'�2'9',2*,3�+,�)7'�8+,*)+:*,3�<1'6)*+,6B�S7':'�5,5=>6*6�5,2�';5=15)*+,�+0�85,53'8',)�9:5()*('6�5:'�)7'�0+(16�+0�8+,*)+:*,3L�*)�8*37)�F'�0'56*F='�)+�16'�:'=5)*;'=>�6*89=':�5,5=>6'6L�61(7�56�)m)'6)6�(+895:*,3�*,2*(5)+:�=';'=6�F'0+:'�5,2�50)':�*89='8',)5)*+,L�=';'=6�5F+;'�5,2�F'=+4�*89='8',)5)*+,�6*)'6L�+:�9+==1)5,)�=';'=6�*,�5:'56�47':'�85,53'8',)�+9)*+,6�4':'�*89='8',)'2�5,2�5:'56�47':'�)7'>�4':'�,+)B�S7':'�52'<15)'�9:'m*89='8',)5)*+,�25)5�5:'�,+)�5;5*=5F='L�):',2�5,5=>6*6�(5,�F'�16'2�)+�=++A�0+:�3:5215=�(75,3'6�*,�:'69+,6'�)+�>+1:�*89='8',)5)*+,�9:+3:58B�X,�6+8'�(56'6L�8+:'�6+97*6)*(5)'2�6)5)*6)*(5=�)'(7,*<1'6�61(7�56�5,5=>6*6�+0�(+;5:*5,('�8*37)�F'�:'<1*:'2�)+�(+,):+=�0+:�)7'�'00'()6�+0�;5:*5)*+,6�*,�4'5)7':L�6):'580=+4L�+:�+)7':�05()+:6B�ng̀ohpk�q̀rgisaktg̀uvohpaktg̀�_pktwtktex�U=)7+137�*)�*6�*89+:)5,)�)+�=')�9'+9='�A,+4�5F+1)�)7'�45)':�<15=*)>�9:+F='86�*,�)7'�45)':67'2L�6+8')*8'6�6*89=>�*,0+:8*,3�5,2�'21(5)*,3�9'+9='�+,�)7'�*661'6�*6�,+)�',+137�)+�',(+1:53'�52+9)*+,�+0�9:5()*('6�+;':�)*8'B�y*:6)L�512*',('6�67+1=2�F'�852'�545:'�+0�)7'�*661'B�M7',�)7'>�67+1=2�F'�'21(5)'2�+,�)7'�9:+F='86�05(*,3�)7'�45)':67'2B�y*,5==>L�)7'>�67+1=2�='5:,�475)�5()*+,6�)7'>�(5,�)5A'�)+�7'=9�522:'66�)7+6'�9:+F='86B�z{aie�|exhbkx�@+,)*,1+16�(+881,*(5)*+,�*6�'66',)*5=�)+�F1*=2*,3�)7'�(:'2*F*=*)>�+0�5,2�6199+:)�0+:�)7'�45)':67'2�*89='8',)5)*+,�9:+('66B�U6�95:)�+0�>+1:�*,0+:85)*+,P'21(5)*+,�5()*;*)*'6L�>+1�67+1=2�F'�7*37=*37)*,3�A'>�5()*;*)*'6�5,2�:'61=)6�)+�)7'�6)5A'7+=2':6�5,2�)7'�=5:3':�(+881,*)>B�M7*6�7'=96�)+�A''9�)7'8�',353'2�5,2�)+�67+4�)7'8�7+4�)7'*:�95:)*(*95)*+,�*6�85A*,3�5�2*00':',('B�



��������	� 
������������������������������������������������������������������ ����! "����#���$%�&��������������������������'����������������������'��������(�)�����*��#+,-�--��� ��.��/012304215�21�367�8915717::�;<374:67=�>01:2:3:�0?�<1�213754<37=�:34<375@�0?�A2BCD7B713<3201�B012304215E�0?�C40547::�<1=�A7??7>32F717::�B012304215E�0?�;673674�G9<1323<32F7�50<D:�6<F7�H771�<>627F7=I�/012304215�<1=�<=<C32F7�B<1<57B713�<47�>004=21<37=�3640956�367�8915717::�J2F74�/<1<57B713�K7<B�L8J/KMN�;62>6�6<:�B7BH74:�36<3�<47�50F741B713:�;236�=7>2:201OB<P215�<1=�2BCD7B713215�<936042327:I�J759D<4�47C043:�<1=�>0BB912><3201:�0>>94�H73;771�367�8J/KN�50F741B713<D�7132327:N�<1=�367�C9HD2>�<3�D<457I�K67�8J/K�6<:�36477�:3<1=215�>0BB23377:�30�0F74:77�2BCD7B713<3201�<1=�7??7>32F717::�B012304215�<1=�30�=7F7D0C�<=<C32F7�:34<37527:I�K67@�<47�367�QR7>932F7�S0BB23377�L30�C47C<47�<571=<:�<1=�367�<119<D�;04P�CD<1M�<1=�3;0�37>612><D�0F74:2563�>0BB23377:T367�SD7<1�U<374�U04P�V409C�<1=�367�8915717::�J2F74�J7:304<3201�U04P�V409CI�W1�<==23201N�367�8J/K�<CC0213:�C40X7>3�>0BB23377:�<:�177=7=I�K67�2BC043<1>7�0?�<=<C32F7�B<1<57B713�<:�<�P7@�<>32F23@�0?�367�8J/K�2:�2DD9:34<37=�H7D0;I�

J7<=�B047�<H093�362:�C40X7>3�<3�633CYZZ;;;IX<B7:30;1342H7I045ZC4054<B:Z14:Z[\]>CD<1IC=?I�_̂̀a�bc�d èfgh̀�ihjkh̀ff�elm�deǹ�ompgf_q l̀_f�r09�;2DD�C7420=2><DD@�47F27;�367�2BCD7B713<3201�<>32F2327:�093D217=�21�@094�;04P�CD<1N�>0BC<47�367�47:9D3:�;236�@094�213742B�B2D7:3017:N�C40F2=7�?77=H<>P�30�:3<P760D=74:N�<1=�=7374B217�;673674�@09�;<13�30�B<P7�<1@�>0447>3201:I�K67�<=<C32F7�B<1<57B713�<CC40<>6�2:�103�D217<4�H93�>24>9D<4N�30�<DD0;�@09�30�213754<37�47:9D3:�H<>P�2130�@094�C4054<BI�r09�177=�30�>47<37�=7>2:201�C0213:�<3�;62>6�@09�;2DD�47F27;�21?04B<3201�<1=�3671�=7>2=7�;673674�30�B<P7�>6<157:�21�@094�C4054<B�04�:3<@�367�>094:7I�#����s%���������&�������������t����u���������v  ���t��������v ��t����u��������
w�xyz{|�}yz~������������z�����������~�������� ���



��������	�
���������������������������������� !��"!"���� ��#�����$ ������%&����'�"��� ���"("������"��#���%)����!""� �'��)"�! �"����"�������"������!���'"!"������%� %"� !��"!"���� ��*�+���$ �������������,"�!�� ��� �'�-�������-"�"�! �"�$��"��.��� ��� !���("!"���*�/�� ��)"����������"��� !"����!"�������)"��"( "$���-����"��!"�����������$��"��)"-�����*�0 !��"�1�� %�-���������� ���)���-�1"�-��"����� �"���������������)"��"( "$����%"��*�+�����"( "$��)���-�������--�"����"("����&"����"��2�3 4)"����%"���1" �'���"-���� !��"!"�����������'��!3 5��'�"�����������$��&�����3 /!��"!"���� ����"�����3 6""-1�%&����!����-�$�"�����-���)"�����&")��-"��*7����89:;�<=�><��/������)�("�-"�"�! �"-��)���������"�����!""� �'��)"� !��"!"���� ���! �"����"����� ��"� !����'"����)��������"���������-��"-�%� ������-���)"��'����#������""-����!�&"��-?���!"���*�5"�)��������)�("�-"�"�! �"-��)��������""-��-- � �����!���'"!"���!"����"����������""-�����������)"�!���'"!"���!"����"�� ������)"����%�� ��*�@"����"������&��)"�� ')��.�"�� ����1"���"�!�& �'�����%)��'"�*�/����!"�%��"������! ')������)�("�!"�������! �"����"��1"%���"����$"��)"��%��- � ���#�����"�)����������%&"-��)"����- �'���� !��"!"�����!"�����)"�!"����"�*�ABCDEFGH�ICJCKHLHJEM�NOPPQEFOJ�RHBQSEFOJT�GHUTQT�VLDPHLHJECEFOJ�NUOKUHTT�W XCTH�YEQBZM�[O\HU�IOJOSCSZ�RFGHU�]CEHUT̂HB�RHTEOUCEFOJ�ASEFOJ�YEUCEHKZ�_]RAỲa�bUHBHUFSca�ICUZPCJB�4)"�d�$"��e���%�%��f ("��g��"��)"-�f"������ ����%� ���0����"'��hgf�0i����"��"-��)"� !������%"�����%) "( �'�1��)� !��"!"���� ������'�"�����-�!�� ��� �'��"�����*�/���)"� �����%"��)����)"������� ����"-�%� ������"� ��-".���"#�1��"-�����)"�!�� ��� �'�-���#�1����)"� !��"!"���� ������'�"��� ���-".���"#�1��"-�������?"%�����%& �'���-�!�-"� �'#��-��� ("�!���'"!"��� ���".� �"-*���� ��%"�!"!1"����"�����,"�"j �� �'�$��"��)"-�%��- � ���#�!�� ��� �'�!"�)�-�#���-�!�-"� �'�!"�)�-����� �("�� '��"����� 1�"�"j������ ���*�k�"�� �������1"�%��� -"�"-� �%��-"2�3 /�� ������ 1�"��)���%��- � ���� ���)"�$��"��)"-�)�("�%)��'"-����%����"��%���)"����� "����"-�%� �������)"� ������"-��"������ ������?"%��l�3 /�� ������ 1�"��)����)"� ������"-��"������ ������?"%�����"������"����! �'����"j�"%�"-����)�("��� �"-�� �%"�)"������� !"��)"��$"�"�!�� ���"-l�3 /�� ������ 1�"��)����)"����� "����"-�%� ���������)"����?"%�#����% �"-� ��� �"�����"#�%���-�1"� �%���"%������)"���"��$)"�"��)"����?"%��$��� ������"-l�3 ��"���)"��@e5��!��"�"��"%� ("�����"-�% �'����� "������-��"- !"����)����)��"� !��"!"��"-l3 /����#��)���-��)��"�@e5��1"��� �� � ,"-����� !��"!"���� �������)���-��)" ���"("����� !��"!"���� ���1" �%�"��"-lf"�-�!��"��1�����) �����?"%�����)���2mm$$$*$��"��)"-n��� ��%"*%�!m!%$�o��1�gf�0�����"!"��*)�!�*�
pp� ��k� %&�q� -"����r"("��� �'�g��"��)"-�5�����
s�tuvwxyz{�|}~�~|��z��|}~�~��y��w�u���z��yy��xzv���u���u{wxyz{�w��w��y��{�y�����{���y��{u����u�y�u��y�x��xz���y�����wu�{�u�����z~�



��������		� �
��	��		����������
��������������������  ! "�����#�$��!��! $����! "�%�&�! "�����!������� �#'����$�! "�(��)��#�*�(#��! ��"���������#+�$�����  ! "��#����������)��"! "�!��+����+$�����$�!)����$�� "��� ��$#���������#+�$����'��#�)� �������+���,�����'��+���#(��$#�%���)����'!$���� ��"��� �! (�����+$�+������$�!$�������&�$#)! "�!)�#��� ����!'����! ����"��! "������������#�*,�-./�!��$# �! +���%���'��#�! "� �������������)� �"�)� ���##���� ��! !�!��!'���(#��)� �"�����#���������)�)�*��)#����((�$�!'����$!�!# ���!����!)!�������#+�$������#+"��&�������$$�����#�����������$� ��������#�+$��)#����#&+������+���,�0�$�!# �11��!"��!"����)� %�#(������� ����##���� �����$�!&����#�����%��+��#���������������)� �"�)� ��(��)��#�*,���!����$�!# ��!"��!"������$� �����������2��������! !�!��!'���� ������� ��� ����##�����������$�!�!# ����$� ��$$�����#����� "��� �����)� �"�)� ��#(�������3+��!�%��$�#�������$#+ ��%,��������##�����'��&�� �#�"� !4���! �#�����(#��#�! "�$���"#�!��5�6 7����/$$�����##��6 .�!#�!�!4! "�0!����(#��8���������9���#���!# �� ��.�#��$�!# 6 :���# ��:��� ��6 ;+ �! "�0#+�$��6 <�!)����<�� "�6 -)��"! "�1��+��6 ���! ! "�� ��0#$!���=��!���##��,>?@?�ABBCDD�EFFGD�EHC�I?@CJ�KL?GM@N�OFJ@?G�����8�����P+��!�%�.#�����Q8P.R�����5SS���,�����3+��!�%����,+�ST�!����$##�����!'����#U�$����# �#����&%�����V !����0������W�#�#"!$���0+�'�%�QV0W0TR�-./R�� ������X��!# ���8�����P+��!�%�=# !�#�! "�<#+ $!��QX8P=<T,�1��! ��"�������+&�!$�%��'�!��&���������3+��!�%������(�#)�����V0W0�X��!# ���8�����1 (#�)��!# �0%���)�QX810T�� ������-./�0�Y9-��Q0�Y��"��� ��9-��!�'��T�7����8����#+��,�����-./�������3+��!�%������#�!"! ����(�#)�����0�Y9-��7����8����#+��R���!$��!��-./Z�����#�!�#�%�#(�������3+��!�%�)# !�#�! "������$#���$����&%����������#+�$��)� �"�)� ��"�#+����$�#�������$#+ ��%,�Y�"� !4��!# �R�! $�+�! "�������R���!&��R�����������"�#+��R�#�����(��������"� $!��R�'#�+ �����"�#+��R�� ��+ !'���!�!��R��+&)!��������#�����0�Y9-��7����8����#+����#�)�*�����!��������+&�!$�%��$$���!&��,�;#��)#���! (#�)��!# ��&#+��0�Y9-�R���������5SS���,���,"#'S��#���,�����V0W0�������3+��!�%������#�!"! ����(�#)�����X810�8�&�7���&���R���!$��$# ��! ��$+��� ��� ���!��#�!$��������������(�#)�)#������ �[,\�)!��!# ��!�����$�#������� ��!# ,�1��!��+����&%�������� ���#$���"#'�� )� ��R��+&�!$�� ����!'����+�!�!�!��R���!'����$!�!4� �R�� ��#�����(��������"� $!���! '#�'����!���)� �"! "�#+�����������#+�$��,�
]�̂_̀ab�c_̀de�fg�heiejgk̀lm�nofepqred�sjolq�� tu�



��������		�
�������������������������������������������������� �!"#$%& '�(')�*�%+,�%$-+�*%..-#"%'�/(#(�011 ++��%%.�2!*/0�3��##,455&"+,-678 ,(8&%95',)(#5:� '(6. +�-+ $+�#%�9" ;�(')�)%;'.%()�'"#$%& '�(')�,�%+,�%$-+�,%..-#"%'�)(#(�<$%=�(�9($" #>�%<�)(#(6(+ +8���� �!*/0��1%'+"+#+�%<�('�"'#$%)-1#%$>�; 6+"# 3�& %+,(#"(.�9" ; $3�)(#(�)%;'.%()+3�(')�)(#(�+ #+8��� �#%%.�(&&$ &(# +�)(#(�(#�(�+"'&. �.%1(#"%'�(')�-+ +�+�($ )�? 6�+ $9"1 +3�"'1.-)"'&�#� �@�ABC��(')�!?D@�E"'"F*%$#(.�+ $9"1 +�(')�'-= $%-+�=(,,"'&�+ $9"1 +8�D#�(.+%�. 9 $(& +�#� �1%==%'�1%) �6(+ �-+ )�6>�C*0G+�B 1%9 $>�E(,, $3�E>?0�CB@�E(,, $3�(')�H (1� +�E(,, $�? 6�=(,,"'&�(,,."1(#"%'+8��� �!*/0��1('�� .,�+-,,%$#�+#(# +�"'�('(.>I"'&�'"#$%& '�(')�,�%+,�%$-+�,%..-#"%'�6>�,$%9")"'&3�"'�(�$ ()".>�(11 ++"6. �(')� (+>F#%F-+ �<%$=(#3�J >�)(#(�%'�#� �<%..%;"'&4�K �� � L# '#�(')�=(&'"#-) �%<�'"#$%& '�(')�,�%+,�%$-+�,%..-#"%'K ?(# $�M-(."#>�,$%6. =+�$ .(# )�#%�#�"+�,%..-#"%'K *%# '#"(.�,%..-#"%'�+%-$1 +8 NOPQRSTU�VUW�XYRZ[YRQ\Z�XR]]\PORU�̂VPV�_̀ T̀ZZ�aRR]�������b����c�����d��e��������f����������������������������f���g�h�����������c�������������C*0��(+�) 9 .%, )�B 1%9 $>�*%# '#"(.�@1$  '"'&�2B*@i�+  �;;;8 ,(8&%95$ 1%9 $>,%# '#"(.:�#%�(++"+#�;(# $+� )�=('(& $+�"'�=(J"'&�+#$(# &"1�) 1"+"%'+8�H(+ )�%'�(�1%=6"'(#"%'�%<� 1%.%&"1(.3�+#$ ++%$3�(')�+%1"(.�1%'# L#�"')"1(#%$+3�B*@�,$%9") +�(�+>+# =(#"1�(,,$%(1��<%$�1%=,($"'&��%;�; ..�;(# $+� )+�=(>�$ +,%')�#%�$ +#%$(#"%'�%$�,$%# 1#"%'8�j+ $+�(,,.>�#�"+�) 1"+"%'�+-,,%$#�#%%.�#%�,$"%$"#"I �#� �6 ## $�,$%+, 1#+�<%$�+-11 ++<-.�$ +#%$(#"%'3�$ 9 (.�J >�<(1#%$+�-') $.>"'&�#� �)"<<"1-.#>�%<�"=,$%9"'&�;(# $+� )+3�(')�1%=,($ ��%;�� (.#�>�;(# $+� )+�=(>�6 �9-.' $(6. �#%�)"<< $ '#�) &$  +�%$�#>, +�%<�#�$ (#8��� �B*@�; 6+"# �< (#-$ +�+# ,F6>F+# ,�"'+#$-1#"%'+�"'�$ 1%9 $>�,%# '#"(.�+1$  '"'&�#�(#�."'J�#%�+ 9 $(.�%'."' �#%%.+�(')�$ +%-$1 +8�0�."6$($>�%<�$ 1%9 $>�,%# '#"(.�"')"1(#%$+�%<< $+�# 1�'"1(.�"'<%$=(#"%'�%'�+, 1"<"1�$ 1%9 $>F$ .(# )�<(1#%$+�2 1%.%&"1(.3�+#$ ++%$3�(')�+%1"(.:3��%;�#� >�"'<.- '1 �$ +#%$(6"."#>3�(')��%;�#%�= (+-$ �#� =8�j+ �%<�B*@�1%-.)�. ()�#%�6 ## $�$ +#%$(#"%'�"'9 +#= '#+�#�(#�$ +#%$ �9(.-(6. �;(# $+� ($." $3�=%$ �1%'+"+# '#.>3�=%$ �1%+#F << 1#"9 .>3�(')�"'�=%$ �,.(1 +8� kl�mno�pqrs�tuvpqwxv�yrz�zws{|vy{tv�}trsv~�tu��{|�ul�{�rqr�u�wq�}��w�uv~��vs|{vvr|�}��w�uv~��wlt�vr�uwq�}trs�vu�{~�ultu�wsr|�v�r|{v�����pwu|{t�zws{|vy{tv�ul�sy{��pp{|�q{�s��rvs�|{v{��q{�y{wqsyx�zws{|vy{tv�wlt�w|{��rrt�p|rvp{�sv��r|�|{vsr|wsurl��v�wqq��q�{�trsv�w|{�y{wqsyx�zws{|vy{tv�syws��wx��{�ws�|uv��t�{�sr�qrz�vr�uwq�v�r|{�wlt�yu�y{|�vs|{vvr|�v�r|{����� 0��-"1J��-") �#%�/ 9 .%,"'&�?(# $+� )�*.('+�



��������		� 
��������������������������������� !"��!#$��%&"'(�!)�%*(�"((+�%��$��%('%�*(&,%*-.��/"'%!�"!"�� &%(�)*(+)�&"+�"&%/�&,�&�(&)0�123�,&/"'*(+�%*(�4(&,%*-�5&%(�)*(+)�6"!%!&%!7(�8*%%$9:: &%(�0($&0��7:$�, &)%(:"$): &%(�)*(+:!"+(;0'�#<�%��("'�/�&�(�)%&%().�,�'&,���7(�"#("%).� &%(�)*(+����&"!=&%!�").�&"+��%*(�)�%��$��%('%�&"+�#&!"%&!"�*(&,%*-� &%(�>�+!()0�?(7(,�$!"��&"+�!#$,(#("%!"��'�#$�(*(")!7(� &%(�)*(+�#&"&�(#("%�$,&")�!"�%*()(�)!%/&%!�")� !,,��()/,%�!"�'�")!+(�&>,(�)&7!"�)��7(��%!#(�!��%*(�"((+�����'�)%,-��()%��&%!�"�'&"�>(�&7�!+(+�!"� &%(�)*(+)�%*&%� �/,+��%*(� !)(�>('�#(�!#$&!�(+�>-�%*(�'/#/,&%!7(�!#$&'%)����#/,%!$,(�)%�())��)0�3,%*�/�*�#&"-����123@)�$����&#)���'/)��"� &%(�)*(+)�%*&%�*&7(�>(("�+(��&+(+.�%*()(�)&#(�$����&#)�'&"�>(�/)(+�%��$��%('%�*!�*AB/&,!%-� &%(��%*��/�*� &%(�)*(+�$,&""!"�0�C*(�4(&,%*-�5&%(�)*(+)�6"!%!&%!7(�/)()�&�*�,!)%!'���&#( ��D�%*&%�'�")!+(�)�())("%!&,�('�,��!'&,�&%%�!>/%()�&"+�*&)�+(7(,�$(+�%��,)�%��!+("%!�-�&"+�'�")(�7(�%*()(� &%(�)*(+)0�E&"-�("7!��"#("%&,�����&"!=&%!�")�'�")!+(��%*(���(("�)$&'()���/"+�!"�*(&,%*-� &%(�)*(+)�&)�FGHHI�JIKGLMNGOPNOGH.�+(�!"(+�&)�Q&"�!"%(�'�""('%(+�"(% ��D������(("�)$&'(�%*&%�'�")(�7()�"&%/�&,�('�)-)%(#�7&,/()�&"+��/"'%!�")�&"+�$��7!+()�&))�'!&%(+�>("(�!%)�%��*/#&"�$�$/,&%!�")R�8S("(+!'%�&"+�E'E&*�"�TUUV<0�123@)�TUVW�)('%!�"�WVX��/!+(,!"()�'�"%!"/(�%*(���'/)��"��()%��&%!�"����!#$&!�(+� &%(�).�>/%�%*(��/!+(,!"()�&,)��&,,� �%*(�/)(����WVX��/"+)����� &%(�)*(+�$��%('%!�"� *("�$��%('%!�"�!)�'!%(+�&)�&�$�!��!%-�!"�%*(�)%&%(@)�/$+&%(+�Y�"$�!"%�Z�/�'(�E&"&�(#("%�2����&#0�
[\]̂_̀a�b]_\cd̀\ed�fgdd\dd�\dd\h_i]̂�\jĝgkij]̂�]__cilm_\d�_̀]_�jgh_cilm_\�_g�]�b\̂̂nomhj_ighihkp�ih_\kc]_\e�dad_\qr�

s
t�u������v����������wxyy������z{|�}HFJ~I����HN�LI�M��O���H�HIN�!)�&"�&++!%!�"�%��%*(�4&"+>��D0�6%�'�"7(-)�!"���#&%!�"��"��('("%,-�+(7(,�$(+�&$$��&'*()�&"+�%��,)�����&))())!"�� (%,&"+��/"'%!�")�&"+�'�"+!%!�").�%*(��()/,%)���� *!'*�&))!)%�+('!)!�"A#&D(�)�!"�+(%(�#!"!"�� *(�(�!"�&� &%(�)*(+�(;!)%!"��&"+����#(�� (%,&"+)�'&"�>()%�>(��()%��(+����("*&"'(+.���� *(�(� (%,&"+)�'&"�>(�'�(&%(+�%���$%!#!=(�%*(!���/"'%!�")�!"�)/$$��%���� &%(��B/&,!%-�&"+��%*(�� &%(�)*(+�#&"&�(#("%�$,&"���&,)0�C*(�)/$$,(#("%�&,)��+!)'/))()� (%,&"+��()%��&%!�".�("*&"'(#("%.�&"+�'�(&%!�"�%('*"!B/()�&"+��(7!( )�%*(�'�")!+(�&%!�")�!"7�,7(+�!"�+('!+!"��*� �>()%�%��/"+(�%&D(�&� (%,&"+�$���('%0�C*(�$/�$�)(����%*(�)/$$,(#("%�!)�%��("'�/�&�(�%*(�!"',/)!�"����$��&'%!7(� (%,&"+�#&"&�(#("%�!"� &%(�)*(+�$,&")�>('&/)(� (%,&"+)�$,&-�&"�!"%(��&,���,(�!"�%*(�*(&,%*-��/"'%!�"!"�����%*(� &%(�)*(+0�6%�$��#�%()�/)!"��&� &%(�)*(+�&$$��&'*�%*&%�"�%��",-�$��%('%)�(;!)%!"����()* &%(�� (%,&"+)�>/%�&,)��#&;!#!=()��$$��%/"!%!()�%��/)(��()%��(+.�("*&"'(+.�&"+�'�(&%(+���()* &%(�� (%,&"+)�%��&++�())� &%(�)*(+�$��>,(#)�,!D(�*&>!%&%�,�)).�*-+��,��!'&,�&,%(�&%!�".�&"+� &%(��B/&,!%-�!#$&!�#("%)0�C*(�$�!#&�-�&/+!("'()�&�(�#(#>(�)�&"+�)%&������ &%(�)*(+����&"!=&%!�")�&"+�,�'&,:)%&%(�&�("'!()0����mij���mie\�_g��\�\̂gfihk��]_\cd̀\e��̂]hd�� ���



��������		�
������
�������������������������������������������������� !"#�$%&�'"#("!# ��")*����)���++�� "*!�+�,�-+! ��.///0�(102"34#(+4+)���++5�6�1 )*�+�+ "*!�+�1-") �(*!71*!89�#"#("!# �+")*��:!7(1!*�;�/1 �*-";!�+�/��*��/1 �*+��;:8�3�8�*�+ "*1 !"#��66"* +��13��8�;� "�;"�)7�# �;�/1 �*�<)18! 9�!7(*"3�7�# +0�=*">�� +��!2�8!2� �;�"#� ���+! ���13��*���!3�;�?8�1#�,1 �*�@� �+�� !"#�$%&�6)#;!#2�"*�" ��*�#"#("!# �+")*��:6"�)+�;�6)#;!#20�����/1 �*-";!�+�6�1 )*�;�!#� ���+ "*!�+�1*��+�(1*1 �;�!# "� �*����1 �2"*!�+A�;�(�#;!#2�"#� ��� 9(��"6�/1 �*�<)18! 9�!7(*"3�7�# �1��!�3�;B�.%5�(1* !1889�"*�6)889�*�+ "*�;�/1 �*-";!�+A�.C5�/1 �*-";!�+� �1 �+�"/�(*"2*�++� "/1*;�1��!�3!#2�/1 �*�<)18! 9�2"18+A�1#;�.$5�/1 �*-";!�+�6"*�/�!�����"8"2!�18�*�+ "*1 !"#��1+�-��#� ���71!#�6"�)+�"6�!7(*"3�7�# ��66"* +0���!+�/�-+! ���")+�+�1((*"D!71 �89�EFG�+)���++�+ "*!�+0�����+�� !"#�$%&�(*"2*17�/1+��*�1 �;� "�(*"3!;���*! !�18�+)(("* �6"*�+ 1 ��1#;�8"�18�#"#("!# �+")*����66"* +0�H#;�*�+�� !"#�$%&A�+ 1 �+A� �**! "*!�+A�1#;� *!-�+�*���!3��2*1# �7"#�9� �1 �+)(("* +�1�/!;��31*!� 9�"6�1� !3! !�+A�!#�8);!#2� ���#!�18�1++!+ 1#��A�6!#1#�!18�1++!+ 1#��A��;)�1 !"#A� *1!#!#2A� ���#"8"29� *1#+6�*A�;�7"#+ *1 !"#�(*">�� +A�1#;�7"#! "*!#2� "�1++�++� ���+)���++�"6�+(��!6!��#"#("!# �+")*���!7(8�7�# 1 !"#�(*">�� +0�
������
�������I�J�KL�����������M����N�������O�����P*"7�CGGE� "�CGGQA� ���H0�0�R�(1* 7�# �"6�@2*!�)8 )*�S+�.H�R@5�'1 !"#18�T#+ ! ) ��"6�P"";�1#;�@2*!�)8 )*��.'TP@5�1#;�'1 )*18�U�+")*��+�?"#+�*31 !"#���*3!���.'U?�5�>"!# 89�6)#;�;�%$�/1 �*+��;�(*">�� +�1�*"++� ���#1 !"#0�����"3�*188�2"18�"6� ��+��(*">�� +A�/�!���/�*���"#;)� �;�)#;�*� ���#17��?"#+�*31 !"#�V66�� +�@++�++7�# �=*">�� �.?V@=A�///0#*�+0�)+;102"34/(+4("* 184#*�+471!#4#1 !"#184 ���#!�184#*14��1(45A�/1+� "�;� �*7!#�� ���7�1+)*1-8���66�� +�"6�12*!�)8 )*18��"#+�*31 !"#�(*1� !��+�"#�+(1 !18�(1  �*#+�1#;� *�#;+�!#�/1 �*�<)18! 9�1 � ���/1 �*+��;�+�18�0�@�*���# �()-8!�1 !"#�-9� ����"!8�1#;�,1 �*�?"#+�*31 !"#��"�!� 9� ! 8�;�WXY�ZX�[\]̂_�[̀ZZ̀a�bca]d\̂Z\aê�fXgh̀aieZ]Xg�jaXcaekh�ZX�jaXZ̀dZ�leZ̀a�m\ê]Zno�pq̀�reZ]Xgê�sghZ]Z\Z̀�Xt�uXX_�eg_�bca]d\̂Z\àvfXgh̀aieZ]Xg�wtt̀dZh�bhh̀hhk̀gZ�jaXx̀dZ�wyz̀a]̀gd̀�+9# ��+!{�+� ���*�+)8 +A�8�++"#+�8�1*#�;A�1#;�*��"77�#;1 !"#+�6*"7� ���%$�?V@=�(*">�� +0�����()-8!�1 !"#�(*�+�# +�"3�*1*��!#2�8�++"#+�8�1*#�;�1#;�(*"3!;�+�;� 1!8�;�!#6"*71 !"#�1-") ��1���?V@=�(*">�� A�!#�8);!#2�/1 �*+��;�+�  !#2A�/1 �*�<)18! 9�(*"-8�7.+5A�81#;� *�1 7�# A�/1 �*�<)18! 9�*�+)8 +A�7";�8!#2A�+"�!"��"#"7!�+A�1#;�") *�1��4�;)�1 !"#0�����8�++"#+�8�1*#�;�6*"7� �!+�+9# ��+!+�+ *�#2 ��#� ���|#"/8�;2��-1+��6"*��318)1 !#2� ���!7(1� +�"6��"#+�*31 !"#�(*1� !��+�"#�/1 �*�<)18! 9A�!7(*"3!#2�71#12�7�# �"6�12*!�)8 )*18�81#;+�1(�+�6"*�!7(*"3�;�/1 �*�*�+")*���") �"7�+A�1#;�!#6"*7!#2��"#+�*31 !"#�("8!�90�����()-8!�1 !"#�!+�131!81-8��"#� �����"!8�1#;�,1 �*�?"#+�*31 !"#��"�!� 9S+�/�-+! ��.///0+/�+0"*24�#4()-8!�1 !"#+4-)!8;!#2}-�  �*}�12*!�)8 )*18}�"#+�*31 !"#}(*"2*17+50�~�� @��)!�|��)!;�� "�R�3�8"(!#2�,1 �*+��;�=81#+�



��������		� 
��������������
������������������������������������������������� !"  #�$%�&'()�*+,'-�./ �0#�1!2#3 #.45�67451.%�8#9 #.1� "�:!2;!43�<068:-�===>#!9">7"?4>;2�@=A"@A2!.45@#!9"@341#@#4.12#45@A!2;!43"@B1#4#9145@ C1A@D�1"�4��257#.4!%�A!2;!43�./4.�A!2�1? "�B1#4#9145�4#?�. 9/#1945�4""1".4#9 �.2�4;!1975.7!45�A!2?79 !"�./!27;/�B7#?1#;�92#.!49."�7A�.2�4�34E1373�. !3�2B�FG�% 4!"�1#�5 #;./>�H/ " �92#.!49."�A!2�1? �4""1".4#9 �.2�/ 5A�A54#�4#?�13A5 3 #.�92#" !�4.12#�A!49.19 "�./4.�4??! ""�#4.7!45�! "27!9 �92#9 !#"-�4#?�./ %�2BB !�2AA2!.7#1.1 "�.2�13A!2� �"215-�=4. !-�A54#.-�4#1345-�41!�4#?�! 54. ?�! "27!9 "�2#�4;!1975.7!45�54#?�4#?�#2#1#?7".!145�A!1�4. �B2! ".54#?>�8#�4??1.12#-�068:�/ 5A"�A!2?79 !"�3  .�B ? !45-�".4. -�.!1$45-�4#?�52945� #�1!2#3 #.45�! ;754.12#">�8#�B1"945�% 4!"�IGFI�4#?�IGFJ-�"23 �068:�B7#?"�4! �$ 1#;�B297" ?�2#�./ �*4.12#45�K4. !�67451.%�8#1.14.1� �<*K68D�.2�13A5 3 #.�92#" !�4.12#�A!49.19 "�1#�" 5 9. ?�=4. !"/ ?">�,/ 9L�=1./�%27!�".4. �&'()M*+,'�2BB19 �B2!�./ �54. ".�1#B2!34.12#�! ;4!?1#;� 51;1$151.%-�./ �4AA5194.12#�A!29 ""-�4#?�"9/ ?75 ">�H/ �*K68�B7#?"�A!2N 9."�1#�A!12!1.%�=4. !"/ ?"�.2�/ 5A�B4!3 !"-�!4#9/ !"-�4#?�B2! ".�54#?2=# !"�13A!2� �=4. !�C7451.%�4#?�4C74.19�/4$1.4."�1#�13A41! ?�".! 43">�*+,'�=155�/ 5A�A!2?79 !"�13A5 3 #.�92#" !�4.12#�4#?�34#4; 3 #.�A!49.19 "�./!27;/�4�"%". 3"�4AA!249/�.2�92#.!25�4#?�.!4A�#7.!1 #.�4#?�34#7! �!7#2BB>�67451B1 ?�A!2?79 !"�=155�! 9 1� �4""1".4#9 �B2!�1#".4551#;�92#" !�4.12#�A!49.19 "�"79/�4"�92� !�9!2A"-�B15. !�".!1A"-�4#?�. !!49 ">�H/ �$4"19�".!79.7! �2B�./ �*K68�1"�./4.�*+,'�? �2. "�4�A !9 #.4; �2B�068:�B1#4#9145�4""1".4#9 �B7#?"�.2�4;!1975.7!45�92#" !�4.12#�A!49.19 "�1#�=4. !"/ ?"�1? #.1B1 ?�4"�A!12!1.1 "�$%�".4. �=4. !�C7451.%�4; #91 "-�4#?�".4. �4; #91 "�/ 5A�.!49L�A!2;! ""�1#�*K68�=4. !"/ ?"�./!27;/�=4. !�C7451.%�32#1.2!1#;>�H/1"�1"�4#�*+,'�1#1.14.1� -�2#�=/19/�*+,'�1"�92554$2!4.1#;�=1./�0:)>�O2!�./1"�1#1.14.1� �*+,'�1"�97!! #.5%�1#� ".1#;�4$27.�P�A !9 #.�2B�1."�068:�B7#?"�1#�2# �.2�./!  �Q&,MFI�<FI�?1;1.�/%?!252;1945�7#1.D�=4. !"/ ?"�A !�".4. >�*+,'�1"�45"2�"7AA2!.1#;�B1 5?M"945 �32#1.2!1#;-�4#?�".4. "�4! �32#1.2!1#;�" 5 9. ?�".! 43"�4#?�!1� !">�K4. !"/ ?�34#4; !"�1#. ! ". ?�1#�./1"�1#1.14.1� �"/275?�92#.49.�./ 1!�52945�2!�".4. �*+,'�2BB19 "�! ;4!?1#;�4AA5194.12#�! C71! 3 #."�B2!�./ " �B7#?">����R�����S�������T�����������R�����S�����,/4#; "�1#�27!�95134. �4! � EA 9. ?�.2�1#9! 4" �./ ��4!14$151.%�4#?�C74#.1.1 "�2B�=4. !�! "27!9 "-�4"�= 55�4"�.2�9! 4. �A/%"1945�13A49."�B!23�" 4M5 � 5�!1" �4#?�32! �1#. #" �".2!3">�8#�UVWXYZ[\[�]̂�_̀abXaX\]W�cbX\]W[�]̂d�e]a[Xaf�_dZa[�</..Ag@@===> A4>;2�@2AA 2  F@9! @?2=#524?"@�,+0h'%#./ "1"hF>Gi>A?BD�B!23�0:)j"�,5134. �+ 4?%�0".74!1 "�:!2;!43-�0:)�/4"�! 9233 #? ?�4#�1#. ;!4. ?�A54##1#;�B!43 =2!L�4"�4�3 9/4#1"3�.2�34#4; �34#%�2B�./ " �7#9 !.41#.1 "-�A4!.19754!5%�1#�924".45�4#?� ".74!1# � #�1!2#3 #.">�'27#?�924".45�k2# �34#4; 3 #.�4#?�= .54#?�A!49.19 "�94#�/ 5A�.2�! ?79 �./ �13A49.�2B�".2!3"-�341#.41#�=4. !�C7451.%-�4#?�A! " !� �/4$1.4.�B2!��75# !4$5 �"A 91 ">�l�mnopq�rnost�uv�wtxtyvzo{|�}~ut���ts��y~{��� ���



��������		�
������������������������������������������������� ��������� ����!�����"��������#$%�&'(�)*+*,-.*)�/&*�0123456�76821269:6�;<41=452>9�49?�@A4B69688�C>>1�DEF#%GH�IIIJ*.'JK-+L�M,NO'/*P*')QR/N,N/N*(SH�'�$ETU'(*)�/--,�/-�'((N(/�)PNVWNVK�I'/*P�'V)�I'(/*I'/*P�R/N,N/Q�-IV*P(�'V)�-.*P'/-P(�NV�RV)*P(/'V)NVK�.-/*V/N',�M,NO'/*�M&'VK*�/&P*'/(�'V)�NV�'((*((NVK�/&*�P*,'/*)�PN(W(�'/�/&*NP�NV)N+N)R',�R/N,N/N*(J�EF#%G�.P-+N)*(�R(*P(�IN/&�'MM*((�/-�/&*�O-(/�P*M*V/�V'/N-V',�'((*((O*V/�-X�M,NO'/*�M&'VK*�NO.'M/(H�'(�I*,,�'(�,-M',�&N(/-PNM',�M,NO'/*�)'/'�X-P�R(*�NV�M-V(N)*PNVK�&-I�/&-(*�M&'VK*(�IN,,�'XX*M/�R/N,N/Q�-.*P'/N-V(�'V)�ON((N-V(J�G&N(�/--,�IN,,�',(-�',,-I�R/N,N/N*(�/-�*+',R'/*�')'./'/N-V�-./N-V(�/-�'))P*((�/&*�NO.'M/(�R(NVK�U-/&�/P')N/N-V',�PN(W�'((*((O*V/�'V)�(M*V'PN-TU'(*)�)*MN(N-VTO'WNVKJ�EF#%G�.P-+N)*(�P*X*P*VM*(�-X�)PNVWNVK�I'/*P�'V)�I'(/*I'/*P�R/N,N/Q�'((*/(�D*JKJH�I'/*P�P*(-RPM*(H�/P*'/O*V/�.,'V/(H�.RO.�(/'/N-V(S�/&'/�M-R,)�U*�NO.'M/*)�UQ�M,NO'/*�M&'VK*Y�.-((NU,*�M,NO'/*�M&'VK*TP*,'/*)�/&P*'/(�D*JKJH�X,--)NVKH�)P-RK&/H�I'/*P�ZR',N/QSY�'V)�')'./N+*�O*'(RP*(�/&'/�M'V�U*�NO.,*O*V/*)�/-�P*)RM*�/&*�NO.'M/(�-X�M,NO'/*�M&'VK*J�G&*�/--,�KRN)*(�R(*P(�/&P-RK&�N)*V/NXQNVK�/&P*'/(�U'(*)�-V�P*KN-V',�)NXX*P*VM*(�NV�M,NO'/*�M&'VK*�.P-[*M/N-V(�'V)�)*(NKVNVK�')'./'/N-V�.,'V(�U'(*)�-V�/&*�/Q.*(�-X�/&P*'/(�U*NVK�M-V(N)*P*)J�\-,,-INVK�'((*((O*V/H�EF#%G�.P-+N)*(�'�(*PN*(�-X�PN(W�P*)RM/N-V�'V)�M-(/�P*.-P/(�/&'/�',,-I�/&*�R(*P�/-�*+',R'/*�+'PN-R(�')'./'/N-V�-./N-V(�'(�.'P/�-X�,-VKT/*PO�.,'VVNVKJ�
��������]������]�̂�����������_�̂���]���̂����������� �����̀���a����#$%�F*KN-V�bH�/&*�cP*'/�d'W*(�F*KN-V�-X�/&*�e'/N-V',�fV(/N/R/*�-X�\--)�'V)�%KPNMR,/RP*g(�Def\%S�e'/N-V',�h'/*P�iR',N/Q�$P-KP'OH�/&*�#$%�F*KN-V�b�(/'/*�V-V.-NV/�(-RPM*�.P-KP'O(H�'V)�,'V)�KP'V/�RVN+*P(N/N*(�P*,*'(*)�'V�R.)'/*)�+*P(N-V�-X�/&*�j-MN',�fV)NM'/-P�$,'VVNVK�'V)�#+',R'/N-V�jQ(/*O�X-P�e-V.-NV/�j-RPM*�$,'VVNVK�Djf$#jH�&//.kLLKP*'/,'W*(I'/*PJRI*lJ*)RL(N/*(L)*X'R,/LXN,*(L,NUP'PQL-R/P*'M&T'V)T*)RM'/N-VL(N.*(&'V)U--WTO*)NROTP*(J.)XS�NV�mnooJ�f/�.P-+N)*(�'�(/*.TUQT(/*.�'..P-'M&�X-P�R(NVK�(-MN',�NV)NM'/-P(�/-�&*,.�.,'VH�NO.,*O*V/H�'V)�*+',R'/*�V-V.-NV/�(-RPM*�O'V'K*O*V/�.P-[*M/(J�jf$#j�N(�NV/*V)*)�/-�U*�R(*)�UQ�P*(-RPM*�O'V'K*P(�I-PWNVK�NV�(/'/*�-P�P*KN-V',�V-V.-NV/�(-RPM*�O'V'K*O*V/�.P-KP'O(J�j-MN',�NV)NM'/-P(�.P-+N)*�M-V(N(/*V/�O*'(RP*(�-X�(-MN',�M&'VK*�IN/&NV�'�I'/*P(&*)H�'V)�O'V'K*P(�M'V�R(*�/&*O�/-�*(/NO'/*�/&*�NO.'M/(�-X�/&*NP�*XX-P/(�-V�')-./NVK�.P'M/NM*(�'V)�/-�.P-+N)*�'�,NVW�/-�/&*�*+*V/R',�NO.P-+*O*V/�-X�I'/*P�ZR',N/QJ�jf$#j�N(�)*(NKV*)�/-�M-O.,*O*V/�/&*�p'V)U--WH�'V)�N/�N(�(.*MNXNM',,Q�X-MR(*)�-V�*+',R'/NVK�I'/*P�ZR',N/Q�.P-[*M/(J�fV�'))N/N-VH�/&*�(-MN',�NVX-PO'/N-V�M-,,*M/*)�M'V�&*,.�'))P*((�(*+*P',�-X�/&*�VNV*�ONVNORO�*,*O*V/(J�
qrstuvwxyz�{r|uz�r}�~rt�yz��s|�tywr�~�ys|��ywu���xyz�w������ %�iRNMW�cRN)*�/-��*+*,-.NVK�h'/*P(&*)�$,'V(�



��������		� 
������������������������������������� �!"#��# $ %"&�' "%#(��� � )*#'#� +�# %$,) #�)*�) !���"#� + %- .�"#�"�/"'��*� $"&0"� ��� � )*�*+,)�"�.� �$,%*�+ ��"&�1 � 2,�#�*2� )*#'#� +#(�/�,)��#�*0&.�1 �2")�*% .�,��*�+"�"- + ���. ),#,*�#3�4� �)�"&& �- �,#��*/��*�50"��,2'��� � )*�*+,)�1 � 2,�#�*2�20�)�,*�,�-� )*#'#� +#(�)& "��/"� %(�"�.�)& "��",%(�"#�/ &&�"#�)*%% #!*�.,�-�+"%6 �#3�789:#�;22,) �*2�< # "%)��"�.�= $ &*!+ ���>;<=?�,#�)*�.0)�,�-�% # "%)���*�!%*$,. ��� �."�"(�+ ��*.#(�+*. &#(�"�.��**&#���"��#�"� #(�)*++0�,�, #(�"�.��%,1 #��  .��*�0�. %#�"�.��� �)*#��"�.�1 � 2,�#�*2�+",��",�,�-� )*#'#� +�# %$,) #3�;<=:#�7)*#'#� +�@ %$,) #�< # "%)��8%*-%"+�>,��!%*-% ##?�,#�0#,�-�"�/"� %#� .�"!!%*")��,���� �9&1 +"%& A8"+&,)*�B"� %#� .�@�0.'�>���!CDD)2!013 !"3-*$D#,D#,E!01&,)E2,& E.*/�&*".3)2+F!E�.*/�&*".E,.GHIIHJK?��*�!%*$,. ��� �,�2*%+"�,*��"�.��**&#��  . .��*�0�. %#�"�.��*/�/"� %#� .�% -0&"�,*��*2�% ")�,$ ��,�%*- ��0!#�% "+�>"�.��� �"##*),"� .�&"�.�0# �. ),#,*�#?�,�2&0 �) ��� ��"�0% �"�.�50"��,�'�*2� )*#'#� +�# %$,) #���"�� #�0"%, #�"�.�)*"#�"&�/ �&"�.#�!%*$,. 3�LMNOPQRMOSTQPMUVW�XQYORZ[O\�XUY[�]RUPQR̂�RU_OR�NQZÙZa�b����cd����e��d���d����d��fd����������
���g��h������i����4� �/"� %#� .�!&"��,�-�2%"+ /*%6�!%*$,. #�"�� j) && ���!&"�2*%+��*�. $ &*!�"�.�,+!& + ���,��*$"�,$ �!%")�,) #��*�")�, $ �+0&�,!& �-*"&#�/,��,��"�)*++0�,�'3�789�0# #��� �� %+�klmmn�onplqrsltustlm��*�. #)%,1 �$"%,*0#�!%")�,) #�0# .�"��"�/,. �%"�- �*2�&"�.#)"! �#)"& #�,��!&") �*2(�*%�,��"..,�,*���*(�+*% ��%".,�,*�"&�#�*%+/"� %�)*��%*&�!%")�,) #��*�#0!!*%���� �!%,�),!& #�*2�&*/A,+!")��. $ &*!+ ���>v�=?3�v�=�,#�"��"!!%*")���*�&"�.�. $ &*!+ �����"��/*%6#�/,����"�0% ��*�+"�"- �#�*%+/"� %�"#�)&*# ��*�,�#�#*0%) �"#�!*##,1& 3�w%  ��,�2%"#�%0)�0% �"!!%*")� #�"% �1 ,�-�0# .�,��0%1"��"�.�#010%1"��"% "#��*�!%*$,. � �$,%*�+ ��"&(� )*�*+,)(�"�.��0+"��� "&���1 � 2,�#3�����xlmmn�ynplqrsltustlm�on�zlo{�qn{�|m}o~zlo{���o}qsmr(�789�. +*�#�%"� #��*/�,�)% "#,�-��� �"+*0���*2�! %$,*0#�#0%2") �"% "�)&*# ��*��� �#*0%) �*2��� �%0�*22�% .0) #��� �*$ %"&&�$*&0+ �*2�#�*%+/"� %�"�.�% &"� .�!*&&0�"��#�>�@789��IJI"(�///3 !"3-*$D�!. #D!01#D"%,.E)&,+"� #E)"# #�0.'3!.2?3�4� �,�)% "# .�,�2,&�%"�,*��"&#*�% )�"%- #��� �-%*0�./"� %3����"..,�,*�(��%  A!&"��,�-�!%*-%"+#(�-%  ��%**2#(�"�.�*�� %�-%  ��,�2%"#�%0)�0% ��"$ �"��*$ %"&&�)**&,�-� 22 )����"��&*/ %#��� �. +"�.�2*%�",%A)*�.,�,*�,�-� � %-'�"�.��� % 1'�. )% "# #� +,##,*�#�2%*+�!*/ %�!&"��#�>�@789��IJI"?3��*%� j"+!& (���%*0-����,)"-*:#�-%  ��%**2�!%*-%"+(�"�-%  ��%**2�/"#�,�#�"&& .�"����,)"-*:#�),�'��"&&��,��% .0) #�#�*%+/"� %�%0�*22�1'�HI�! %) ���"�.�#"$ #��� �),�'�"!!%*j,+"� &'��H(HII�"��0"&&'�*��� "�,�-�"�.�)**&,�-� j! �# #�>�@789��IJI1?3�v�=�!%")�,) #�"&#*�!%*$,. � )*�*+,)�1 � 2,�#�#0)��"#�,�)% "# .�!%*! %�'�$"&0 #�/� % ��%  #��"$ �1  ��!&"�� .(�"#�#�*/��,���� �),�, #�*2�8�,&". &!�,"(�8 ��#'&$"�,"(�"�.��022"&*(�� /��*%6�>�@789��IJI1?3�9�"&'#,#��**&#�"�.�)"# �#�0., #�% &"� .��*�-%  ��,�2%"#�%0)�0% �!%*� )�#�"% �"$",&"1& �*��789:#�w%  ����2%"#�%0)�0% �/ 1#,� �>���!CDD/"� %3 !"3-*$D,�2%"#�%0)�0% D-%  �,�2%"#�%0)�0% D,�. j3)2+?3�L���UV����U\O�YW��O_OMW]Ù���QYORZ[O\�TMQ̀Z�� ���



��������		�
���������������������
������������������������������������������
��������� ����!"#�$%&#'("#)�*+%)#,-�.(�%�/0+%1�20.3&�.3�45*6(�7//.+#�0/�$%&#'�/0'�2'08.).39�&'%.3.39�%3)�.3/0',%&.03�03�.,21#,#3&.39�:%&#'("#)�%22'0%+"#(;�45*�0//#'(�$%&#'("#)�*+%)#,-�$#<+%(&(�=(##�:::;#2%;908>:%&#'("#):#<+%(&(?�&"'0@9"0@&�&"#�-#%'�/#%&@'.39�3%&.03%1�#A2#'&(�%+'0((�%�<'0%)�'%39#�0/�:%&#'("#)�&02.+(;�*11�:#<+%(&(�%'#�%'+".8#)�%3)�%8%.1%<1#�031.3#�%&�&"#�%<08#�:#<(.&#�%/&#'�#%+"�:#<+%(&;�45*B(�$%&#'("#)�*+%)#,-�$#<�=:::;#2%;908>:%&#'&'%.3?�0//#'(�,0'#�&"%3�CD�(#1/E2%+#)�&'%.3.39�,0)@1#(�&"%&�2'08.)#�%�<'0%)�.3&'0)@+&.03�&0�&"#�:%&#'("#)�,%3%9#,#3&�/.#1);�!"#�,0)@1#(�.3+1@)#�FG3&'0)@+&.03�&0�$%&#'("#)�51%33.39H�=:::;#2%;908>:%&#'&'%.3?I�:".+"�(#'8#(�%(�%�+0,2%3.03�&0�&"#�J%3)<00K�%3)�&".(�9@.)#;�!".(�'#(0@'+#�%1(0�0//#'(�%�$%&#'("#)�L%3%9#,#3&�!'%.3.39�M#'&./.+%&#�/0'�&'%.3##(�:"0�+0,21#&#�NC�,0)@1#(�%3)�2%((�&"#�,0)@1#�(#1/E&#(&(;�L0'#�&"%3�OIDDD�&'%.3##(�"%8#�'#+#.8#)�+#'&./.+%&#(�&0�)%&#;�����������P�������$%&#'("#)�M#3&'%1�=:::;#2%;908>:%&#'("#)+#3&'%1>?�.(�%�:#<E<%(#)�21%&/0',�)#(.93#)�&0�%((.(&�@(#'(�.3�)#8#102.39�%3)�.,21#,#3&.39�#//#+&.8#�:%&#'("#)�,%3%9#,#3&�2'09'%,(;�!"#�(.&#�.3+1@)#(�9@.)%3+#I�&001(I�+%(#�(&@).#(I�%3)�)%&%�(#&(�&0�"#12�@(#'(�("%'#�.3/0',%&.03I�%3%1-Q#�)%&%I�%3)�.)#3&./-�0220'&@3.&.#(�&0�.3.&.%&#�0'�(&'#39&"#3�&"#.'�:%&#'("#)�#//0'&(;�*�K#-�/#%&@'#�0/�$%&#'("#)�M#3&'%1�.(�.&(�:.K.;�*3-03#�+%3�%++#((�&"#�$%&#'("#)�M#3&'%1�$.K.�="&&2(R>>:.K.;#2%;908>:%&#'("#)S>?�03�&"#�G3&#'3#&I�%3)�%3-03#�+%3�8.#:�@(#'E(@221.#)�.3/0',%&.03�:.&"0@&�'#9.(&#'.39�0'�1099.39�.3;�T(#'(�%'#�2'0,2&#)�&0�109�.3�031-�./�&"#-�:%3&�&0�%))�0'�,0)./-�:.K.�+03&#3&�=(.,.1%'�&0�$.K.2#).%?;�*30&"#'�+".#/�<#3#/.&�0/�&".(�02#3E%++#((�&001�.(�&"%&�&"#�.3/0',%&.03�.(�%++#((.<1#�&0�(#%'+"�#39.3#(�1.K#�U0091#;�45*�)#8#102#)�&"#�$%&#'("#)�M#3&'%1�$.K.�.3�'#(203(#�&0�+0,,#3&(�/'0,�:%&#'("#)�2'%+&.&.03#'(�:"0�"%)�#A2'#((#)�%�3##)�/0'�2##'E&0E2##'�#A+"%39#�03�:%&#'("#)�,%3%9#,#3&�.((@#(;�!"#�$%&#'("#)�M#3&'%1�$.K.�.(�%�20:#'/@1�&001�&"%&�%110:(�@(#'(�&0�)0�&"#�/0110:.39R�V W"%'#�<#(&�2'%+&.+#(I�+%(#�(&@).#(I�%3)�1#((03(�1#%'3#)V W##�:"%&�0&"#'�:%&#'("#)�0'9%3.Q%&.03(�%'#�@2�&0�%3)�1#%'3/'0,�&"#,V G)#3&./-�20&#3&.%1�2%'&3#'(�.3�%�2%'&.+@1%'�:%&#'("#)�%'#%V 48%1@%&#�%3)�+0,,#3&�03�:%&#'("#)�,%3%9#,#3&�&001(�0''#20'&�03�3#:�&001(V X.#:�%�,%2�:.&"�:%&#'�,03.&0'.39�(&%&.03(I�".9"E'#(01@&.03�%#'.%1�2"0&09'%2"-I�%3)�,0'#�/0'�%:%&#'("#)V 5'08.)#�%�1.3K�&0�%�:%&#'("#)�,%3%9#,#3&�21%3�/0'�0&"#'(�&0�1#%'3�/'0,V M'#%&#�%�2%9#�%<0@&�%3�0'9%3.Q%&.03I�%))�%�,%2I�%3)�("%'#�.&�%,039�0&"#'�9'0@2�,#,<#'(;YZ[\Z�]̂_�\[̀a[b�̂_c�Zd̂\[�a_ef\ĝ haf_�e\fg�di_c\[cZ�fe�b̂h[\Zd[cZ�̂]\fZZ�hd[�]fi_h\jk�!"%3K�-0@�/0'�'#%).39�&".(�9@.)#�%3)�&%K.39�&"#�&.,#�&0�1#%'3�,0'#�%<0@&�:%&#'("#)�21%33.39;�l0'�,0'#�)#&%.1#)�.3/0',%&.03I�21#%(#�'#/#'�&0�&"#�J%3)<00K�="&&2R>>:%&#';#2%;908>201:%(&#>32(>"%3)<00K?�%3)�&"#�FG3&'0)@+&.03�&0�$%&#'("#)�51%33.39m�031.3#�,0)@1#�=:::;#2%;908>:%&#'&'%.3?;�$#�:.("�-0@�&"#�<#(&�0/�1@+K�%(�-0@�,08#�/0':%')�:.&"�-0@'�:%&#'("#)�21%33.39�#//0'&n�op� *�q@.+K�U@.)#�&0�r#8#102.39�$%&#'("#)�51%3(�



���������	
�����������������������
������������
���������������� !"�#�$%&'�!(�)*+�",-%!.#$�#./�'"%0#$�1*2�3!!"/%.#'!"&4�#&�5,$$�#&�#�$%&'�!(�&'#',�1*2�3!!"/%.#'!"&4�6%&%'�7''89::5#',";,8#;-!6:8!$5#&',:.8&:57,",;3(<;�	
=
�
��
��>,.,/%3'4�?#"@4�#./�)/5#"/�?3?#7!.;�ABBC;�DEFFG�HGIEJKLEMNLMEFO�PQJEL�RSGKFETJLUSG�ISE�LVF�WXKL�RFGLMEY;�28"#5$�Z#'37�[$,#"%.-7!\&,�?!.!-"#87�2,"%,&;�],.&@!54�̂,.4�#./�_%./#�*"!@!8̀�a,/&;b;�ABCB;�cVF�PSNUJd�HGeUNJLSE�fdJGGUGg�JGe�hTJdMJLUSG�PYKLFQ�iPHfhPj�ISE�kSGlSUGL�PSMENF�mJGJgFQFGLO�n�oJGepSSq�ISE�fESrFNLK�UG�sPhfn�tFgUSG�u;�v,"&%!.�A;C;�]",#'�_#@,&�w,-%!.#$�Z#',"�*"!-"#<;�*\0$%3#'%!.�.!;�]_wZ*xCBx2yBA�az{�8#-,&b;�|&<!./4�};_;4�};Z;�?,#$&4�};�_̂;�~!#-4�#./�?;�+"#0%4�,/&;�ABCA;�oS��LS��MUde��FLLFE�ngEUNMdLMEJd�RSGKFETJLUSG�fESgEJQK�LS�fESLFNL��JLFE��MJdULYO�cVF�kJLUSGJd�HGKLULMLF�SI��SSe�JGe�ngEUNMdLMEF�RSGKFETJLUSG�hIIFNLK�nKKFKKQFGL�fESrFNL�h�lFEUFGNF;�+.@,.̀4�y+9�2!%$�#./�Z#',"�[!.&,"6#'%!.�2!3%,'̀;��2)*+�a�;2;�).6%"!.<,.'#$�*"!',3'%!.�+-,.3̀b;�ABC�;�DFLLUGg�UG�PLFlO�hGgJgUGg�PLJqFVSdeFEK�UG��SME��JLFEKVFe��Z#&7%.-'!.4�}[9��;2;�).6%"!.<,.'#$�*"!',3'%!.�+-,.3̀4�|((%3,�!(�Z#',";��2)*+�a�;2;�).6%"!.<,.'#$�*"!',3'%!.�+-,.3̀b;�ABB�;�DFLLUGg�HG�PLFlO�n�DMUeF�ISE�RSGeMNLUGg��JLFEKVFe��MLEFJNV�RJQlJUgGK;�Z#&7%.-'!.4�}[9��;2;�).6%"!.<,.'#$�*"!',3'%!.�+-,.3̀;�)*+x�>xB�xBBA;��2)*+�a�;2;�).6%"!.<,.'#$�*"!',3'%!.�+-,.3̀b;�ABB�;�oJGepSSq�ISE��FTFdSlUGg��JLFEKVFe�fdJGK�LS�tFKLSEF�JGe�fESLFNL��ME��JLFEK;�Z#&7%.-'!.4�}[9��;2;�).6%"!.<,.'#$�*"!',3'%!.�+-,.3̀;�)*+x��Cx>xB�xBBA;��2)*+�a�;2;�).6%"!.<,.'#$�*"!',3'%!.�+-,.3̀b;�ABB�;�PYGLVFKUK�SI�neJlLJLUSG��lLUSGK�ISE�RSJKLJd�nEFJK;�Z#&7%.-'!.4�}[9��;2;�).6%"!.<,.'#$�*"!',3'%!.�+-,.3̀4�[$%<#',�w,#/̀�)&'\#"%,&�*"!-"#<;�)*+���Bx xB�xBA�;��2)*+�a�;2;�).6%"!.<,.'#$�*"!',3'%!.�+-,.3̀b;�ABCB#;�DEFFG�HGIEJKLEMNLMEF�UG�nEUe�JGe�PFQU�nEUe�RdUQJLFK;�Z#&7%.-'!.4�}[9��;2;�).6%"!.<,.'#$�*"!',3'%!.�+-,.3̀;�)*+x���x>xCBxBBA;��2)*+�a�;2;�).6%"!.<,.'#$�*"!',3'%!.�+-,.3̀b;�ABCB0;�DEFFG�HGIEJKLEMNLMEF�RJKF�PLMeUFK;�Z#&7%.-'!.4�}[9��;2;�).6%"!.<,.'#$�*"!',3'%!.�+-,.3̀;�)*+x��Cx xCBxBB�;��2)*+�a�;2;�).6%"!.<,.'#$�*"!',3'%!.�+-,.3̀b;�ABC�;��y.'"!/\3'%!.�'!�Z#',"&7,/�*$#..%.-;��Z#',"&7,/�+3#/,<̀�!.$%.,�<!/\$,;�+6#%$#0$,�#'9�555;,8#;-!6:5#',"'"#%.;�
����������������������� �¡¢�£¤��¥¦§���̈�¤¡¦�� ©ª�



COUNTY

A  vision  without  a  plan  is  just  a  dream.  A  plan  
without  a  vision  is  just  drudgery.  But  a  vision  

with  a  plan  can  change  the  world.
--  Proverb  

MMAARRCCHH  22000077

PEOPLE,  WATER,  LAND  AND  SPECIAL  PLACES  --  A  VISION  FOR  THE  FUTURE

Click Here to Read the Full Report

https://www.miamidade.gov/mayor/library/memos-and-reports/2012/03/03.30.12-Watershed-Study.pdf
E327044
Highlight



Status update 

Re-initiation of the MIAMI-DADE BACK BAY 
COASTAL STORM RISK MANAGEMENT 

Feasibility Study

Public Webinar
June 26, 2023
5:30 PM EDT

https://www.saj.usace.army.mil/MiamiDadeBackBayCSRMFeasibilityStudy/

Jim Murley, Chief Resilience Officer

Miami-Dade County

Michelle Hamor, Chief , Planning and Policy Branch

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Norfolk District



2

INTERPRETATION AND 
LANGUAGE TRANSLATION OPTIONS

*This Zoom Meeting is being recorded and will be posted and shared in the coming weeks

Translation is available in Spanish and in Haitain Creole. In order to hear live translation of this meeting in 
Spanish or in Creole, please select the translation icon at the bottom of the screen and select your language 
of choice.

Instructions in Spanish.

Instructions in Haitian Creole.



3

1. Welcome

2. Flood Resilience 
Initiatives in Context

3. Study Process to Date

4. A Renewed Vision

5. Next Steps & 
Engagement

6. Open Discussion / 
Questions & Answers

Agenda



4

ZOOM RULES

WE WANT TO GET TO ALL YOUR 
QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS!

A few ground rules to help us get to everyone:
• Please remain muted throughout the presentation and the Q+A unless you are 

called on.
• Please enter all questions and comments into the chat box. The moderators will 

be monitoring the chat and reading the questions out loud. 
• If we don’t get to your question during this meeting, we will answer it in the Q+A 

document that will be mailed out to all participants and will be posted on the 
project web page. 



5

Welcome!

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
Commander, Norfolk District
Colonel Brian P. Hallberg

Miami-Dade County Mayor
Daniella Levine Cava



*Change background pictures to 
focus on MDC mainland/bay

6

Flood Resilience 
Initiatives in Context
Jim Murley, Chief Resilience Officer



Adaptation 
approaches
to sea level rise and flooding

Source: Miami-Dade County 

Sea Level Rise Strategy

https://miami-dade-county-sea-level-rise-strategy-draft-mdc.hub.arcgis.com/

Year 2 Progress Update 
Coming Soon

7



Other Efforts:

PARKS & 

CONSERVATION  

LANDS

SLOUGHS THE RIDGEWESTERN & 

SOUTHERN SUBURBS

MAINLAND  

BAYFRONT

ISLAND 

BAYFRONT

ISLAND 

OCEANFRONT

WATER

AGRICULTURE

Mainland Islands

‘Beach’ CSRM Reauthorized 
in 2022

renourishment & dune 
enhancement

Everglades 
(CERP & BBSEER)

Biscayne Bay 
Reasonable Assurance Plan

County & Municipal Resilience, 
Stormwater Master Plans, etc.

Central and Southern Florida (C&SF) ‘216’ Resiliency Study
emphasis on canal system

‘Back Bay’ CSRM Study

Strengthening Systems Through Partners & Studies

SFWMD Flood Plain 
Level of Service (LOS)

Key Biscayne 
CSRM

Combined ocean front 
& back bay study

PortMiami CSRM

)

South Florida Military Installation 
Resilience Review (MIRR)

8



This study is primarily aiming to address storm surge

Any proposed measures in this study cannot exacerbate or 
make worse other types of flooding such as interior drainage

9



Type of coastal flood risk

10



3 ways to manage 
coastal flood risk

Storm surge barriers
limit storm surge with a structural 

reinforced line of defense
(may involve temporary closures)

Lower water levels by absorbing 
and reducing energy

use or restore natural, nature-based, and 
green or hybrid infrastructure 

Elevate and adapt assets
reduce damage from incoming 

flood at smaller scale

A B C

Surge Barrier 
Gates 

Raised Roads, 
Levees, Beachwalks

Mangrove 
Restoration

Wetland 
Restoration

Living Shorelines

Enhanced Dune 
System

Hybrid Reef

Elevate 
Residential 

Homes

Floodproof 
commercial 

buildings

‘Nonstructural’ 
measures

‘Structural’ 
measures

11



Study Process to Date
Michelle Hamor, Chief, Planning and Policy Branch, Norfolk District

12



Miami-Dade Back Bay Coastal Storm Risk Management Feasibility Study

Project Milestones

October 2018
BCC Reso R-1011-18
Authorized start for 
100% federal funded 
3-year $3 million 
study; supported by 
MDC in-kind staff time  

February 2018
Congress enacts 
Bipartisan Budget Act 
of 2018 authorizing 
$17.4 billion in USACE 
disaster relief activities

Original 3-year Study
2018-2021

Nov. 2018 - 2020
Community engagement, 
charrettes & public meetings 
& comments

June 2020
Draft Integrated 
Feasibility Report and 
Programmatic EIS 
a.k.a. the Tentatively 
Selected Plan (TSP) 
Published for Public 
Comment

Stakeholders express 
significant concerns

13

https://www.miamidade.gov/govaction/matter.asp?matter=182283&file=true&fileAnalysis=false&yearFolder=Y2018


While some measures were not supported, 
the plan did include widely supported 
measures including:
• protecting critical facilities county-wide,
• expanding natural & nature-based 

features, and
• exploring home-elevation and business 

floodproofing (a.k.a. ‘Nonstructural’)

*These supported measures will be included 
and refined as part of any future plan.

Included ~5 gated storm 
surge barriers on the canals
with floodwalls tying into 
high ground (or along 
bayfront) and dozens of 
manually operated road 
intersection closures



October 2018
BCC Reso R-1011-18
Authorized start for 
100% federal funded 
3-year $3 million 
study; supported by 
MDC in-kind staff time  

February 2018
Congress enacts 
Bipartisan Budget Act 
of 2018 authorizing 
$17.4 billion in USACE 
disaster relief activities

Original 3-year Study
2018-2021

Nov. 2018 - 2020
Community engagement, 
charrettes & public meetings 
& comments

August 2022
ASA(CW) approves 2-
part restudy with $8.2 
million over 5 years:
• Part 1 (Aug ‘22 – ’23)
• Part 2 (Aug ‘23 – '27)

December 2021
Mayor sends letter to 
USACE requesting 
waiver & ability to 
explore alternatives

August 2023
‘Go/No Go’ Meeting 
w/ Mayor 
and Assistant 
Secretary of the 
Army for Civil 
Works 
(ASA(CW)) to 
restart study to 
further evaluate 
new alternatives 
during 2023-2027

June 2020
Draft Integrated 
Feasibility Report and 
Programmatic EIS 
a.k.a. the Tentatively 
Selected Plan (TSP) 
Published for Public 
Comment

Stakeholders express 
significant concerns

Part 1
Aug 2022- Aug 2023

Part 2
2023-2027+

Nov. – June ‘23 
Community 
engagement, 
charrettes & public 
meetings

Miami-Dade Back Bay Coastal Storm Risk Management Feasibility Study

Project Milestones

15

https://www.miamidade.gov/govaction/matter.asp?matter=182283&file=true&fileAnalysis=false&yearFolder=Y2018


Original 3-year, $3 million (3x3) Feasibility Study
2018-2021

Part 1: New Alternatives Formulation
August 2022 – August 2023

• Public engagement: Nov ‘22 and Mar ‘23 design charrettes
• Development of 2 new concepts
• Briefings with municipalities, state & federal agencies, etc.
• June 26th Public Virtual Meeting

“GO/NO GO” Meeting
Mayor & Assistant Secretary of Army

August 2023

Part 2: Restart ‘Back Bay’ 
Feasibility Study

*Includes public & agency review of draft* 
August 2023 – 2027+

Seek Congressional Authorization in WRDA and 
appropriation through the budget process (timing TBD)

*Plan not accepted
Process paused

Army Corps Letter granted 
$8.2 million and 5 years for 

two-part study 

Results in final recommended plan 
and signed chief’s report

(may recommend phased projects)

Pre-construction, Engineering, and Design (PED) Phase
Possible phased implementation (likely 2 to 6+ years)

Sign design agreement

Begin construction on priority projects (timing TBD)

Process
Timeline

We are here

Sign project partnership agreement (PPA)16



Summary of Stakeholder Engagement
Part 1 : November 2022 – November 2023

Design Charrette 
& Public Meetings

November 2023

Design Charrette 
& Public Meetings

March 2023

Ongoing briefings for municipalities, committees, state and federal resource and environmental agencies

Scan  for 
YouTube 

Video

Public 
Webinar

June 2023

17



Recent & Ongoing Coordination

Local Stakeholders

Resource Agencies

• (4/5) National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS)
• (4/18) U.S. Coast Guard
• (5/3) U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS)
• (5/22) Florida Department of Environmental Protection

• (4/3) City of Coral Gables
• (4/3) Fisher Island
• (4/6) PortMiami – Hurricane response operations
• (Weekly) Miami-Dade RER-Division of Environmental Resources Management
• (5/31) City of Miami Beach Environment and Sustainability Department
• (6/1) City of Miami Office of Resilience and Sustainability

*Not exhaustive list of engagement



March 2023 Design Charrette
YouTube Videos & Takeaways

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=J_b3vTizzYUhttps://www.youtube.com/watch?v=WFevVcID5P0

Scan to watch 
YouTube Video

Scan to watch YouTube Video

• hybrid reefs offshore, 
• reinforced and elevated dune & beachwalk
• surge gates at inlets, line or protection for Fisher 

Island, Virginia Key, to Rickenbacker Cswy
• living shorelines and restored mangrove islands, 

• elevation of homes & 
floodproofing of businesses, 

• expanded restoration near Cutler 
Bay, 

• protection of critical facilities

Explored range of storm surge risk management strategies by creating ‘Lines of Defense”:

19



Comprehensive Benefits Evaluation

• USACE Policy Directive (January 2021)
• Requires a comprehensive consideration of total

project benefits including economics, environmental,

and social categories

• Benefit Categories
• Regional economics

• Other social effects

• Environment

• Opportunity in the beginning of Part 2 (after August 
2023) to develop with community specific metrics or 
criteria for each category

Source: https://planning.erdc.dren.mil/toolbox/library/MemosandLetters/ComprehensiveDocumentationofBenefitsinDecisionDocument_5January2021.pdf

Community 
Well-being, 
Social Equity, 
and Resilience

Economic Health

Natural 
Environment, 
Ecosystems, 
and Recreation

MDC's draft 
objectives / criteria

Study Purpose: To manage coastal storm risk through the 
implementation of measures designed to reduce potential 
damage caused by coastal storms, including preventing loss of 
human life. This study is a response to the study authority 
(Public Law 84-71, June 15, 1955) and will develop and 
evaluate coastal storm risk measures for Miami-Dade County.

20

https://planning.erdc.dren.mil/toolbox/library/MemosandLetters/ComprehensiveDocumentationofBenefitsinDecisionDocument_5January2021.pdf


Miami-Dade Back Bay Coastal Storm Risk Management Study Review
June 26, 2023

1. Past 10 months: We were given 1-year 
from August 2022 to develop new 
alternatives to manage coastal storm risk 
with SLR that aligns with local values

2. Currently: We are on track and in a 
better position than before to move 
forward because of general support from 
stakeholders and new circumstances

3. In August 2023: MDC and Army Corps 
want to give the “GO” to restart a new ~ 
4-year feasibility study (Part 2) to explore 
new alternatives through deeper 
engagement and analyses

21



For Part 2 of the Feasibility Study, MDC needs:

• Evaluate alternatives to ensure due diligence 
given value of MDC economy and 
environment

• Further integrate studies across USACE 
(Norfolk & Jacksonville) that maximize 
complementary and comprehensive benefits

• Create multiple lines of defense or 
adaptations from off-shore to inland 
neighborhoods; process may involve 
prioritizing measures and implementing in a 
phased approach as feasible

• Commitment to more robust community 
engagement and advancing Justice40 goals

Multiple Lines of Defense
Source: USACE

22



A Renewed Vision for Managing Coastal Storm Risk
Lynette Cardoch, Director of Resilience and Adaptation, 
Moffatt & Nichol (supporting Miami-Dade County)

23



3 ways to manage
coastal flood risk

Storm surge barriers
Limit storm surge with a structural 

reinforced line of defense
(may involve temporary closures)

Lower water levels by absorbing 
and reducing energy

use or restore natural, nature-based, and 
green or hybrid infrastructure 

Elevate and adapt assets
reduce damage from incoming 

flood at smaller scale

A B C

Surge Barrier 
Gates 

Raised Roads, 
Levees, Beachwalks

Mangrove 
Restoration

Wetland 
Restoration

Living Shorelines

Enhanced Dune 
System

Hybrid Reef

Elevate 
Residential 

Homes

Floodproof 
commercial 

buildings

‘Nonstructural’ 
measures

‘Structural’ 
measures

24



The precise mix, scale and locations of measures are to be determined

Use Multiple Lines of Defense with Mix of 
Green and Grey Measures

Elevated

Beachwalk

Hybrid Reef

Wetland restoration

1

2a

2b

3

4

5



Reinforcing Critical Facilities 
Exploring County-wide, including municipal assets

For Part 2

Key Considerations:

• Identify all critical facilities 
and infrastructure to be 
included

Comprehensive Benefits:

• May improve recovery 
time of businesses

Example

• DEP Resilient 
Florida Grant 
Projects

How it helps manage risk:

• Improves emergency response 

and recovery following a storm 

event

• Reduces vulnerability of critical 

assets

https://mdc.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapSeries/index.ht
ml?appid=8987efa644d24f54a2f6ee5d3cb937d8

26



Offshore (1)
Hybrid Reefs

For Part 2

Key Considerations:

• Location/size/depth of
potential hybrid reefs

Comprehensive Benefits:

• Habitat creation

• Recreation/tourism 
benefits

• Educational/research
opportunities

Examples

• University of Miami

• MDC Artificial Reefs
How it helps manage risk:

• Dissipate wave energy

• Break up waves/reduce

wave strength

• Reduce coastal erosion

• May help improve 

effectiveness of beach 

renourishment

27



Oceanfront Shoreline (2a)
Reinforced Dune and Elevated Paths

For Part 2

Key Considerations:

• Existing Miami Beach 
boardwalk

• Planned beach nourishment 
and dune restoration efforts

Comprehensive Benefits:

• Enhances recreational 
benefits

Example

• South Pointe Park – City 
of Miami Beach

How it helps reduce risk:

• Provides a buffer 

against storm surge 

and wave energy

28



DRAFT

Coastal Barrier Island Defense System - Alternative
Conceptual Sketches

29



Oceanfront Shoreline (2b)
System of gated storm surge barriers & wall tie-ins

For Part 2

Key Considerations:

• Port Miami impacts

• Water quality and habitat 
impacts

Comprehensive Benefits:

• Manages risk to urban and 
community socioeconomic 
conditions and emergency 
preparedness

Examples:
• Netherlands Sector Gate

• New Orleans Storm Surge Barrier

How it helps manage risk:

• Provides a barrier between the

hazard and the exposure

• Reduces inundation and wave 

attack

30



Bayfront Shoreline (3)
Living Shorelines, Restored Coastal Wetlands & Mangroves

For Part 2

Key Considerations:

• Working with the Biscayne Bay 
Aquatic Preserve rules

• Coordination with resource 
agencies

Comprehensive Benefits:

• Improves water quality and 
provides habitat

• Reduces erosion

• Increase aesthetic value

• Reinforce evacuation routes

Example

• City of Miami Beach –
Brittany Bay Park

How it helps reduce risk:

• Absorbs wave energy

• Reduce total water levels

31



South Dade Coastal Areas (4)
Living Shorelines, Restored Coastal Wetlands & Mangroves

For Part 2

Key Considerations:

• Integration with other 
environmental restoration 
programs

Comprehensive Benefits:

• Enhanced coastal habitat and 
water quality

• Reduced risk for low-lying and 
disadvantaged communities

Examples

• BBSEER

• MDC Environmental 
Endangered Lands 
(EEL) Program

How it helps reduce risk:

• absorbs wave energy

• reduce total water levels

32



*Preliminary* measures 

for South Dade

Hybrid & Nature-based features

• Plug & restore mosquito ditches to mitigate storm surge

• Plug & restore old canals to mitigate storm surge

• Rehydrate & restore coastal wetlands (pumps & spreader 

canals)

Road & Levee Elevation

Only in segments where needed to for consistent level of 

protection

• Old Cutler Road / 87th Ave elevation

• Levee around South District Wastewater Treatment Plant

• Turnpike and 231 road elevation

Proposal aims to complement measures of 

the Biscayne Bay and Southeastern 

Everglades Ecosystem Restoration (BBSEER) 

Project

The precise mix, scale and locations 
of measures are to be determined 
and subject to further changes and 

consultations.

DRAFT Proposed Measures for USACE ‘Back Bay’ CSRM Study

A separate and complimentary South 
Florida Military Installation Resilience 
Review (MIRR) is ongoing and includes 

Homestead Air Reserve Base (HARB)
33



Low-lying areas (5)
Home elevation & commercial floodproofing

For Part 2

Key Considerations:

• Maintaining neighborhood and 
community cohesion

• Inclusion of old or low-value 
structures

Comprehensive Benefits:

• Allows for more natural 
floodplain functioning

• Economic opportunity with local 
jobs to retrofit buildings

• May create opportunities for 
future local infrastructure 
improvements such as septic to 
sewer conversion, road 
elevation, etc.

Example

• Florida Keys Coastal Storm 
Risk Management 
Feasibility Study (Monroe 
County), Sept. 2021

How it helps manage risk:

• Reduces vulnerability of assets

• Reduces damages to 

structures

“Nonstructural” measures include residential elevation and commercial floodproofing 34



Range of Possible Coastal Flood Risk Management Measures
under the Miami-Dade Back Bay Coastal Storm Risk Management Feasibility Study

‘Book-ends’ Concepts

Measure A) Elevate & Adapt w/ Nature B) Barrier Island Defense System

Reinforce Critical Facilities 

(county-wide)
X X

Nature-Based Features

(e.g., hybrid reefs, living shorelines, mangrove 

and wetland restoration)
X X

Limited Residential Elevation +

Commercial Floodproofing

(in high risk & EJ communities)
X X

Expanded Residential Elevation +

Commercial Floodproofing X

Gated Storm Surge Barriers X

Reinforced Dune + Elevated 

Beachwalk
X



Proposed Draft Concepts
A) Elevate & Adapt with Nature
Elevating residential and floodproofing commercial buildings
*Also referred to as ‘Non-structural’ measures

B) Barrier Island Defense System
Leverage and reinforce barrier islands by constructing system of storm 
surge gates that would close ahead of major storm to keep surge out

Included in any plan:
• Multiple lines of defense
• Reinforce critical facilities 

(county-wide)
• Expanded nature-based 

features
• Elevate homes and 

floodproof commercial 
buildings in highest-risk 
areas & environmental 
justice communities

*Not shown: proposed 
hybrid green/grey 
measures in South Dade / 
Cutler Wetlands



A) Elevate + Adapt with Nature Examples 
(‘Nonstructural measures’)

Floodproofing commercial 

buildingsElevating residential structures

In-progress 
examples

Complete 
examples

*Individual projects subject to surveys, feasibility assessment, etc. 
Elevating homes on stilts may also be considered 

Example measure: Deployable flood barriers 

Precise type and design of flood-proofing for 
each building to be determined



DRAFT

B) Barrier Island Defense System (Aerial View)
Diagram of storm surge protection for Back Bay, Miami Beach, Fisher Island and Virginia Key

38



Next Steps & Engagement
Jim Murley, Chief Resilience Officer

39



Miami-Dade Back Bay Coastal Storm Risk Management Study Review
June 26, 2023

1. Past 10 months: We were given 1-year 
from August 2022 to develop new 
concepts to manage coastal storm risk 
with SLR that aligns with local values

2. Currently: We are on track and in a 
better position than before to move 
forward

3. In August 2023: MDC and Army Corps 
want to give the “GO” to restart a new ~ 
4-year feasibility study (Part 2) to explore 
new concepts through deeper 
engagement and analyses

40

Stay tuned for another update 
following August 



For Part 2 of the Feasibility Study, MDC needs:
• Evaluate alternatives to ensure due diligence 

given value of MDC economy and 
environment

• Further integrate studies across USACE 
(Norfolk & Jacksonville) that maximize 
complementary and comprehensive benefits

• Create multiple lines of defense or 
adaptations from off-shore to inland 
neighborhoods; process may involve 
prioritizing measures and implementing in a 
phased approach as feasible

• Commitment and initial planning for more 
robust community engagement and 
advancing Justice40 goalsMultiple Lines of Defense

Source: USACE

41Your continued support is critical



Question and Answer 
Discussion

To ask a question or provide a comment, please:
• Enter in the Chat
• 'Raise your hand' to be called on to unmute and 

speak

For additional questions or comments after the meeting:

Please e-mail: MDBB-CSRMStudy@usace.army.mil or resilience@miamidade.gov

42

mailto:MDBB-CSRMStudy@usace.army.mil
mailto:resilience@miamidade.gov


Thank you for your participation!

For additional inquiries/questions:

Email: MDBB-CSRMStudy@usace.army.mil
or

resilience@miamidade.gov

Project website: https://www.saj.usace.army.mil/MiamiDadeBackBayCSRMFeasibilityStudy/

mailto:MDBB-CSRMStudy@usace.army.mil
mailto:resilience@miamidade.gov
https://www.saj.usace.army.mil/MiamiDadeBackBayCSRMFeasibilityStudy/


The following is a listing of legislative actions taken by the Miami-Dade County Board of County 
Commissioners and Florida Legislature related to Biscayne Bay since the last BBWMAB meeting.  

Miami-Dade County Policy 

File Number:  230964    
Agenda Item Number: 2B1 
File Name: TRANSMITTAL OF BISCAYNE BAY WATERSHED MANAGEMENT ADVISORY BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 
ORDINANCE 21-72, SEC. 2-2426  
Sponsor: Danielle Cohen Higgins, Prime Sponsor 
Legislative Matter (miamidade.gov) 
Status: Report Accepted 5/16/23 

File Number: 230557 
Agenda Item Number: 4F 
File Name: PROHIBITING SMOKING IN PARKS AND BEACHES 
Sponsors: Kionne L. McGhee, Prime Sponsor 

   Roberto J. Gonzalez, Co-Sponsor 
Legislative Matter (miamidade.gov) 
Status: Ordinance Adopted 6/21/23 

File Number: 230700 
Agenda Item Number: 8L3 
File Name: RESOLUTION APPROVING A STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT FUNDED AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY AND FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 6, CO-PERMITTEES NAMED 
IN THE NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM PERMIT NO. FLS000003, BY WHICH THE 
FDOT 6 WOULD REIMBURSE THE COUNTY UP TO $2,515,000.00 
Sponsors:  None 
Legislative Matter (miamidade.gov) 
Status: Adopted 6/21/23 

File Number: 230865    
Agenda Item Number: 11A11 
File Name: PROVIDE A REPORT REGARDING THE PROGRESS THE COUNTY HAS MADE ON STORMWATER AND 
SEA LEVEL RISE PROJECTS THE COUNTY HAS BEEN UNDERTAKING 
Sponsors: Micky Steinberg, Prime Sponsor 

   Rene Garcia, Co-Sponsor 
         Raquel Regalado, Co-Sponsor 

Legislative Matter (miamidade.gov) 
Status: Resolution Adopted 6/21/23 

Florida State Legislation 

HB 1379  
Wastewater Grant Program/Septic-to-Sewer Funding/Reasonable Assurance Plan/RAP/Biscayne 
Bay/Wastewater Treatment/Septic Tanks/Comprehensive Plans/Florida Forever 
https://www.flsenate.gov/Session/Bill/2023/1379/BillText/er/PDF 
HB 1379 authorizes DEP to provide grants for projects that reduce the amount of nutrients entering waters 
that are not attaining nutrient or nutrient-related standards; have an established total maximum daily load 

BBWMAB POLICY UPDATES 
 

https://www.miamidade.gov/govaction/matter.asp?matter=230964&file=true&fileAnalysis=false&yearFolder=Y2023
https://www.miamidade.gov/govaction/matter.asp?matter=230964&file=true&fileAnalysis=false&yearFolder=Y2023
https://www.miamidade.gov/govaction/matter.asp?matter=230557&file=true&fileAnalysis=false&yearFolder=Y2023
https://www.miamidade.gov/govaction/matter.asp?matter=230557&file=true&fileAnalysis=false&yearFolder=Y2023
https://www.miamidade.gov/govaction/matter.asp?matter=230700&file=true&fileAnalysis=false&yearFolder=Y2023
https://www.miamidade.gov/govaction/matter.asp?matter=230700&file=true&fileAnalysis=false&yearFolder=Y2023
https://www.miamidade.gov/govaction/matter.asp?matter=230865&file=true&fileAnalysis=false&yearFolder=Y2023
https://www.miamidade.gov/govaction/matter.asp?matter=230865&file=true&fileAnalysis=false&yearFolder=Y2023
https://www.flsenate.gov/Session/Bill/2023/1379
https://www.flsenate.gov/Session/Bill/2023/1379/BillText/er/PDF


(TMDL); or are located within a basin management action plan (BMAP) area, a reasonable assurance plan (RAP) 
area adopted by final order, an accepted alternative restoration plan area, or a rural area of opportunity. 

SB 2500  
State budget including line-item vetoes made by the Governor.  County priorities approved by the Governor 
include: 

• $20 Million - Biscayne Bay Water Quality; County Priority/R-1118-22/ Commissioner Danielle Cohen
Higgins

• $1 Million - Miami-Dade County Septic to Sewer Connect 2 Protect Assistance; County Priority/R-1169-
22 Water and Sewer/R-1168-22

• $2 Million- Miami-Dade Sewer Connection Assistance Schenley Park Neighborhood; County Priority/R-
113-23 Commissioner Kevin Marino Cabrera

• $5 Million - Statewide funding for Sargassum Clean-up grants; County Priority/R327-23 Commissioner
Eileen Higgins

SB 2502  
The Governor signed into law SB 2502, a committee bill by the Senate Appropriations Committee.  SB 2502 
implements the state budget for fiscal year 2023-24 and only remains in effect for one year from July 1, 2023 
to June 30, 2024.   
https://www.flsenate.gov/Session/Bill/2023/2502/BillText/er/PDF 
Among other provisions, SB 2502 includes a Fertilizer Ordinance Preemption for a one-year period and does 
not impact the existing Miami-Dade County fertilizer ordinance.  The provision that preempts a county or 
municipal government from adopting or amending a fertilizer management ordinance, which provides for a 
prohibited application period not in existence on June 30, 2023. 

https://www.flsenate.gov/Session/Bill/2023/2500/BillText/er/HTML
https://www.flsenate.gov/Session/Bill/2023/2502
https://www.flsenate.gov/Session/Bill/2023/2502/BillText/er/PDF

	Watershed Plan One Pager.pdf
	Slide Number 1




